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ALHAJ MD. KHABIR UDDIN MOLLAH was one of the sponsors of       
M. I. Cement Factory Limited. In fact, he sowed the seed of the Company 
and tried his level best to make the Company sustainable. He was the 
founding Managing Director of the Company and performed the noble 
responsibility till his death. The Board of Directors of M. I. Cement 
Factory Limited always recall his contribution in every steps of the 
operation and pray in every Board Meeting to the Almighty Allah (SWT) 
for granting him Jannatul Ferdous.
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TRANSMITTAL
LETTER
14 December 2020

The Valued Members
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms
Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd.
Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

Sub: Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Dear Sir(s)/Madam(s),

We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report containing the Notice of the 26th Annual 
General Meeting, Directors’ Report, Certificate of Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors,  
Statutory Auditors’ Report along with the Audited Financial Statements including Statement of 
Financial Position as at 30 June 2020, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 
2020 together with  Notes thereon and Proxy Form for your kind information & records.

Thanking you.

Yours faithfully,

(Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS)
Sr. GM & Company Secretary



M. I. Cement Factory Ltd., a public limited company, is one of the leading cement manufacturers in Bangladesh. It 
started its journey on 31 December 1994 with the commitment of manufacturing high quality cement under the 
brand name “Crown Cement” that has already won renown both at home and abroad.

Initially, the plant was installed with a capacity of producing 600 MT/Day of Portland Cement. With the passing of 
time, the demand for Crown Cement has been increasing day-by-day. So, the Sponsors expanded the project 
gradually to the 2nd unit started in 2002 with a production capacity of 800 MT/Day, the 3rd unit in 2008 of 1,400 
MT/Day, the 4th unit in 2011 of 3,000 MT/Day and the 5th unit in 2017 of 5,200 MT/Day to take the total production 
capacity to 11,000 MT/Day i.e. 3.3 million Metric Ton per annum.

The company’s backward and forward integration endeavors have given new dimensions to its growth platform. 
With this end in view, the associate industrial units such as Crown Polymer Bagging Ltd., Crown Power Generation 
Ltd., Crown Mariners Ltd., Crown Transportation and Logistics Ltd. and Crown Cement Concrete and Building 
Products Ltd. have been set up and are in operation. It has also acquired three Handy Max size Ocean Going Ship 
to facilitate transportation of raw materials from abroad. 

BRIEF
HISTORY
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It is hopefully expected that these new growth platforms will facilitate creation of new dimensions and frontiers 
to the mother company, M. I. Cement Factory Ltd.

M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. pioneered in cement export in 2003 and paved the way for earning hard-earned foreign 
currency. The  company achieved the National Export Trophy thrice for attaining the top most place among the 
cement exporters in Bangladesh.

The factory possesses well communications facility both through water and road. It is located at West Mukterpur, 
Munshiganj on the bank of the river Dhaleswari. It is connected by a metalled road (Dhaka-Munshiganj Highway) 
linked with the whole country.

The company has been listed with the Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. and the Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. in 2011. 
Its high growth agenda have been highly appreciated by the shareholders and have won the investors’ confidence.
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26Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvi weÁwß
GZ Øviv Rvbv‡bv hv‡”Q †h, Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjwg‡UW Gi †kqvi‡nvìviM‡Yi 26Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfv wb¤œwjwLZ welqvw` 
m¤úv`bK‡í AvMvgx 29 wW‡m¤^i 2020 †ivR g½jevi †ejv 11:00 NwUKvq wWwRUvj cø¨vUdg© Gi wjsK 
https://26agm.crowncement.com Gi gva¨‡g AbywôZ n‡e t

Av‡jvP¨ m~Px t

mvaviY Av‡jvP¨ m~Px t
1. 30 Ryb 2020 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii wbixw¶Z Avw_©K wnmve weeiYx Ges wbix¶K I cwiPvjKgÛjxi cÖwZ‡e`b MÖnY I Aby‡gv`b|
2. 30 Ryb 2020 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii jf¨vsk †NvlYv I Aby‡gv`b|
3. cwiPvjKe„‡›`i wbe©vPb|
4. 30 Ryb 2021 Zvwi‡L mgvße¨ eQ‡ii Rb¨ wbixÿK wb‡qvM I Zv‡`i cvwikÖwgK wba©viY |
5. 30 Ryb 2021 Zvwi‡L mgvße¨ eQ‡ii Rb¨ K‡cv©‡iU Mfb©¨vÝ wbixÿK wb‡qvM I Zv‡`i cvwikÖwgK wba©viY|

we‡kl Av‡jvP¨ m~Px t 
1.  Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjwg‡UW Gi m¤ú~Y© gvwjKvbvaxb wZbwU c„_K mvewmwWqvix †Kv¤úvbx‡K eÜ Kivi welqwU h_v_© e‡j we‡ewPZ 

n‡j wb¤œwjwLZ wm×všÍ MÖnY Kiv †h‡Z cv‡i t 

ÔÔwm×všÍ M„nxZ nq †h, Gg. AvB wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjwg‡UW Gi m¤ú~Y© gvwjKvbvaxb wZbwU c„_K mvewmwWqvix †Kv¤úvbx‡K eÜ  Kivi cÖ¯ÍvewU 
me©m¤§wZµ‡g Aby‡gvw`Z n‡jv|ÕÕ

cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i Av‡`kµ‡g
  

(†gvt gRnviæj Bmjvg, GdwmGm)
†R¨ô gnve¨e¯’vcK Ges †Kv¤úvbx mwPe

 

†bvU t
1. 6 wW‡m¤^i 2020 Zvwi‡L †iKW© †W‡U †h mKj ‡kqvi‡nvìv‡ii bvg ‡Kv¤úvbxi †kqvi †iwR÷v‡i/wWcwRUix †iwR÷v‡i wjwce× _vK‡e †Kej 

ZuvivB evwl©K mvaviY mfvq AskMÖnY Kivi Ges jf¨vsk cvIqvi †hvM¨ e‡j we‡ewPZ n‡eb|

2. GKRb ‡kqvi‡nvìvi Zuvi c‡¶ GKRb e¨w³‡K cÖw· wb‡qvM Kivi Rb¨ Dchy³ †iwfwbD ÷¨v¤ú m¤^wjZ cÖw· di&g h_vh_fv‡e c~iY K‡i 
mfv Avi‡¤¢i 48 (AvUPwjøk) N›Uv c~‡e© cs@crowncement.com G B-‡gB‡ji gva¨‡g Aek¨B cvVv‡eb|

3. ‡kqvi‡nvìvM‡Yi cÖkœmg~n evwl©K mvaviY mfv ïiæ nIqvi Kgc‡ÿ 24 N›Uv c~‡e© Ges mfv PjvKvjxb D‡jøwLZ wjs‡K cvVv‡eb| wjsKwU‡Z hy³ 
nIqvi Rb¨ †kqvi‡nvìviMY‡K Zvu‡`i bvg, weI wnmve bs Ges †kqv‡ii msL¨v D‡jøL Ki‡Z n‡e|

4. ‡Kv¤úvbxi evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b Gi md&U Kwc †kqvi‡nvìviM‡Yi B-‡gB‡j cvVv‡bv n‡e Ges evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b Gi md&U Kwc †Kv¤úvbxi I‡qe mvBU 
http://www.crowncement.com G cvIqv hv‡e|

                

ZvwiL, XvKv  
14 wW‡m¤^i 2020                                                                                  
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Dated, Dhaka
14 December 2020

(Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS)
Senior General Manager & Company Secretary

By Order of the Board

NOTICE OF THE 26th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 26th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of M. I. Cement Factory Limited will be held at 11:00 
A.M. on Tuesday, the 29th December 2020 using Digital Platform through the link https://26agm.crowncement.com 
to transact the following businesses:

AGENDA:
Ordinary Resolution
1. To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and the Audited Financial Statements of the Company 

for the year ended 30 June 2020.
2. To declare Dividend for the year ended 30 June 2020.
3. To elect Directors. 
4. To appoint the Statutory Auditors for the year ending 30 June 2021 and to fix their remuneration.
5. To appoint the Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors for the year ending 30 June 2021 and to fix their 

remuneration.

Special Resolution
1. To approve winding up of the 3 (Three) Subsidiary Companies fully owned by M. I. Cement Factory Limited (MICFL), 

if considered and thought fit, the following resolution may be passed:

“RESOLVED that the proposal for winding up of the 3 (Three) Subsidiary Companies fully owned by M. I. Cement Factory 
Limited (MICFL) is hereby passed.”

Notes:
1. The Shareholders, whose names appeared in the Company’s Register or in the Depository Register on the Record 

Date i.e. 6 December 2020, will be eligible to attend the virtual AGM and to receive the Dividend.
2. A Shareholder entitled to join/attend at the virtual AGM may appoint a Proxy to join/attend in his/her stead. The 

“Proxy Form” duly filled, signed and stamped with a Revenue Stamp of Tk. 20.00 must be sent through e-mail at 
cs@crowncement.com not later than 48 hours before the time fixed for the AGM.

3. The Shareholders are requested to submit their question(s)/comment(s) into the link https://26agm.crowncement.com 
before 24 hours of the AGM and during the AGM. For logging into the link, the Shareholders need to put their 
Name, 16-digit Beneficial Owner (BO) Number and Number of Shares held on the Record Date as proof of their 
identity. 

4. The soft copy of the Annual Report 2019-2020 of the Company will be sent to the respective e-mail address of the 
Shareholders mentioned in their Beneficiary Owner (BO) Accounts with the Depository. The Annual Report will also 
be available at the Company’s website at http://www.crowncement.com.
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VISION &
MISSION

Vision
Our vision is to make a contribution to 
the nation by creating opportunities in 
the arena of industrial growth and 
development of Bangladesh, and to 
provide a solid foundations for society's 
future.

Mission
As a modern cement company, we 
manufacture cement (Brand name: 
Crown Cement) to meet the needs of 
clients through innovative products & 
services that create value for all of our 
stakeholders. 



Commitment 
Shareholders – Create sustainable economic value for our shareholders by utilizing an honest and 
efficient business methodology. 

Community – Committed to serve the society through employment creation, support community 
projects & events, and be a responsible corporate citizen. 

Customers – Render service to our customers by using state-of-the-art technology, offering 
diversified products and aspiring to fulfill their needs to the best of our abilities. 

Employees – Be reliant on the inherent merit of the employees and honor our relationships. Work 
together to celebrate and reward the unique backgrounds, viewpoints, skills, and talents of 
everyone at the work place, at each level.

Accountability
We are accountable for providing quality products & excellent services along with meeting the 
strict requirements of regulatory standards and ethical business practices.

Inspiring, Motivating & Compelling

We're ambitious and innovative. We get excited about our work. We bring energy and 
imagination to our work in order to achieve a level of performance, not achieved before. We 
achieve a higher standard of excellence. Everything we produce should look fresh and modern.

Ability
We have the ability to undertake the responsibility to materialize our commitment, and goals. In all 
matters we think ahead & take new initiatives. We can see things from different perspectives; we are 
open to change and not bounded by how we have done things in the past. We can respond rapidly 
and adjust our mode of operation to meet stakeholder needs and achieve our goals.

Keep Promises
Everything we do should work perfectly. In all matters we maintain integrity & excellence. We 
believe in actions, not in words.

Be Respectful
We respect our customers, shareholders & others stakeholders and want to fulfill their needs. We 
are respectful in regard to all our interactions with them. We always appreciate comments & 
suggestions from our stakeholders. We are open, helpful & friendly. We have total commitment 
to customer satisfaction.Q
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Continually set the latest standards of modern technology in our industry to satisfy the 
needs of customers through innovative products and services.

Contribute to the national economy and the infrastructure development of the country.

Secure the strongest competitive position in our relevant market places through making 
quality product and operational excellence.

Be partner with the best suppliers, delivering increased value for both the company and 
our customers.

Be recognized as a respected & attractive company & an employer of first choice.

Provide extensive career opportunities through competitive pay & benefits, training & 
development & a congenial working environment.

Empower our employees at every level and integrate them fully into our network.

Continually demonstrate our commitment to sustainable environmental performance, 
and play a pro-active role in Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) within our sphere of 
influence.

Achieve long-term financial performance.

Create secured investment opportunity within the country.

Enhance versatility & diversification through the penetration of new market segments.

Improve administrative & organization structures to review all business lines regularly & 
develop the best practice in the industry.

Earn foreign currency through export.

GOALS
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Incorporated as a Public Limited Company  

CORPORATE
HISTORY &
ACHIEVEMENTS

Our job is to identify ways to increase productivity and efficiency and to promote a sustainable future. No matter how 
good we are at service, our success depends more than anything on being able to connect with customers. In our journey 
the following years are the symbol of prosperity and progress:

Awarded National Export Trophy (Gold) for the year 2008-09

Achieved ICMAB Best Corporate Award

Launched operartion of the 5th Unit with a Production  Capacity of 5,200 MT/Day
Procured the 3rd Mother Vassel (Crown Vision)
Implementation of SAP
Awarded Export Trophy (Bronze) for the year 2013-2014

Procured the 2nd Mother Vessel (Crown Victory) for transportation of raw materials

Achieved ICMAB Best Corporate Award

Procured the 1st Mother Vessel (Crown Voyager) for transportation of raw materials

Launched operation of the 4th Unit with a Production Capacity of 3,000 MT/Day
Listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE) & Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. (CSE)

Awarded National Export Trophy (Gold) for the year 2009-10

Launched operation of the 3rd Unit with a Production Capacity of 1,400 MT/Day

Launched operation of the 2nd Unit with a Production Capacity of 800MT/Day

Started commercial operation with a Production Capacity of 600 MT/Day

2017

2016

2015

2014

2012

2010

2009

2008

2002

2000

1994

2011
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CORPORATE 
PROFILE

Company Name : M. I. Cement Factory Ltd.
Company Registration No. : C-27586 (1432)/94
Country of Incorporation : Bangladesh 
Legal Form : Public Limited Company
Nature of Business : Manufacturing and Marketing of Portland Cement, Portland Composite Cement &
    Blast Furnace Cement.

Chairman
Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam

Managing Director
Mr. Molla Mohammad Majnu

Director
Mr. Md. Alamgir Kabir
Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah
Mr. Md. Almas Shimul

Independent Director
Mr. Zakir Ahmed Khan
Prof. Dr. M. Abu Eusuf 

Board of Directors

Chief Adviser to the Board 

Chairman
Mr. Zakir Ahmed Khan

Member 
Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah
Mr. Md. Almas Shimul

Member Secretary  
Mr. Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS

Audit Committee

Sponsors & Directors: 67.08%
Foreigners: 0.24%
Institutes: 17.52%
General Public: 15.16%
No. of Shareholders: 26,844

Members Composition

Chairman
Prof. Dr. M. Abu Eusuf 

Member 
Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah
Mr. Md. Almas Shimul

Member Secretary  
Mr. Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS

Nomination & Remuneration
Committee

Mr. Masud Khan, FCA, FCMA

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Md. Mukter Hossain Talukder, FCA 

Company Secretary  

Mr. Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS

Human Resources
Permanent: 1,245 Persons

Chief Financial Officer (Current Charge)

Mr. Md. Abdul Kayum, FCMA
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One Bank  Limited
South East Bank Limited
Mercantile Bank Limited
Jamuna Bank Limited
State Bank of India
The City Bank Limited
National Bank Limited
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited
Prime Bank Limited
United Commercial Bank Limited
Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Pubali Bank Limited
Janata Bank Limited
Dhaka Bank Limited
Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited
Uttara Bank Limited
Brac Bank limited
Islami Bank Bangladesh Limited
IFIC Bank Limited
HSBC
National Credit and Commerce Bank Limited
Bank Asia
Arab Bangladesh Bank Ltd.
Agrani Bank Ltd.
Eastern Bank Ltd.
Trust Bank Limited
Premier Bank Limited
NRB bank
Bank Alfalah Limited
Habib Bank Limited
Standard Chartered Bank Limited

Lenders 
Crown Mariners Ltd.
Crown Transportation and Logistics Ltd.
Crown Power Generation Ltd. 
Crown Cement Concrete and Building Products Ltd.
Crown Polymer Bagging Ltd.

Associate Companies 

Authorized Capital: Tk. 5,000 million
Subscribed Capital: Tk. 1,485 million
Paid-up Capital: Tk. 1,485 million

Share Capital  

Pragati Insurance Limited
Rupali Insurance Company Limited
Pioneer Insurance Company Limited
Reliance Insurance Limited
Bangladesh General Insurance Company Limited

Insurers

Statutory Auditors:
M/s. Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors:
M/s. Ahmed Zaker & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Auditors 

Corporate Office:
Delta Life Tower (3rd & 6th floor), Plot No. 37, Road No. 45 (South) & 90 (North), Gulshan- 2, Dhaka- 1212.

Tel: +88-02-222263631, 222261633, 222262634, 222284636, 222290641
Fax: +88-02-222263643, E-mail: info@crowncement.com, Web: www.crowncement.com

Registered Office: 
West Mukterpur, Munshiganj 

Tel: +88-02-7648077, Fax: +88-02-7648070, E-mail: factory@crowncement.com

CORPORATE 
PROFILE
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Sitting from right:
Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah (Additional Managing Director), Mr. Molla Mohammad Majnu (Managing Director), 
Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam (Chairman), Mr. Md. Alamgir Kabir (Vice Chairman)

Standing from left:
Mr. Md. Almas Shimul (Director), Prof. Dr. M. Abu Eusuf (Independent Director), Mr. Zakir Ahmed Khan (Independent 
Director), Mr. Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS (Sr. GM & Company Secretary)

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS



OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

PROFILE 



M. I. CEMENT FACTORY LTD. I ANNUAL REPORT I 2019-2020

PROFILE OF THE
CHAIRMAN
MOHAMMED JAHANGIR ALAM

Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam is a man of wisdom and 
energetic businessman. After completing education 
from Government College of Commerce, Chattogram, 
Bangladesh in 1980 started his career by joining in a 
private service.
He has derived vast proficiency in trading in Iron & 
Steel, Cement, Bitumen, C. I. Sheet, Zinc Ingot, Capital 
Market, Industrial Ventures etc. Initially he established 
his business house named Jahangir & Others in 1987 
which was subsequently incorporated as Jahangir & 
Others Limited in 2003. He has established himself as 
one of the business leaders in Bangladesh.
He is the Sponsor Director and Chairman of M. I. 
Cement Factory Limited (Crown Cement), Crown Power 
Generation Limited, Crown Polymer Bagging Limited, 
Crown Mariners Limited, Crown Transportation & 
Logistics Limited and GPH Ship Builders Limited.
He is also the Chairman and Managing Director of GPH 
Engineers & Development Limited, Chittagong Capital 
Limited, GPH Power Generation Limited.
He is the Managing Director of GPH Ispat Limited,  
Jahangir & Others Limited and Indo Steel Re-rolling 
Industries Limited.
He is also the Director of Crown Cement Concrete and 
Building Products Limited, Premier Cement Mills 
Limited, Premier Power Generation Limited, National 
Cement Mills Limited, Asia Insurance Limited 

and Chartered Life Insurance Limited, Eco Ceramics 
Industries Limited and Imperial Hospital Limited. 
As a part of social activities, he is actively involved with 
the following social organizations:
• Founder Member of Independent University of 

Bangladesh (IUB), Chattogram, Bangladesh
• Donor Member of Gulshan North Club Limited
• Permanent Member of Gulshan Club Limited
• Life Member of Chittagong Maa-o-Shishu Hospital
• Vice President of Bangladesh Small and Captive 

Power Producers' Association
• Member of Bangladesh German Chamber of 

Commerce and Industry
• Member of Bangladesh Ex-Cadet Association
• Life Member of Bangladesh National Society for the 

Blind
• Life Member of Bhatiary Golf & Country Club
• Life Member of Gulshan Society
• Adviser of Gulshan Joggers Society
• General Member of FBCCI
• Permanent Member of Banani Club Limited
• Life Member of Dhaka Boat Club Limited

Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam is a man of commitment 
which he strongly maintains in his day to day business 
activities.



PROFILE OF THE
VICE CHAIRMAN
MD. ALAMGIR KABIR

Mr. Md. Alamgir Kabir having educational background 
of MBA in Marketing is a Sponsor Director and at 
present holding the position of the Vice Chairman in the 
management of the Company. Having about three 
decades of business experience in both trading and 
manufacturing sectors, he has proved his wisdom and 
leadership in business. At present he is the Chairman of 
GPH Ispat Limited. He holds the position of the 
Managing Director of Crown Cement Concrete and 
Building Products Limited. 

He is also the Director of Premier Cement Mills Limited, 
Premier Power Generation Limited, Crown Power 
Generation Limited, Crown Polymer Bagging Limited, 
Crown Mariners Limited, Crown Transportation and 
Logistics Limited, GPH Power Generation Limited, GPH 
Ship Builders Limited, GPH Engineers & Development 
Limited, Jahangir & Others Limited, Chittagong Capital 
Limited, Indo Steel Re-rolling Industries Limited, Eco 
Ceramics Industries Limited and actively participating in 
their management. 

He is running his trading house, engaged in trading of 
cement and other construction materials. He is also 
associated with some limited companies engaged in 
trading with his brothers. 

Besides success in business, Mr. Kabir has also proving 
his commitment to the society by attaching himself in 
social activities like: 

• President, Bangladesh Cement Manufacturers 
Association 

• Founder Chairman, GPH International School

• General Member, the Federation of Bangladesh 
Chambers of Commerce and Industry (FBCCI) 

• Member, Army Golf Club 

• President, Munshiganj Unnayan Forum 

• Life Member, Bangladesh Red Crescent Society

• Member, India Bangladesh Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry 

• Member, Bangladesh German Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry.
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PROFILE OF THE
MANAGING
DIRECTOR

Mr. Molla Mohammad Majnu having a Masters Degree 
in Science from Dhaka University is a Sponsor Director 
and Managing Director of M. I. Cement Factory Limited 
which has introduced one of the leading Cement brands 
of the nation named “Crown Cement”. He is also the 
Managing Director of Crown Transportation and 
Logistics Limited & Crown Mariners Limited.

He is the Chairman of Molla Salt (Triple Refined) Industry 
Limited and Crown Cement Concrete and Building 
Products Limited.

He is the Director of Crown Power Generation Limited, 
Crown Polymer Bagging Limited and Beta One 
Investment Limited.

He is an active partner of Molla Salt Industries and M. M. 
Salt Industries Limited, from which two branded salt has 
been leading the market of the nation known as “Molla 
Super Salt” and “Molla Salt” for long times.

He is the highest Tax Payer of Narayanganj District for 
the consecutive last 5 (Five) years. Apart from the 
business career, he is a social worker who has founded 
the “Molla Salt Foundation Limited” and leading the 
foundation as Chairman, under which lots of social work 
has been done to privilege the underprivileged 
community of Mirkadim Municipality like- Charitable 
Health Care, Free Ambulance, Free School for 
underprivileged children.

MOLLA MOHAMMAD MAJNU



PROFILE OF THE
ADDITIONAL
MANAGING
DIRECTOR

Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah is a Sponsor Director 
and Additional Managing Director of M. I. Cement 
Factory Limited.

He is the Managing Director of Molla Salt (Triple 
Refined) Industry Limited, Crown Polymer Bagging 
Limited and Crown Power Generation Limited.

He is also the Director of Crown Mariners Limited, 
Crown Cement Concrete and Building Products Limited 
and Crown Transportation and Logistics Limited. 
Together with his other family members, he has been 
carrying out the trading operations from their reputed 
organization, dealing in Cement and Other Construction 
Materials.

He is an active partner of Molla Salt Industries and M. M. 
Salt Industries Limited, from which two branded salt has 
been leading the market of the nation named as “Molla 
Super Salt” and “Molla Salt” for the decades. He is also 
one of the members of the Board’s Audit Committee 
and Nomination and Remuneration Committee of M. I. 
Cement Factory Limited.

He is the highest Tax Payer of Narayanganj District for 
the consecutive last 5 (Five) years. Other than a 
businessman, he also loves to work for the 
underprivileged peoples of the society for which he has 
cofounded & leading the “Molla Salt Foundation Ltd.” as 
honorable secretary.

MD. MIZANUR RAHMAN MOLLAH
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PROFILE OF THE
DIRECTOR

Mr. Md. Almas Shimul went to Japan for his career 
development after completion of his education. After 
two years’ successful completion of job in Asahi High 
Tech, a Japanese IT Company he returned to Bangladesh 
and joined in family business.

During his business history he holds the Chairmanship 
of Indo Steel Re-rolling Industries Limited. He also holds 
the position of Additional Managing Director of GPH 
Ispat Limited and actively participating in its 
management.

He is one of the Sponsors and Director of  M. I. Cement 
Factory Limited (Crown Cement), GPH Power Generation 
Limited, GPH Ship Builders Limited, GPH Engineers & 
Development Limited, Chittagong Capital Limited, 
Jahangir & Others Limited, Eco Ceramics Industries 
Limited, Crown Power Generation Limited, Crown 
Polymer Bagging Limited, Crown Mariners Limited, 
Crown Transportation and Logistics Limited and Crown 
Cement Concrete and Building Products Limited. 
Together with his brothers, he has been carrying out the 
trading of Construction Materials like Cement, M. S. 
Rod, C. I. Sheet etc. from their different trading houses 
from Chittagong Centre.

He is also one of the members of the Board’s Audit 
Committee and Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of M. I. Cement Factory Limited.

Being a prominent social worker, he is also actively 
involved with the following social organizations:

• Region Chairperson of Lions District 315-B4, 
Bangladesh

• President  of Chittagong Friends Club

• President of Chittagong Islamia University College 
Ex-Student Forum

• Founder and Executive Member of Khulshi Club, 
Chattogram

• Founder Member of Idris Ali Matbar Foundation, 
Munshigonj

• Life Member of Bhatiary Golf and Country Club, 
Chattogram

• Member of Chittagong Club Limited, Chattogram

• Ececutive Member of Kidney Foundation, 
Chattogram

MD. ALMAS SHIMUL
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PROFILE OF THE
INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR

Mr. Zakir Ahmed Khan, Former Finance Secretary to the 
Government of Bangladesh. He carries with him vast 
experience and expertise gathered from home and 
abroad. Mr. Khan did B. A. (Hons.) and Masters in 
Economics from the University of Dhaka in 1968. He had 
graduate study in Development Economics and 
Development Administration as a Hubert Humphrey 
North-South Fellow at the Colorado State University, 
USA. He also did Master of Business Administration 
from Vrijie Universiteit, Brussels, Belgium. Before joining 
Government Service in 1970, he briefly worked as a 
Research Associate in the Bureau of Economic Research 
and Institute of Education and Research and Lecturer in 
Economics, University of Dhaka. He also worked as a 
part time Lecturer in the Department of Finance, 
University of Dhaka. During his 46 years of 

service, Mr. Khan held various senior level positions in 
the Ministries of Finance, Commerce, Establishment, 
Energy, Civil Aviation and Tourism, Cabinet Division and 
Bangladesh Audit and Accounts Department. He served 
as Finance Secretary and Secretary, Internal Resources 
Division and Chairman, National Board of Revenue for 
five years. He also briefly worked for a number of UN 
Agencies. Prior to his retirement in early 2009, he served 
as Alternate Executive Director of the World Bank for 
three and a half years. He contributed a number of 
articles on public policy and public sector financial 
management to a number of national and international 
journals. He also made several key note presentations 
on public sector reforms and financial management in 
seminars and workshops at home and abroad.

ZAKIR AHMED KHAN
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PROFILE OF THE
INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR
PROF. DR. M. ABU EUSUF

Dr. M. Abu Eusuf is holding the position of Professor & 
Former Chairman in the Department of Development 
Studies at the University of Dhaka. He is the Director of 
‘Centre on Budget and Policy’ at the University of Dhaka. 
He is also the Executive Director of a national think-tank 
Research and Policy Integration for Development 
(RAPID). Dr. Eusuf is an economist by training. He was 
awarded Ph.D. in Development Policy and Management 
(Development Economics Cluster) from the University of 
Manchester as a Commonwealth Scholar.  He also 
completed his M. A. in Development Studies at the 
Institute of Social Studies (ISS), Netherlands, under the 
UN fellowship program. 
Dr. Eusuf has been an active member of the Bangladesh 
Economic Association. His fields of interest include 
urban poverty, social protection, SDGs, monitoring and 
evaluation, human development, water and sanitation, 
international trade, budget, green growth, land 
management, women entrepreneurship development, 
community health etc. He has published a number of 
research articles in the reputed journals/books. Dr. Eusuf 
is an active researcher and has worked for UNDP; 

World Bank; EU, ODI, Center on the Budget and Policy 
Priorities, USA; University of Manchester, The Asia 
Foundation, Bangladesh Planning Commission, 
Consumer Unity and Trust Society (CUTS) International, 
India; ActionAid Bangladesh, Care Bangladesh, Oxfam, 
World Vision, Institute for Inclusive Finance and 
Development (InM) and so on.   
Dr. Eusuf has undertaken rigorous research and 
advocacy works in all divisions in Bangladesh. Very 
recently (in July – September 2020) – amid the Covid-19 
pandemic – he has completed a study on ‘COVID -19 
and New Normal for Women in the Economy in South 
Asia: Bangladesh Country Report’ commissioned by The 
Asia Foundation and led a field survey-based study on 
the Government’s Gratuitous Relief (GR) programme 
commissioned by the Ministry of Disaster Management 
and Relief (MoDMR) for which the field work in nine 
Upazilas under nine Districts was conducted observing 
official health guidelines. Over the past many years, Dr. 
Eusuf has developed a strong network with local-level 
administrations and high level policy makers in 
Bangladesh.
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PROFILE OF THE
ADVISER TO THE
BOARD
MASUD KHAN, FCA, FCMA

Mr. Masud Khan is the Chairman of Unilever Consumer 
Care Ltd. (ex GSK) and currently working as the Chief 
Adviser of the Board of M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. (Crown 
Cement Group). He is a seasoned professional with 41 
years’ work experience in leading multinational and 
local companies in Bangladesh. Prior to joining                
M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. (Crown Cement Group), he 
worked in LafargeHolcim Bangladesh as Chief Financial 
Officer for 18 years. Earlier, he worked for British 
American Tobacco in finance and related fields for 20 
years both at home and abroad. 

He is also an Independent Director of Berger Paints 
Bangladesh Limited, Singer Bangladesh Limited, 
Community Bank and Viyellatex Limited. His articles on 
professional and industry issues regularly feature in 
newspapers and international and local magazines. He 

regularly features on electronic media on talk shows and 
interviews and is often in the news for comments on 
industry and professional issues. He also does public 
speaking on professional issues in educational 
institutions and all the Professional Institutes such as 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh, ACCA 
and ICMA Bangladesh. He is also a lecturer in the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh for 
the past 41 years.

He did his Bachelor of Commerce with Honours from St 
Xaviers’ College under University of Kolkata. Thereafter, 
he qualified with distinction both as a Chartered as well 
as a Cost and Management Accountant from the Indian 
Institutes being a silver medalist at all India level in the 
Chartered Accountancy Examination in the year 1977.
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PROFILE OF THE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER
MD. MUKTER HOSSAIN TALUKDER, FCA 

Mr. Md. Mukter Hossain Talukder, FCA has been 
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) on 
September 1, 2019. Vastly experienced in business 
management and administration, Mr. Talukder, 
re-joined the group as Chief Operating Officer (COO) on 
February 17, 2019. Prior to that he was the Director 
(Finance) of Aman Group. He however served the           
M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. (Crown Cement Group) from 
2007 to 2015 as Chief Financial Officer and Executive 
Director. He also served RANGS Group and Social 
Marketing Company (SMC) in key positions. 

He is a seasoned professional with 22 years of work 
experience in reputed Companies at various senior

management levels. His strong network with highest 
level of Government and regulators as well as the 
industry stakeholders helped him to earn fame and 
respect over the years. As he is a high achiever, he 
always delivers results under challenging circumstances.

He obtained Master’s degree on Accounting and 
Information Science from Dhaka University and is a 
Fellow Chartered Accountant (FCA) of The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). He was 
born in 1970 in Sirajganj.
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PROFILE OF THE
COMPANY
SECRETARY
MD. MOZHARUL ISLAM, FCS

Mr. Md. Mozharul Islam has completed his Graduation 
(Honours) and Masters in Accounting in the year 1983 
and 1984 respectively. He has completed his Chartered 
Accountancy Course and passed the Intermediate 
Examination. He also studied Executive MBA. He also 
completed Chartered Secretarial Education from the 
Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB). 
He became a Fellow Member of this Institute. He started 
his career with United Insurance Company Ltd., a Public 
Limited Co. listed with the Stock Exchange of 
Bangladesh and a concern of Duncan Brothers 
(Bangladesh) Ltd. (which is a 100% British holding in 

Bangladesh), where finally he worked as the Head of the 
Finance & Accounts Department and as the Company 
Secretary. He served at a Dhaka Stock Exchange 
Member Company as a Key Official. He also worked at 
AB Bank Limited in the rank of Vice President. He Joined 
M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. on 15 March 2012 and at 
present he has been working as the Company Secretary 
in the rank of Senior General Manager. He was born in 
1962 in Thakurgaon.
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Sitting from right:
Alhaj Md. Abdur Rouf, Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam, Mr. Molla Mohammad Majnu, Mr. Md. Alamgir Kabir

Standing from left:
Mr. Md. Ashrafuzzaman, Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah, Mr. Md. Almas Shimul,  Mr. Md. Abdul Ahad 

SPONSOR
SHAREHOLDERS
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From Right:
Mr. Md. Almas Shimul (Director), Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah (Additional Managing Director),                         
Mr. Zakir Ahmed Khan (Independent Director),  Mr. Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS (Member Secretary)

AUDIT
COMMITTEE
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From Right:
Mr. Md. Almas Shimul (Director), Prof. Dr. M. Abu Eusuf (Independent Director), Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah 
(Additional Managing Director), Mr. Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS (Member Secretary)

NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE
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From left:
Mr. Masud Khan, FCA, FCMA, Engr. Humayun Kabir Chowdhury

ADVISORY
PANEL
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Sitting from right:

Capt. Md. Mohaimanul Hoque, Sr. GM (Shipping), Mr. Md. Mukter Hossain Talukder, FCA, Chief Executive Officer, 
Engr. Saiful Alam, Executive Director (Factory Operations)

Standing from left:

Mr. Mohammad Mahfuzul Hoque, GM (Supply Chain Management), Mr. Shaibal Saha, Sr. GM (Marketing & Sales), 
Mr. Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS Sr. GM & Company Secretary, Mr. A.B.M. Yusuf Ali Khan, GM (Human Resources), Mr. 
Md. Abdul Kayum, FCMA, Sr. DGM & Chief Financial Officer (Current Charge), 

MANAGEMENT
TEAM
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GLIMPSE OF
THE 25TH AGM

Directors &  Management attended in the 25th AGM  

Partial view of the Members attended in the 25th AGM
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance involves decision making processes for any corporate body as a going concern for the benefit 
of all concerned, present and future. These decisions may be categorized as policy & strategic, operational and 
executing, performance & evaluation and sharing of the accretional assets between present & future cohorts. The 
involvement of the entrepreneur in all these areas invokes decision making governance on a continuous basis, the 
degree of involvement being variable with the extent of delegation of authority top down and reporting for 
accountability bottom up of the Management echelon. These aspects of governance are shared by the Board of 
Directors, Management, Operational Participants and Workers and others in fulfillment of the common goals that 
converge in increasing the benefits of all stakeholders. To this end, entire corporate governance efforts are blended 
with "good governance practices" as ethically and morally acceptable standards under a given socio politico 
environmental phenomenon of our society in which we work, live and exist. 

The Company had always been fully adherent with the corporate governance principles and best practices. As per 
compliance of Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018. The organisms through 
which the corporate governance functions are carried out are as follows: 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CONSTITUTION
The Board of Directors, the top Management echelon, consisting of the founding entrepreneurs / successors and two 
Independent Directors provides the policy and strategic support and direction for the entire range of the corporate 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Sl. No.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

                            Name of the Directors

Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam
Mr. Md. Alamgir Kabir
Mr. Molla Mohammad Majnu
Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah
Mr. Md. Almas Shimul
Mr. Zakir Ahmed Khan
Prof. Dr. M. Abu Eusuf

                      Position

Chairman
Vice Chairman
Managing Director
Additional Managing Director
Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

                    Board Members
Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam, 
Non-executive Director
Mr. Md. Alamgir Kabir,
Executive Director
Mr. Molla Mohammad Majnu, 
Executive Director
Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah, 
Non-executive Director
Mr. Md. Almas Shimul, 
Non-executive Director
Mr. Zakir Ahmed Khan, 
Independent Director
Prof. Dr. M. Abu Eusuf, 
Independent Director

Position

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Managing Director

Additional Managing Director

Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Board Meeting Attendance

9/9

9/9

9/9

8/9

5/9

6/9

9/9

activities. Currently the Board of Directors consist of 7 (seven) members including the Independent Directors with varied 
education and experience which provides a balancing character in decision making process. The present members of the 
Board of Directors are as follows:

In each Annual General Meeting one third of the Directors retire and seek reelection. A director is liable to be removed if 
the conditions of the Articles of Association and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1994 are not fulfilled. 

ATTENDANCE OF THE BOARD MEMBERS IN THE BOARD MEETING
During the period from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020, the board held 9 (nine) meetings to transact various agenda. The 
attendance of Directors at the Board meetings are as follows: 

ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES
The main role of the Board of Directors, which is the highest level of authority, is to provide general superintendence, 
oversee the operations and control the affairs of the company through appropriate delegation and accountability 
processes via the lines of command. However, the Board of Directors hold the ultimate responsibility & accountability with 
due diligence for conducting the activities of the company as per provisions of law in the interest of the shareholders, the 
stakeholders, the state and the society. The Board of Directors, in fulfillment of its responsibility hold periodic meetings, at 
least once a quarter and provide appropriate decisions/directions to the Executive Management. Such meetings usually 
consider operational performance, financial results, review of budgets, capital expenditure proposals for new 
projects/divisions/product lines, procurement of funds by issue of shares or borrowing, procurement of raw materials, plant 
& machinery, pricing of products/ discounts, recruitment, training and promotion of officers, approval of audited accounts 
and distribution of dividends and other interest of the stakeholders including the employees and workers. The Board of 
Directors take special care in designing and articulating productivity and compensation plans of employees and workers 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

and rewarding them appropriately on the basis of quality and quantity of performance as an incentive. The board also 
remains responsible for removal of operational hazards to life and health of workers, friendly environmental work condition 
and social relationship as demanded of good citizen in a country.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND PUBLIC
The shareholders as owners, are required to be provided with material information on the company's operation every 
quarter and annually, the later at the Annual General Meeting. They are also provided routine services by the Company 
Secretariat Department in matters of their various queries, share transfer, dematerialization, rematerialization of shares, 
payment of dividends etc. 

The Board is however responsible to the public for publication of any price sensitive information as per BSEC regulation. 

A qualified Chartered Secretary is in charge for all these responsibilities as Company Secretary.

RELATIONSHIP WITH GOVERNMENT
In the role on accountability to the government, the Board of Directors ensure payment of all dues to government in the 
form of import duty, custom duty and port charges, VAT, Corporate Taxes and other levies as and when they become due 
on the basis of actual operations and make sure to avoid corruption. This has enabled the Company to enhance its 
contribution to the National Exchequer on a progressive rate year after year.

RELATIONSHIP WITH FINANCERS/BANKERS
The Board oversees the Financial transactions and ensures to meet company's commitments to the lenders without default. 
This has resulted in securing lower interest rates from them.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS
As the company has to import plant and machinery and almost all the raw materials from abroad, it maintains cordial and 
mutually beneficial interest with its international as well as local suppliers. This has enabled the company to avoid any legal 
disputes in international/local courts and enhanced the company's image as a good customer.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (CSR)
The Board of Directors is also awoken of the Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) especially in the areas of warm clothes 
distribution in the winter, Donation and Construction for the general public, Education of the Blinds, Merit Scholarship, Fire 
& Civil Defense, Environmental & Social Obligations, Donation to the Sports and Cultural Activities, Donation to the Science 
and Technology, Assistance for the Rohingya Refugee, Honoring Freedom Fighters, Enlightening Communities through 
Religion, Donation to the Underprivileged, Promoting the Youth,  Business Research by District Level College Students etc.

SEPARATE ROLE OF THE CHAIRMAN, THE MANAGING DIRECTOR AND
THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The positions of the Chairman of the Board, the Managing Director and the Chief Executive Officer are separate individuals. 
Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam is the Chairman of the Company and responsible for the functions of the Board while Mr. 
Molla Mohammad Majnu is the Managing Director of the Company and Mr. Md. Mukter Hossain Talukder, FCA serves as 
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director are clearly defined in the 
Articles of Association of the Company.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER, COMPANY SECRETARY AND
HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE
The Company has appointed Mr. Md. Abdul Kayum, FCMA as Chief Financial Officer (Current Charge), Mr. Md. Mozharul 
Islam, FCS as Company Secretary as per the requirement of the Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh Securities and 
Exchange Commission. The position of the Head of Internal Audit and Compliance is vacant for few months, the position 
will be fulfilled as early as possible. The Chief Financial Officer (Current Charge), the Company Secretary and the Head of 
Internal Audit and Compliance of the Company is not holding any executive position in any other Company at the same 
time. The Board had clearly defined respective roles, responsibilities and duties of the Chief Financial Officer (Current 
Charge), the Company Secretary and the Head of Internal Audit and Compliance. The Chief Financial Officer (Current 
Charge), the Company Secretary and the Head of Internal Audit and Compliance of the Company attend in the Board 
Meeting regularly. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

 BOARD’S COMMITTEES
It is to ensure swift and efficient flow of information, i.e. showcasing strong governance, with which the Board has 
established two subcommittees which are:

 Audit Committee
 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD
The Audit Committee of the Company, is a Sub-Committee of the Board. In 2019-2020, the Committee comprises of 1 
(One) Independent Director and 2 (Two) Non-Executive Directors. The Board has appointed an Independent Director as 
Chairman of the Committee under the referred guidelines. 4 (Four) Audit Committee meetings were held during the period 
from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020. The composition of the Audit Committee and their attendance are as follows:

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, half-yearly and annual Financial Statements and statements of related party 
transactions. Also, it reviews adequacy and effectiveness of financial reporting process, accounting policies, internal control 
and risk management process. It is also responsible for overseeing the management letter along with performance 
recommendation on appointment and re-appointment of External Auditors and Corporate Governance Auditors. The Audit 
Committee carries out its responsibilities as per the provisions of law and submits its report to the Board of Directors from 
time to time. The Audit Committee shall also co-ordinate with the Internal and external Auditors as and when required. The 
Audit Committee ensures that adequate internal checks & balances supported by adequate MIS are in place for detection 
of errors, frauds and other deficiencies. The other responsibilities include inter alia, not being limited to, the prevention of 
conflict of interest between the company and its directors, officials, customers, suppliers, government and any other 
interest groups and detect or remove any scope of insider trading in the company's stock. The Audit Committee also 
ensures compliance of requirements of BSEC and other agencies.

The Report of the Audit Committee to the Board for the year ended 30 June 2020 is given to the Annexure-I.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC)
In pursuance of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006 
-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018, the Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee set the principles, parameters and governance framework for the nomination and remuneration 
of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, top-level Executives and other employees comprising the senior management. 

The Board’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC), headed by an Independent Director, makes 
recommendations to the Board in terms of employment of the members of the Executive Committee, managers and 
employees and decides their specific remuneration. This Committee met once in 2019-2020. The Composition of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee is given below:

              Name of the Members

Mr. Zakir Ahmed Khan

Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah

Mr. Md. Almas Shimul

Mr. Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS

Position

Independent Director

Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director

Sr. GM & Company Secretary

Status

Chairman

Member

Member

Member Secretary

No. of Meeting
Attended

4/4

2/4

3/4

4/4

Sl. No.

1

2

3

4

                           Name

Prof. Dr. M. Abu Eusuf

Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah

Mr. Md. Almas Shimul

Mr. Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS

Position

Independent Director

Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director

Sr. GM & Company Secretary

Status

Chairman

Member

Member

Member Secretary



The Report of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee to the Board for the year ended 30 June 2020 is given to the 
Annexure-II.

STATUTORY AUDITORS 
The role of the auditors in certification of the Financial Statements is the most significant aspect of Corporate Governance 
and protection of interest of investors. As evident from the Annual Report, the Company rigidly follows the code of 
International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Standard of Auditing (ISA) with stipulated disclosures in 
Accounts and Financial Statements. This has been possible due to the high-level capability and integrity of M/s. Hoda Vasi 
Chowdhury & Co., Chartered Accountants whose uncompromising standards have played a very trustworthy role in the 
protection of interest of the investors. 

The existing auditors of the Company M/s. Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co., Chartered Accountants shall retire at the 26th 
Annual General Meeting. Being eligible, they have expressed their willingness to be re-appointed as external auditor for the 
year ending 30 June 2021. The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors has accepted the willingness of M/s. Hoda Vasi 
Chowdhury & Co., Chartered Accountants for appointment as external auditors for the year ending 30 June 2021, which is 
being placed in the 26th Annual General Meeting.

REPORTING AND COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
Corporate Governance is the practice of good citizenship, through which the Company is governed by the Board, keeping 
in view its accountability to the stakeholders and to the society. Every year our Company obtains a certificate from a 
Practicing Professional regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Code of the Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission (BSEC) vide Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018. 
During the year under review M/s. Ahmed Zaker & Co., Chartered Accountants has issued the Compliance Certificate.

M/s. Ahmed Zaker & Co., Chartered Accountants expressed their interest to be re-appointed as Corporate Governance 
Compliance Auditors of the Company for the year ending 2020-2021. The Board of Directors has accepted the willingness 
of M/s. Ahmed Zaker & Co., Chartered Accountants for appointment as Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors for the 
year ending 30 June 2021, which is being placed in the 26th Annual General Meeting for approval.

SUMMARY
As per the Company’s view, effective governance is a continuous process that must constantly be run through across all 
functions and employees to attain corporate goals. Being in compliance, the Company upholds the spirit of transparency 
and accountability to the society as a whole through the establishment of an effective governance regime. Hence, the 
Company drives good governance procedures across all functions as it is a key ingredient in managing the business 
professionally, effectively and responsibly, which makes it transparent, ethical law abiding and ensures accountability. 
Sufficient overall surveillance puts checks and balances to a good governance journey.

Overall, at M. I. Cement Factory Limited, we uphold our commitment to good corporate governance and pledge to 
continue to work in meeting the best interests of our shareholders and all other stakeholder groups. 
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Dated, Dhaka
14 November 2020

ANNEXURE-I
REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE TO THE BOARD

For the year ended 30 June 2020
AS PER BANGLADESH SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION’S NOTIFICATION NO.

BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 Dated 3 June 2018

The Audit Committee of the Board was duly constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the above 
noted Notification of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission. The objectives of the Audit Committee are to assist the 
Board of Directors in the following areas: 
 Establishing a culture of adequate internal control system to ensure that sufficient risk management system is in place 

to manage the company that financial reports disclosed by the company are reliable for its users. 
 Ensuring true and fair presentation of the financial statements in compliance with International Accounting Standards/ 

International Financial Reporting Standards and applicable regulatory requirements. 
 Reviewing the internal audit procedure of the Company and to ensure that the internal audit can continue their 

activities without any limitations. To review the efficiency and effectiveness of internal audit and to review whether the 
management is complying with recommendations made by the internal audit department. 

 Recommending appointment of external auditor, review audit work and reports submitted by external auditors and to 
ensure compliance and regularization of recommendations made by the external auditors. 

 Recommending appointment of Corporate Governance Compliance Auditor to ensure compliance of the Corporate 
Governance Code. 

 Reporting to the Board of Directors on mistakes, fraud and forgeries and other irregularities to ensure compliance and 
regularization. 

 Ensuring compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory rules and regulations and the directives made by the 
Board of Directors.

In pursuance to its objectives, the Audit Committee of the Board held 4 (Four) meetings during the year ended 30 June 
2020. The Committee reviewed compliance of policy issues, regulations and applicable laws in general and reports 
submitted by the internal audit department as well as reports submitted by the external auditors.
During the year under review, the Audit Committee emphasized on the following: 
 Reviewed the Quarterly, Half yearly and Annual Financial Statements of the Company before submission to the Board 

for their approval. 
 Reviewed the effectiveness of internal control and also reviewed audit objection of the Internal Audit Department and 

also reviewed points or suggestions and amendments by the Internal Auditor. 
 Met with the members of the external auditors and had discussion on the audit of financial statements of the 

Company. 
 Reviewed the Annual Financial Statements of the Company prior to submission to the Board for approval. The review 

was to ensure that the financial reporting and disclosures were in compliance with the Securities Laws, provision of the 
Companies Act, 1994, International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as applicable in Bangladesh. 

 Reviewed statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management. 
 Recommended the appointment of M/s. Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co., Chartered Accountants as External Auditors of 

the Company for the year ending 30 June 2021. 
 Recommended the appointment of M/s. Ahmed Zakir & Co., Chartered Accountants as Corporate Governance 

Compliance Auditors for the year ending 30 June 2021.
The committee is of the opinion that adequate controls and procedures are there to provide reasonable assurance that the 
Company’s assets are safeguarded, the liabilities are properly accounted for and financial activities of the Company is well managed.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

(Zakir Ahmed Khan)
Chairman

Audit Committee

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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ANNEXURE-II

REPORT OF THE NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC) TO THE BOARD
For the year ended 30 June 2020

In compliance with the Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018 issued by the 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission on Corporate Governance Code.

The NRC is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors. The NRC is responsible to the Board and they assist the Board of 
Directors in ensuring formulation of the nomination criteria or policy for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 
experiences and independence of directors and top-level executive as well as a policy for formal process of considering 
remuneration of directors, top level executive.

COMPOSITION OF THE NRC
In accordance with the requirements of the BSEC Notification, the NRC of the Company as appointed by the Board of 
Directors comprises of 2 (Two) non-executive directors as members and 1 (One) independent director as Chairman. The 
following are the members of the NRC:

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The terms of reference of the NRC have been determined by the Board. The NRC shall oversee, amongst others, the 
following matters and make reports with recommendation to the Board of Directors:

 formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and 
recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, top level executive, considering the 
following:

 a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate suitable 
directors to run the company successfully;

 b) the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

 c) remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short 
and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;

 devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educational 
background and nationality;

 identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in top level executive positions 
in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board;

 formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board;

 identifying the Company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection, transfer or 
replacement and promotion criteria;

 developing, recommending and reviewing annually the Company’s human resources and training policies.

Sl. No. Name Position Status
1 Prof. Dr. M. Abu Eusuf

Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah
Mr. Md. Almas Shimul
Mr. Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS

Independent Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

Sr. GM & Company Secretary

Chairman
Member
Member

Member Secretary

2
3
4
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MEETING OF NRC
According to the requirement of BSEC Notification, the NRC is required to sit for at least 1 (One) meeting in a year. NRC 
may hold special meeting as and when required. The NRC formally met once during the year ended 30 June 2020.

The NRC of the Company ensured/ observed & approved the following activities:

a) To confirm the Terms of Reference (ToR) of the Committee.

b) To assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or policy for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes, experiences and independence of directors and top-level executive as well as a policy for formal process 
of considering remuneration of directors, top level executive.

c) To formulate a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educational 
background and nationality.

d) To identify persons who are qualified to be appointed in top level executive position in accordance with the criteria 
laid down, and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board.

e) To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board.

f) To identify the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection, transfer or 
replacement and promotion criteria.

g) To develop, recommend and review of the company’s human resources and their training policies.

h) To confirm the nomination and remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee (NRC).

 Adopted the NRC Policy and Terms of Reference as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

 Recommended the Code of Conduct for the Chairperson of the Board, other Board members and Chief Executive 
Officer pursuant to requirements of clause 1(7) of the BSEC Notification.

 Formulating and approving a plan for 2020-21 for fulling requirements and evaluations specified in Clause 6(5)(b) of 
the BSEC Notification.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
 The policy of the NRC is approved.

 The NRC expresses their sincere thanks to the members of the Board of Directors, Management of the Company for 
their outstanding support and co-operation.

 

On behalf of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 Prof. Dr. M. Abu Eusuf 
Chairman

Nomination and Remuneration CommitteeDated, Dhaka
14 November 2020

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE



Respected Shareholders,

Assalamu Alaikum Wa-Rahmatullah.

I extend my warm welcome to you all in the 26th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the company. It is your kind 
patronage and active support that have always resulted in continued business operation. As you know, at the letter 
part of 2019-2020 we had passed through a hard time. The COVID-19 pandemic has shattered the economy and life 
of the people across the world. Amidst this economic onslaught and social disruptions, we completed perhaps one of 
the most challenging years in our history.

The sales of cement dropped around 46 per cent in April following serious disruptions in constructions. The 
manufacturers have observed the severe fall in sales, despite they had expected double digit growth in 2020 after 
achieving above 7.0 per cent growth in previous year. the sales of cement declined drastically as the Novel Corona 
Virus has crippled the Tk. 300 billion industry.

MESSAGE FROM THE
CHAIRMAN
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In the upcoming months and indeed the full year, the drop in sales of cement will be significant as the economy will 
take time to revive. the annual demand for cement in normal situation is around 33 million tonnes against the 
installed capacity of around 78 million tonnes. The manufacturers earlier also expected to enhance their capacity by 
another 11 million tonnes in next three years. Many local manufacturers installed capacity without proper analysis 
in respect to feasibility, future trend and other relevant factors over the last 5-8 years. The cement manufacturers are 
bearing the burden of their unused capacity, nearly 45 per cent, installed and are trying to servive for better days.

Total investments in cement sector stood at around Tk. 300 billion, of which Tk. 190 billion came through the bank 
loans. Although more than 75 cement manufacturing companies have been installed in Bangladesh, currently 35 
large and small scale companies are producing cement for local and overseas markets. The sales of individual 
manufacturers have dropped ranging from 50 per cent to 80 per cent amid the lockdown and pandemic. People 
were busy to meet expenses of daily essentials amid the ongoing crisis. Apart from closing most of the ongoing 
constructions, many individual home builders have also deferred their construction plans. The disruptions in 
different mega projects affected the demand of cement significantly. Apart from the ongoing decline in sales, the 
manufacturers are bearing the burden of the unused capacity earlier installed with a hope of better business. The 
government's measures taken to contain the infection of the deadly virus have suspended/delayed the construction 
works of all major infrastructure projects including the Padma Bridge, Rooppur Nuclear Power Plant, Matarbari 
Power Plant, Karnaphuli River Tunnel and Dhaka Metro Rail. The delay in the constructions of mega projects has 
affected the sales of cement significantly. Bangladesh is still one of the lowest consuming countries of cement 
products in the world. Per capita consumption in Bangladesh was about 200 kg, while it is about 1,700 kg in China, 
1,250 kg in South Korea, 800 kg in Malaysia, 500 kg in Thailand, 270 kg in Myanmar and 312 kg in India. According 
to data of BCMA, individual house builders consume 50 per cent of demand, developers/contractors grab about 25 
per cent and the government controlled projects fill up the remaining 25 per cent.

Due to Covid-19 situation sales volume has dropped by 4.24% and extreme completion led to price reduction of 
cement resulting in reduction of revenue by 5.14%.  The Cost of goods sold has been reduced 1.92% which hasn’t 
reduced in line with the revenue because of the increased price of the Raw Material and the AIT imposed by the 
Govt. But we were able to reduce the Administrative expenses and Selling and Distribution Expenses by 18.71 % and 
11.76% respectively.

At the same time in the fiscal year 2019-2020, the government imposed 5 percent Tax on imports of raw materials, 
which was reduced to 3 percent since the beginning of this calendar year. As the tax is not adjustable, it is taken 
away regardless of whether the companies make profit or not and becomes the minimum tax payable 

I want to thank the employees of the company for their dedication and hard work amid the devastation of COVID-19 
pandemic. It is their passionate and committed effort that drives the business forward delivering excellent results 
and strong growth. The success we have achieved was only possible due to their collective efforts. 

In conclusion, I pray to the almighty Allah Subhanahu Wa Taala that, may our beloved Founder Managing Director 
Alhaj Md. Khabir Uddin Mollah be blessed with Jannatul Ferdous and also we may be blessed with success in 
developing the Company’s assets and maximizing the shareholders’ equity and achieving the desired prosperity to 
help us in the upcoming years.

Mohammed Jahangir Alam
Chairman

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN
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Dear Distinguished Shareholders,

Assalamu Alaikum Wa-Rahmatullah.

I heartily welcome you all at the 26th Annual General Meeting (AGM) with deep gratitude as well as recalling the 
memories of the Founder Managing Director, late Alhaj Md. Khabir Uddin Mollah who had not only sowed the seed of 
the Company over two decades back but had also toiled with heart and soul leading to its healthy growth. His 
contribution to the Company’s continuous growth and development was not only for financial wealth but also he was 
motivated by his strong zeal for intrinsic values for ethics and morality in every sphere of activities. Let us pray to the 
Almighty Allah (SWT) granting him with the Jannatul Ferdous.

STATEMENT FROM THE
MANAGING DIRECTOR
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STATEMENT FROM THE MD

In this context, my message to you all who have invested in the Company with high hopes and aspirations, is that 
following his foot-steps, the Board of Directors continues to manage the affairs of the Company with dedication 
standing on the pillars of ethics and morality without fear and favour. The Company’s operational success also largely 
depend on the socio-economic national & international normal as well as un-natural condition as prevails from time 
to time as we have seen and experienced at the sudden outbreak of CORONA VIRUS (Covid-19) engulfing the entire 
world unprecedented.

COVID-19 pandemic has confronted the world with an unprecedented situation and has profoundly impacted human 
lives and well-being. The massive shock of the pandemic and lockdown measures around the world to contain it have 
plunged the global economy into a severe contraction.

According to IMF projections, the global economy would contract by 3% in 2020, while the World Bank predicts that 
to decline by 2.10-3.90%. GDP growth of Bangladesh fell to 5.24% in the Financial Year 2019-2020, lowest in 12 years, 
as the pandemic ravaged the economy for at least a third of the financial year. Country’s export earnings registered a 
sharp decline of 16.90% at US $33.67 billion. 

During the year Company has earned revenue of Tk. 1,387.62 crore, which is less by Tk. 75.22 crore than that of the last 
year. In line, the trend of the Net Profit After Tax is apparent.

We would live to bring to your kind notice that the Board of Directors approved the postponement of setting up of the 
6th Unit of the M. I. Cement Factory Limited Board Meeting held on 8 October 2020. Both the technical and commercial 
negotiations with the international contractors got suspended with the outbreak of Covid-19 as well as the financing 
arrangement. With the outbreak of Covid-19, cement industry has seen a sharp decline in demand with the entire 
industry operating at substantially lower capacity levels. The demand is expected to remain tepid in the next two to 
three years until the economy makes a rebound. The Board is therefore of the opinion that the existing capacity will 
be able to fulfill the cement demand over this period. As such the decision for this unit can be considered at a later 
stage.

Finally, I express my gratitude to you, dear shareholders, for extending invaluable support at all times. I wish you all 
good health and safe life.

Molla Mohammad Majnu
Managing Director
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
to the Members for the year ended 30 June 2020

The Board of Directors of M. I. Cement Factory Limited (MICFL) welcomes you to the 26th Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
of the Company. It is a pleasure and a privilege on the part of the Board of Directors to present the Directors’ Report and 
the Auditors’ Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of M. I. Cement Factory Limited for the year ended 30 
June 2020 for your valued consideration, approval and adoption. 

The Directors’ Report is prepared in compliance with the provisions of Section 184 of the Companies Act, 1994 and the 
Listing Rules of the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and the Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) and Bangladesh 
Securities and Exchange Commission’s (BSEC) Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 
2018.

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN THE CEMENT INDUSTRY

The industry started well in the first two months of 2020. Upto February, the YTD growth was around 10%. However, with 
the onset of COVID in the month of March, the industry suffered the steepest decline in decades. At the close of May 2020, 
the YTD decline was around 13% compared to the same period last year. However, from June 2020, the industry started 
showing signs of recovery. By the close of September 2020, the decline narrowed down to 5.7% compared to the same 
period of previous year. We expect this recovery to continue and end the year close to the demand of the previous year. 
Demand in 2020 is expected to be around 34 million tons. 

On the supply side, big players continue to add capacity. Total effective capacity is around 78 million tons with additional 
capacities coming up in the ensuing years. This has resulted in intense competition with big players trying to increase their 
capacity utilization. Cement prices are flat with all the players offering various discounts and offers to increase their 
volumes. On the cost side, raw material prices came down in the last quarter of the financial year with the onset of the 
pandemic. Other overheads also declined for most players mainly due to reduced spending as a result of the pandemic. 
The unbridled increase in finance costs have been arrested with the government initiative to cap the interest rate to 9% and 
the stimulus package given in the last quarter. However, there has been an adverse impact due to increase in receivables 
pushing up finance costs.

The biggest challenge to the industry has been from Income tax, custom duty & VAT. Currently, advance income tax is 
being deducted at source at the rate of 3% on all imports under section 53. If the impact of assessment value is considered, 
the effective advance income tax comes to around 3.4%. In addition, tax is being deducted at source under Section 52 by 
customer at the rate of 3%. Hence, the effective advance tax rate would be around 7%. 

This is now the minimum tax under Section 82(C) for cement, steel industry and ferroalloy producers, that is highly 
discriminatory.

In the current intense competitive situation, the minimum tax of around 7% cannot be adjusted against profits. As a result, 
all these companies are making losses this year and the situation is likely to worsen in the coming years.

In addition, threshold for computing disallowance on account of expenditure on overseas travelling has been decreased 
from the existing rate of 1.25% to 0.50% of disclosed turnover. Promotional expenses exceeding 0.50% of disclosed 
business turnover will be disallowed. This will have a major impact to all corporate houses since promotion expense is vital 
to increase sales. 

Looking at 2021, much will depend upon how the economy will grow. The second wave of the pandemic has started hitting 
the western world. This will depress demand for imports leading to a decline in our exports as well as prices of apparels. 
The remittance from migrant workers may also be impacted. However, the Bangladesh economy is resilient with a strong 
domestic economy. Hence, we can expect a rebound but the extent of growth is shrouded in uncertainty. Cement demand 
may again touch the magical double digit depending upon how the economy fares. The government’s continuing focus on 
development and specially the mega projects will mainly fuel demand. 

Growth of the industry will however hinge on whether the government adopts a business friendly approach to the cement 
industry. Unless the issues relating to customs, tax and VAT are addressed, the industry will continue to be in the red. This 
may lead to some players defaulting in their loans resulting in freezing of facilities and stoppage of business. As explained
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 at the outset, the margins are already squeezed due to the overcapacity situation. If this situation persists in the medium 
and long term, most of the players in the industry will become sick. The country cannot afford to see this promising sector 
in a plight that is vital for the economic growth of the nation.

RISK FACTORS

There are various risk factors associated with the nature of the activities of the Company. Although, the risks of the industry 
are continuously evolving, the Company has taken reasonable steps to identify material risks that could hamper the 
business of the Company and has adopted preventive measures in this respect.

Over Capacity Related Risk

Over capacity in the industry is a matter of concern as it can significantly intensify competition and price confrontation 
among the Cement Companies. But your Company is well aware of this risk as we strive to explore new locations for export 
of cement. At the same time, we are leveraging our deep understanding of the market combined with our strong brand 
equity backed by our high-class sales and marketing workforce to improve our sales. At the same time, our core strength 
remains in our uncompromising quest for quality.

Technology Related Risks

Technology is evolving at a blistering pace. Your Company is keeping a close eye on the evolving technologies, be it 
manufacturing or IT and implementing the same in a cost-effective manner.

Sales Risk

As explained above, your Company is well position to capitalize on sales opportunities in a fast-growing market. 

Price Risk

Price risk represents the risk of major cost increases that the Company is unable to pass on to its customers. The Company 
continually evaluates its product cost and looks for profitable channels of distribution. At the same time, it continuously 
strives to adjust prices in line with cost increases keeping in mind the market forces that are determining price.

Operational Risk

Operational risks may arise in the supply chain and in the manufacturing process. Your Company continually evaluates the 
risks and takes appropriate steps to mitigate the same. This includes having long term partnerships with suppliers and 
contracts with them. We also continually explore the option to broaden our supplier base to reduce our dependency and 
optimize cost. Spare parts planning and management is another crucial area where your Company places considerable 
focus.

Quality Control Risks

Your Company’s main pillar lies in an uncompromising stance on quality. This has earned the respect of the customers and 
enhanced the brand equity. Quality is a way of life and a philosophy in your Company. Other than production, we 
continually monitor all business processes so that these can be professionally managed.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument would cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to 
discharge an obligation. It mainly comprises of receivables from customer, trade and investment securities. To alleviate the 
credit risk against trade receivable the Company has a policy to obtain security instruments from customers and strong 
control over overdue balances. 

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company might encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that have to be settled by delivering cash or another financial assets or liabilities. The Company's approach to 
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managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquid assets to meet its liabilities when due, under both 
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to Company's reputations.

Market risk

Market risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control risk exposures within 
acceptable parameters while optimizing the return. Market risk comprises three types of risks: Currency Risk, Interest Rate 
Risk and Commodity Risk.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument might fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Company is exposed to currency risk on its certain short and long term debts and purchases that are 
denominated in foreign currencies.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the fluctuation of interest rate assigned with certain financial asset or liabilities. Exposure to 
interest risk of the Company at the reporting dates is only related with outstanding offshore loan/commitment having 
LIBOR plus interest rate.

(iii) Commodity risk

Commodity risk arises from fluctuation of value of commodity in terms of price, quantity, cost and political condition of the 
market from or to which the Company procure or sell product respectively. Exposure to commodity risk of the Company at 
the reporting date may not be significant.

Your Company continuously looks for alternate sources of supply to minimize cost increases. Wherever practicable, 
contracts are signed to freeze the prices for a certain period.

DISCUSSION ON COST OF GOODS SOLD, GROSS PROFIT MARGIN AND NET PROFIT MARGIN

In the year 2019-2020, Sales Revenue has decreased by 5.14% compared to 2018-2019 mainly due to decrease in sales 
volume by 4.79%. However, we are happy to inform you that the Export of our cement has increased by 9.13% amounting 
to Tk. 4.41 Crore compared to the previous year. Cost of Goods Sold (COGS) has decreased by 1.92% in the year 2019-2020 
over previous year due to suspension of cement production and the price drop on COVID-19 situation. The Earnings Per 
Share (EPS) of the Company sharply decreased and stood at Tk. (0.89) in 2019-2020 where as in 2018-2019 it was Tk. 1.69. 
In the year 2019-2020 Factory Overheads decreased by 5.47% i.e. Tk. 9.40 Crore compared to 2018-2019.

Although the Gross Profit decreased by 26.32% from Tk. 1,929.82 million in 2018-2019 to Tk. 1,421.85 million in 2019-2020, 
the Gross Profit Margin decreased by 22.33%. In 2019-2020 Administrative Expenses and Selling & Distribution Expenses 
decreased by 18.71% and 11.76% respectively. Administration Expenses and Selling & Distribution Expenses have 
decreased across the line since the Company took steps to contain costs with the outbreak of the COVID-19 virus in the last 
quarter of the financial year. Advertisement and Promotional Expenses reduced by Taka 6.86 Crore with the balance 
reduction coming out of the other heads. 

Net Finance Cost increased by Taka 9.91 Crore. Reduced profitability has led to decline in Operating Cash Flow with 
consequent increase in borrowings. Current Tax charge has marginally gone up by Taka 97 lacs despite the Company having 
a loss before tax. Minimum tax rate of 0.60% of receipts has been applied plus increased disallowance under Section 30 of 
the Income Tax Ordinance, 1984.

Non-operating Income reduced by Taka 82 lacs mainly due to increased loss from investment in shares amounting to Taka 
86 lacs, Dividend Income by Taka 18 lacs, Other Income by Taka 16 lacs mainly offset by reduced loss in sales of fixed assets 
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 at the outset, the margins are already squeezed due to the overcapacity situation. If this situation persists in the medium 
and long term, most of the players in the industry will become sick. The country cannot afford to see this promising sector 
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RISK FACTORS

There are various risk factors associated with the nature of the activities of the Company. Although, the risks of the industry 
are continuously evolving, the Company has taken reasonable steps to identify material risks that could hamper the 
business of the Company and has adopted preventive measures in this respect.

Over Capacity Related Risk

Over capacity in the industry is a matter of concern as it can significantly intensify competition and price confrontation 
among the Cement Companies. But your Company is well aware of this risk as we strive to explore new locations for export 
of cement. At the same time, we are leveraging our deep understanding of the market combined with our strong brand 
equity backed by our high-class sales and marketing workforce to improve our sales. At the same time, our core strength 
remains in our uncompromising quest for quality.

Technology Related Risks

Technology is evolving at a blistering pace. Your Company is keeping a close eye on the evolving technologies, be it 
manufacturing or IT and implementing the same in a cost-effective manner.

Sales Risk

As explained above, your Company is well position to capitalize on sales opportunities in a fast-growing market. 

Price Risk

Price risk represents the risk of major cost increases that the Company is unable to pass on to its customers. The Company 
continually evaluates its product cost and looks for profitable channels of distribution. At the same time, it continuously 
strives to adjust prices in line with cost increases keeping in mind the market forces that are determining price.

Operational Risk

Operational risks may arise in the supply chain and in the manufacturing process. Your Company continually evaluates the 
risks and takes appropriate steps to mitigate the same. This includes having long term partnerships with suppliers and 
contracts with them. We also continually explore the option to broaden our supplier base to reduce our dependency and 
optimize cost. Spare parts planning and management is another crucial area where your Company places considerable 
focus.

Quality Control Risks

Your Company’s main pillar lies in an uncompromising stance on quality. This has earned the respect of the customers and 
enhanced the brand equity. Quality is a way of life and a philosophy in your Company. Other than production, we 
continually monitor all business processes so that these can be professionally managed.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument would cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to 
discharge an obligation. It mainly comprises of receivables from customer, trade and investment securities. To alleviate the 
credit risk against trade receivable the Company has a policy to obtain security instruments from customers and strong 
control over overdue balances. 

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company might encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that have to be settled by delivering cash or another financial assets or liabilities. The Company's approach to 

amounting to Taka 30 lacs. Share of Profit from Associates has declined by Taka 71 lacs mainly due to decline of business 
of Mother Company that has a spin off effect in the Associate Company leading to reduced profitability.

As a result, in 2019-2020, the Net Profit (after tax) decreased from Tk. 251.15 million to Tk. (132.45) million as well as Net 
Profit Margin (after tax) also decreased compared to the previous year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year the Company carried out a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of business. 
The name of the related parties, relationship, nature and their value are shown in the Note No. 43.0 of the Financial 
Statements.

Explanation on significant variance that occurs between Quarterly Financial Statements and Annual Financial Statements:

REMUNERATIONS OF DIRECTORS 

Two Members of the Board namely Mr. Md. Alamgir Kabir and Mr. Molla Mohammad Majnu are working full time as 
executive directors in the Company. Mr. Md. Alamgir Kabir is looking after the overall Factory Operations whereas Mr. Molla 
Mohammad Majnu is looking after Marketing & Sales. The Directors Remuneration, Meeting Attendance Fees has been 
mentioned in the Note No. 30.0, 32.0 and 33.0 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. being a listed Company, has a well-defined Internal Control System based on its high-tech large 
scale production capacity to ensure the business operations. The system ensures reasonable assurance of the internal 
checking system of monetary transactions and safeguarding of assets. The Internal Control System ensures the statutory 
compliance of regulatory bodies. The Internal Control Systems are reviewed by the Internal Audit & Compliance 
Department of the Company and reported to the Audit Committee. Annual planning defines budget on the basis of 
macroeconomic analyses based on market conditions and cost targets. The Internal Control System ensures receiving of 
quality raw materials, stores & spares and non-current assets and producing quality cement for the customers. Quality of 
the goods are tested by recognized testing authorities.

In order to establish a strong Internal Control System in the Company, Statutory Auditors’ play a vital role through reporting 
of true and fair view of income, expense, assets and liabilities of the Financial Statements. They ensure the interest of the 
Investors and safeguarding of the Company’s assets and also ensure complete application of Corporate Governance vide 
Code No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80. The code of International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International 
Standards of Auditing (ISA) with stipulated disclosures of important items of Financial Statements. Corporate Governance 
involves decision making process for any going concern corporate body for the present and future benefit of all 

Particulars First Quarter
2019-2020

Half Year
2019-2020

Third Quarter
2019-2020

July 2019-
June 2020

Revenue 
Gross Profit 
Profit before Tax
Net profit after Tax
Shareholders’ Equity
Total Assets
Total Current Assets
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Current Ratio (Time)

3,195,596,691
454,060,175
113,029,546
84,772,160

7,247,001,064
20,559,974,077
11,970,432,265
11,031,143,323
13,312,973,019

1.09

6,949,954,908
744,536,049

           (10,273,612)
        (280,059,824)

6,735,420,276
20,467,754,089
12,003,797,241
11,577,551,114
13,732,333,813

1.04

11,445,311,329
1,383,606,965

141,926,802
   (236,888,199)

6,780,343,097
19,583,597,550
11,227,376,117
10,900,552,069
12,803,254,454

1.03

13,876,211,430
1,421,850,621

(28,220,185)
       (132,453,273)

6,887,115,714
19,084,838,495
10,506,676,128
10,419,742,836
12,197,722,782

1.00
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stakeholders. These aspects of governance are followed by the Board of Directors, Management, Operational participants 
and workers and others in achieving common goals like to increase in the profit of the Company.

EXPLANATION ON SIGNIFICANT DEVIATION FROM THE LAST YEAR’S OPERATING RESULTS

Revenue:

Decrease in total revenue by 5.14% has mainly arisen from decrease in volume 4.79% with the remaining due to marginal 
decrease in average selling price. The volume and price drop is mainly the effect of COVID-19 in the last quarter of the 
financial year that led to severe depletion in cement demand.

Cost of Goods Sold:

Cost of Sales increased by Taka 7.93 per bag. Raw Material cost went up by Taka 4.09 per bag and factory overhead by Taka 
3.84 per bag. Increase in raw material cost was across all raw materials. Total factory overhead went up by Taka 9.40 Crores 
mainly due to increase in depreciation rate of mother vessel that led to an increase of Taka 11.61 Crore. Had the 
deprecation rate remained the same, factory overhead would have decreased by Taka 2.61 Crore.

Gross Profit:

Gross Profit percentage declined by 2.94% mainly for marginal reduction in selling price and increase in cost of sales for 
reasons explained above.

Operating Profit:

Administration Expenses have reduced by Taka 5.80 Crore. Expenses have decreased across the line since the Company 
took steps to contain costs with the outbreak of the COVID-19 virus in the last quarter of the financial year. Selling and 
Distribution Expenses have reduced by Taka 7.13 Crore. Advertisement and Promotional Expenses reduced by Taka 6.86 
Crore with the balance reduction coming out of the other heads.

Earnings Per Share (EPS):

During 2019-2020, the EPS decreased by Tk. 2.58 from the previous year due to sharp decrease in revenue and sales 
quantity due to outbreak of the COVID-19 virus. 

5 YEAR’S OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

Summary of key operating and financial data of preceding five years and the current year are presented in Annexure-I.

DIVIDEND RECOMMENDATION

Despite the fact that the Company has incurred a net loss for this year the Board has decided to declare a dividend using 
its retained earnings. The Board is of the opinion that this has been an unusual financial year leading to this loss and is 
confident that the Company will return to profit in the coming year once normalcy returns. The Board of Directors in their 
meeting held on 14 November 2020 has recommended Cash Dividend @ 10% i.e. Tk. 1.00 (Taka one) only per share of       
Tk. 10.00 each aggregating to Tk. 148,500,000 for the year ended 30 June 2020 subject to the approval of the shareholders' 
in the 26th Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 29 December 2020.

The appropriation of the Net Profit earned during the year 2019-2020 is made in the following manner:

Particulars Amount (Taka)
Retained Earnings (Carried forward from previous year) 1,957,937,216 
Add: Revaluation Reserve, Adjustment against lease assets and Depreciation on Revaluation Assets realized 28,605,629 
Total Reserve 1,986,542,845 
Add: Net Profit for the year (132,453,273)
Total funds available for appropriation 1,854,089,572 
Less: Proposed Dividend: Cash Dividend @ 10% 148,500,000 
Undistributed Profit 1,705,589,572
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ATTENDANCE OF THE BOARD MEETING, AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING AND NOMINATION & REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE MEETING

During the year ended 30 June 2020, Board Meeting, Audit Committee Meeting and Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee (NRC) Meeting were held as per the compliance of the Corporate Governance Code and the attendance of the 
Directors are shown below: 

SHARE HOLDINGS PATTERN

The Shareholding Pattern of the Company for the period ended 30 June 2020 is shown in Annexure-II.

DIRECTOR’S ELECTION AND RE-APPOINTMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1994 and Clause No. 81 of the Articles of Association of the Company 
one-third of the Directors shall retire by rotation in every Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, 2 (Two) Directors of the 
Company will retire in the 26th Annual General Meeting. The Retiring Directors are:

1. Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam
2. Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah

Being eligible they offer themselves for re-election. A brief profile of the two Directors is disclosed in Annexure-III as per 
clause 1(5)(xxiv) of BSEC Notification dated 3 June 2018.

Board Members
Board 

Meeting
Attendance

Audit 
Committee

Meeting
Attendance 

NRC 
Meeting

Attendance 

Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam 
Non-executive Director

9/9 - -

Mr. Md. Alamgir Kabir
Executive Director 

9/9 - -

Mr. Molla Mohammad Majnu 
Executive Director

9/9 - -

Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah
Non-executive Director
Member, Audit Committee 
Member, Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

8/9 2/4 1/1

Mr. Md. Almas Shimul
Non-executive Director
Member, Audit Committee 
Member, Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

5/9 3/4 1/1

Mr. Zakir Ahmed Khan
Independent Director
Chairman, Audit Committee 

6/9 4/4 -

Prof. Dr. M. Abu Eusuf
Independent Director
Chairman, Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

9/9 - 1/1

Mr. Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS

Position

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Managing Director

Additional Managing
Director

Director

Independent
Director

Independent
Director 

Company Secretary 9/9 4/4 1/1
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stakeholders. These aspects of governance are followed by the Board of Directors, Management, Operational participants 
and workers and others in achieving common goals like to increase in the profit of the Company.

EXPLANATION ON SIGNIFICANT DEVIATION FROM THE LAST YEAR’S OPERATING RESULTS

Revenue:

Decrease in total revenue by 5.14% has mainly arisen from decrease in volume 4.79% with the remaining due to marginal 
decrease in average selling price. The volume and price drop is mainly the effect of COVID-19 in the last quarter of the 
financial year that led to severe depletion in cement demand.

Cost of Goods Sold:

Cost of Sales increased by Taka 7.93 per bag. Raw Material cost went up by Taka 4.09 per bag and factory overhead by Taka 
3.84 per bag. Increase in raw material cost was across all raw materials. Total factory overhead went up by Taka 9.40 Crores 
mainly due to increase in depreciation rate of mother vessel that led to an increase of Taka 11.61 Crore. Had the 
deprecation rate remained the same, factory overhead would have decreased by Taka 2.61 Crore.

Gross Profit:

Gross Profit percentage declined by 2.94% mainly for marginal reduction in selling price and increase in cost of sales for 
reasons explained above.

Operating Profit:

Administration Expenses have reduced by Taka 5.80 Crore. Expenses have decreased across the line since the Company 
took steps to contain costs with the outbreak of the COVID-19 virus in the last quarter of the financial year. Selling and 
Distribution Expenses have reduced by Taka 7.13 Crore. Advertisement and Promotional Expenses reduced by Taka 6.86 
Crore with the balance reduction coming out of the other heads.

Earnings Per Share (EPS):

During 2019-2020, the EPS decreased by Tk. 2.58 from the previous year due to sharp decrease in revenue and sales 
quantity due to outbreak of the COVID-19 virus. 

5 YEAR’S OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

Summary of key operating and financial data of preceding five years and the current year are presented in Annexure-I.

DIVIDEND RECOMMENDATION

Despite the fact that the Company has incurred a net loss for this year the Board has decided to declare a dividend using 
its retained earnings. The Board is of the opinion that this has been an unusual financial year leading to this loss and is 
confident that the Company will return to profit in the coming year once normalcy returns. The Board of Directors in their 
meeting held on 14 November 2020 has recommended Cash Dividend @ 10% i.e. Tk. 1.00 (Taka one) only per share of       
Tk. 10.00 each aggregating to Tk. 148,500,000 for the year ended 30 June 2020 subject to the approval of the shareholders' 
in the 26th Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 29 December 2020.

The appropriation of the Net Profit earned during the year 2019-2020 is made in the following manner:

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION AS TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the governance of the Company and as part of preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements, the Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge that:

 As per IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, no items of income and expense are to be presented as 
“extraordinary gain or loss” in the financial statements. Accordingly, recognized in the financial statements.

 The financial statements have been prepared by the Management of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the 
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

 Proper Books of Account of the Company have been maintained.

 Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and that the 
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

 The International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in 
Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the financial statements and any departure there from has been 
adequately disclosed.

 The minority shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, or in the interest of, controlling shareholders 
acting either directly or indirectly and have effective means of redress.

 Based on the available information on the future, the Directors consider that the Company has the plans and resources 
to manage its business risks successfully, as it has a diverse range of businesses and remains financially strong. The 
Board of Directors have made appropriate enquiries and analyzed the significant financial, operating as well as other 
indicators for enabling them to understand the ability of the Company to continue its operations for a foreseeable 
period. Directors are convinced and have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to 
continue its operation consistently for the foreseeable future. Therefore, the Company adopted the going concern 
basis in preparing these financial statements.

 No bonus shares or stock dividend has been declared as interim dividend.

 There is no amount left unutilized of the IPO Fund and no deterioration of the IPO Fund took place during the year 
under review.

COMPANY’S OPERATIONS 

The total installed capacity and actual output of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2020 compared to 30 June 2019 
was as follows:

Installed Capacity (Metric Ton)

Actual Output (Metric Ton)

Capacity Utilization 

Growth of actual output in 2019-2020

3,324,000 MT

2,306,260 MT

69%      

3,324,000 MT

2,408,302 MT

73%      

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019

(4.24%)
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The trend of Production in line with Installed Capacity of last five years is given below:

SALES PERFORMANCE

Over the years the Company enjoyed an increase of its sales revenue. This revenue enhancement is a combination of the 
superior quality of our products and value-added services, the strength of our distribution channel and the promotional 
activities adopted by the Company. The quality of our products is rigorously monitored in order to ensure that these 
exceeds the parameters set in the standards like ISO 9000:2008, Bangladesh Standards & Testing Institution (BSTI) and 
Bureau of Indian Standards (BIS). 

A graphical view of sales performance of last five years is given below:

CAPACITY VS PRODUCTION
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s operating and financial results of 2019-2020 as compared to the previous year 2018-2019 are summarized 
hereunder:

CSR ACTIVITIES

Your Company recognizes the need for being a responsible corporate citizen. As a part of sustainable development, it takes 
seriously its corporate social responsibilities. Some of the CSR activities are detailed in Annexure-VIII.

EXPORT

Before 1995, Bangladesh was importing cement. However, export of cement started in the year 2003. The brand that 
pioneered export was none other than ‘Crown Cement’, the brand of M. I. Cement Factory Ltd.

Presently exports are also being carried out competing with the product of importing countries. Cement export data says 
that Crown Cement exported the major portion of the national export volume in cement and significantly contributes to 
country’s economy by earning foreign currency.

By taking a Bangladeshi product beyond the Borders, ‘Crown Cement’ is the only brand, which has been awarded with 
National Export Trophy (Gold) twice consecutively for the years 2008-2009 and 2009-2010 and National Export Trophy 
(Bronze) in the year 2013-2014. During the financial year 2019-2020 under review we earned foreign exchange to the tune 
of about Tk. 527 million which is 9.13% more compared to the previous year of Tk. 483 million. A graphical view of export 
sales performance of last five years is given below:

Revenue
Cost of Goods Sold
Gross Profit
Net Profit (Before Tax)
Net Profit (After Tax)
Total Assets
Net Asset Value (NAV)
Net Operating Cash Flows
Earnings Per Share (EPS)
NAV Per Share (NAVPS)
Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (NOCFPS)
Gross Margin 
Net Margin (Before Tax)
Net Margin (After Tax)

          13,876,211,430 
        (12,454,360,809)
            1,421,850,621 
                (28,220,185)
              (132,453,273)
          19,084,838,495 
            6,887,115,713 

548,157,464 
                             (0.89)
                             46.38 
                               3.69 

10.25%
(0.20%)
(0.95%)

14,628,432,591
(12,698,608,615)

1,929,823,976
435,412,444
251,150,155

19,277,983,869
7,160,477,708

266,848,976
1.69

48.22
1.80

13.19%
2.98%
1.72%

Particulars 2019-2020
Taka

2018-2019
Taka

EXPORT REVENUE (IN MILLION TAKA)
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT)

Information Technology (IT) Department is one of the core parts of the M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. (Crown Cement Group). 
The department has been playing important role in accomplishing group’s mission by providing and protecting 
information in all forms.

During the time of COVID-19 pandemic, the IT department provided support to all Strategic Business Unit (SBU) of the 
group through remote communication platform. All units are now under the IT platform and we were able to reduce the 
response and support time by a significant margin. A great number of IT devices were upgraded through cost effective 
solution and those were delivered to new ghats. 

In the coming days, more robust apps will be used to process business data. This secondary system will be integrated with 
the existing S/4HANA ERP.

HUMAN RESOURCES

M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. (Crown Cement) considers its employees as one of the important resources of the Company. 
Therefore, In June 2014, Human Resource Department separately started its journey from HR & Admin Department with 03 
personnel. Now It has a team of 10 (ten) persons within the Company. Our purpose is to provide an enabling and learning 
environment to our employees so that they are motivated to unleash their full potential and usher a climate of efficiency 
and effectiveness across the organization.

We have developed Company KPI along with Departmental & Individual KPI as per Company budget and targets. We have 
uploaded individuals KPI in our ERP Software, so each employee can see their own KPI in their individual account. Based on 
KPI target, we regularly follow the individuals KPI achievements. We do the annual evaluation as per popular Bell Curve 
Matrix and find out the performer and non-performer employees. In the coming year, we will do the online evaluation. 

In this year 2020, the whole world faced a new era that is Covid-19. WHO (World Health Organization) declared a pandemic 
worldwide. In this new normal situation, we also took some precautions for our employees to ensure that they are 
protected from infection. If any employee became Covid-19 positive, we provided him maximum 21 days’ special paid leave 
and some allowances for treatment from Employee’s Welfare Fund. We took initiative to do the corona virus test for 
Covid-19 suspected employees.  In the initial stage of country lockdown, we allowed employees for home office and roster 
duty. We also developed a policy for Covid-19 of Do’s and Dont’s, safety measures etc. 

We have developed a survey format for employee’s satisfaction to the Company. We have taken initiative to digitalize the 
HRIS from manual. Due to Pandemic situation, we took interviews of candidates for recruitment via Skype or Zoom Apps. 
Because of this pandemic, rather than outside training we encouraged our in-house trainer to develop employee’s skill as 
per need and working on online Training Portal for knowledge sharing with each other. 

The manpower of our Company of last five years is shown to the following graph:
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SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT

At M. I. cement Factory Ltd. safety is a core value that remains one of our top priorities. We are committed to the safety of 
our employees, our contractors and our local communities. Our safety programmes are designed to reinforce the safety 
culture among all personnel. EHS (Environment, Health and Safety) policy is based on sound principles and includes 
compliance and applicable national and international legislation, industry standards and best practices, managing EHS with 
the same value as all business operations and promoting a positive EHS culture within the Company and Bangladesh.         
M. I. Cement factory Ltd. seeks to achieve the satisfactory level of EHS management systems and recently voluntarily 
pursued and received accreditation to the highest international standards for our quality management system ISO-9001. 
As a part of our commitment, we are processing a fully integrated EHS management system which will certify by the 
internationally recognized ISO-14001, ISO-45001 standards.

In 2020, M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. continued to improve its Environment Health & Safety performance in all regions, with 
strong progress in the long-term injury frequency rate and the fatality. At the end of June 2020, our Lost Time Incident 
Frequency Rate (LTIFR) was 1.3 and there was zero fatality. To fulfil our Environmental Health and Safety (EHS) departmental 
zero fatality commitment we engaged responsible initiatives, various intensive safety programs, training, creation of 
positive mindset regarding EHS, Safety culture and Work Permit on the following top six high risks task responsible for 
on-site fatalities and critical incidents:

 Confined Spaces
 Work at Height
 Hot Work
 Electrical Work 
 Maintenance Work and 
 Demolition Work

We conduct Periodic Medical Examinations (PME) of our employees. We are planning to start fitness to work' examination 
procedure. In addition, the First Aid Centre provides 24x7 health service for employees and contractors, ensuring that all 
who need medical care are able to receive it immediately.  M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. was revamped the safety training 
courses provided to its employees and contractors, including class-room based training in the local languages of the 
workers.

Environment, Health and Safety Award recognizes outstanding accomplishments in the field of EHS in its various 
operations. 

We are also committed to take responsible indicatives to minimize pollution of the environment. M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. 
has implemented dust emission monitoring program within and surrounding its facilities to characterize emissions, verify 
compliance with local government emission standards and identify areas where improvement is necessary. The emission 
rate data has many additional values, such as forming the basis for developing policies and implementing practices and 
technologies to better control and limit emissions and also measure their effectiveness. M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. are strictly 
controlling emissions of dust by the use of dust-extraction systems in loading areas, water sprinkling system, tree 
plantations, dust collector, good cleaning system, enclosing source of dust emission through some inspection and 
increasing overall consciousness among the employees regarding Environmental Aspect and Impact. Also, we are planning 
to set up Eco-Hopper, Fixed Vacuum Piping System, Mechanical Road Sweeper, Trailer Vacuum Machine, changing some 
process and so on.

Care of people and the environment is a top priority at M. I. Cement factory Ltd. which enables us to fulfil our 
responsibilities that nobody who works for, or with M. I. Cement factory Ltd. is hurt or injured and they return home to their 
families safely.
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                 Particulars
Advance Income Tax
VAT
Customs Duty
Total

 2015-16    
 258 

 1,378 
 594 

 2,230 

2016-17   
 336 

 1,359 
 543 

 2,238 

2017-18  
 590 

 1,801 
 847 

 3,238 

2018-19  
 668 

 2,122 
 910

 3,700 

2019-20  
403

2,003
845

3,251

CONTRIBUTION TO THE NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

During the Accounting year ended 30 June 2020, the Company has contributed Tk. 3,251 Million to the National Exchequer 
through following manner: 

The Contribution to the National Exchequer of your Company of last five years is shown to the following graph:

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 

The subsequent events to the Balance Sheet date are as follows:

 The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 14 November 2020 have recommended cash dividend 10% i.e.          
Taka 1.00 (one) per share of Taka 10 (Ten) each aggregating to Taka 148,500,000 for the year ended 30 June 2020 
subject to approval of the shareholders' in the Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 29 December 2020.

 Approved cancellation of the transfer of the 3 (three) mother vessels of M. I. Cement Factory Limited (MICFL) to the 3 
(three) separate fully owned Subsidiary Companies, which was decided in MICFL's board meeting held on 8 October 
2020. The approval process of the transfer of the mother vessels requires approval of various overseas offices. With the 
outbreak of world wide Covid-19 pandemic, all the international offices stopped working, with the result that the 
transfer formalities could not be completed. Also, it now appears that the transfer will subject the Companies to 
unforeseen onerous tax burden, both internationally and nationally that does not justify the earlier benefit envisaged 
for transferring the mother vessels. Therefore, the 3 (three) mother vessels will remain the asset of MICFL. This will be 
approved in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) on 29 December 2020. In this regard, the 3 (three) Subsidiary 
Companies which were formed to transfer the mother vessels will be wound up.

 Approved postponement of setting up of the 6th Unit of the M. I. Cement Factory Limited (MICFL) board meeting held 
on 8 October 2020. Both the technical and commercial negotiations with the international contractors got suspended 
with the outbreak of Covid-19 as well as the financing arrangement. With the outbreak of Covid-19, cement industry 
has seen a sharp decline in demand with the entire industry operating at substantially lower capacity levels. The 
demand is expected to remain tepid in the next two to three years until the economy makes a rebound. The Board is 
therefore of the opinion that the existing capacity will be able to fulfill the cement demand over this period. As such 
the decision for this unit can be considered at a later stage.
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On behalf of the Board of Directors

Mohammed Jahangir Alam
Chairman

Dated, Dhaka
14 November 2020

 The Board of Directors approved taking on lease of the entire business operations of Crown Mariners Ltd. and Crown 
Polymer Bagging Limited by M. I. Cement Factory Limited by which M. I. Cement Factory Limited will be able to increase 
efficiency and reduce raw materials cost and cost of goods sold.

 Late Alhaj Md. Khabir Uddin Mollah, the former Managing Director of M. I. Cement Factory Limited died on 25 May 
2019. The Succession Certificate has been issued by the honorable Court on 1 October 2020, which we received after 
the year ended 30 June 2020.

GOVERNANCE, ETHICS AND ITS COMPLIANCE

Good governance and ethical conduct provide the foundation for everything we do at M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. They help 
us earn trust, manage risks, foster sustainable growth and build a resilient business. We aim to tackle challenging issues 
head on, make our communications and processes simple, hold everyone accountable and empower all our employees to 
do what’s right. Our Code of Business Conduct as well as our internal ethics upkeeps and tailored training, helps employees 
make ethical decisions.

We believe continuous supervision in every business practice is the key to sustain in a leadership role. Therefore, our 
Company is directed, administered and complied with the set of laws, policies and procedures exerted in Bangladesh 
Securities & Exchange Commission’s (BSEC) Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018; 
Companies Act, 1994 and the Listing Regulations, 2015 of Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. and Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. 
The Summary of key operating and financial data of preceding five years, Pattern of Shareholding, Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis and MD’s & CFO’s declaration to the Board for the year ended 30 June 2020 are appended as 
Annexure- I, II, IV and V respectively. Further, the Corporate Governance Compliance Certificate and Report of Compliance 
required under the said Guidelines, as provided by M/s. Ahmed Zaker & Co., Chartered Accountants is also annexed to this 
report as Annexure- VI & VII.

OUR GRATITUDE

Our performance of the year under review demonstrates the dedication and support to Company by our customers, 
employees, shareholders and all other stakeholders. In this context, the Board of Directors would like to extend its foremost 
regards and appreciation to the valued stakeholders of the Company for their continued patronage and guidance to the 
Company that brought this Company to its heights of success.

We gratefully acknowledge the valuable help and advice that we have always received from our esteemed shareholders, 
not only during the Deliberations of the Annual General Meeting, but at other times as well. We greatly value the unstinting 
and ready support and co-operation of our clients and we assure them that it will be our constant endeavor to prove 
worthy of the trust they have reposed in us. We offer our profound thanks to them and to the growing member of our 
well-wishers.

We also deeply appreciate the help and co-operation that we have received from the various Ministries, the Government 
of the People’s Republic of Bangladesh, National Board of Revenue (NBR), Bangladesh Investment Development Authority 
(BIDA), Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms (RJSC), Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), 
Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL), Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE), Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited 
(CSE), the Company’s Bankers, Insurers and Financial Institutions, Vendors, the Press and Media and other Business Partners 
and its staff have always been very helpful and their advice and guidance have made it possible for us to run the affairs of 
the Company smoothly. We would like to express our sincere thanks for extending their helpful hands.

We are proud of the unswerving loyalty and devotion of our staff, whose drive, energy and skill have helped the Company 
to reach its present position.
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cwiPvjKgÛjxi cÖwZ‡e`b
30 Ryb 2020 Zvwi‡L mgvß erm‡ii Rb¨

Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjwg‡U‡Wi cwiPvjbv cl©` Gi cÿ †_‡K †Kv¤úvbxi 26Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq (GwRGg) Avcbv‡`i‡K ¯^vMZg| 
cwiPvjbv cl©` AZ¨šÍ mvbyMÖn I Avb›` mnKv‡i 30 Ryb 2020 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii wbixwÿZ Avw_©K weeiYxmn wbixÿv cÖwZ‡e`b Ges 
cwiPvjKgÛjxi cÖwZ‡e`b Avcbv‡`i weÁ we‡ePbv, Aby‡gv`b Ges MÖn‡Yi Rb¨ †ck KiwQ| 

†Kv¤úvbx AvBb 1994 Gi iæj 184, XvKv ÷K G·‡PÄ I wPUvMvs ÷K G·‡PÄ Gi ZvwjKvf~w³ AvBb Ges evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR A¨vÛ 
G·‡PÄ Kwgkb (weGmBwm) weÁwß bs weGmBwm/wmGgAviAviwmwW/2006-158/207/cÖkvmb/80 ZvwiL 3 Ryb 2018 Gi cÖweavb 
Abyhvqx cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i AÎ cÖwZ‡e`bwU cÖ¯‘Z Kiv n‡q‡Q| 

‡`‡ki wm‡g›U wk‡íi mvgwMÖK ch©v‡jvPbv Ges wm‡g›U wk‡íi fwel¨r

Av‡jvP¨ eQi A_©vr 2020 m‡bi cÖ_g ̀ yB gv‡m wm‡g›U wk‡íi ïiæwU fvj wQj| eQ‡ii ïiæ †_‡K †deªæqvix 2020 ch©šÍ wm‡g›U wk‡íi 10% 
cÖe„w× N‡UwQj wKš‘ Zrci gvP© 2020 gvm n‡Z †KvwfW-19 msµgY ïiæ nIqvq evrmwiK cÖe„w× wb¤œMvgx  n‡Z _v‡K| MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 
eZ©gvb mg‡q Zv 13% n«vm cvq| Z‡e Ryb 2020 gvm †_‡K G wkí wb¤œgyLx aviv KvwU‡q DV‡Z _v‡K| g›`v Ae¯’v KvwU‡q D‡V †m‡Þ¤^i 2020 
gv‡mi †k‡l cÖe„w× MZ eQ‡ii GKB mg‡qi Zzjbvq 5.7% Kg nq| Z‡e Avkv Kiv hvq †h, g›`v fve KvwU‡q D‡V eQ‡i wm‡g‡›Ui Pvwn`v 
c~e©ve¯’vq wd‡i Avm‡e| GUv cÖZ¨vwkZ †h, 2020 mb †k‡l wm‡g‡›Ui Pvwn`v 34 wgwjqb Ub ch©šÍ w¯’wZkxj n‡e| 

Gw`‡K  wm‡g‡›Ui mieivn cÖv‡šÍ cÖvq mKj e„nr wm‡g›U ‡Kv¤úvbx¸‡jv Zv‡`i Drcv`b ÿgZvi e„w× NwU‡qB P‡j‡Q| avibv  Kiv n‡”Q wm‡g‡›Ui 
Drcv`b e„w×i Kvi‡Y cÖK…Z mieivn mÿgZv Kg ‡ekx cÖvq 78 wgwjqb U‡b DwbœZ  n‡e| G cwiw¯’wZ‡Z e„nr wkí‡Mvwô Zv‡`i Drcv`b ÿgZvi 
c~Y© e¨env‡i cÖ‡Pó n‡”Q hvi dj¯^iƒc evRv‡i Zxeª cÖwZ‡hvwMZv weivR Ki‡Q| ZvB wb‡R‡`i Drcv`b KvUwZi Rb¨ cÖ`wk©Z weµq g~‡j¨i mv‡_ 
mevB A`„k¨ my‡hvM myweav †hvM K‡i c‡Y¨i g~j¨  n«vm K‡i weµq K‡ib hv‡Z Zv‡`i Drcvw`Z m¤ú~Y© c‡Y¨i wewµ m¤¢e nq| hv †nvK, Ab¨vb¨ 
‡ÿ‡Î Drcv`b LiP wKQzUv K‡g hvIqvq e¨vcK †jvKmvb n‡Z Ae¨vnwZ wg‡j‡Q| †hgb, †KvwfW-19 Gi cÖv`yf©ve ïiæ nIqvi ci KvuPvgvj 
we‡klZt wK¬sKv‡ii g~‡j¨ AebqY N‡U‡Q| G eQ‡ii cÖvwšÍK †KvqvU©v‡i miKvi KZ©„K wba©vwiZ e¨vsK F‡Yi my‡`i nvi 9% G w¯’iKi‡Y Avw_©K 
LiP n«vm cvIqvq Ges AviI wKQy myweav c¨v‡KR †NvlYvq ¯^w¯Íi wbtk¦vm ‡bqv m¤¢e n‡q‡Q| Ab¨w`‡K evKx Av`v‡q we‡qvMvšÍK Ae¯’vi m„wó 
nIqvq Avw_©K e¨q Avevi DaŸ© gy‡L †V‡j w`‡q‡Q|

Ab¨w`‡K G wk‡íi bZzb cÖwZeÜKZvi D™¢e n‡q‡Q AvqKi, g~mK I ïé msµvšÍ bZzb wbqg cÖPj‡b| GLb mKj Avg`vbx‡Z AvqKi 
Aa¨v‡`‡ki 53 aviv Abyhvqx 3% AvqKi cÖ`vb Ki‡Z nq| Avevi AvqKi I ï‡éi cY¨g~j¨ wba©vi‡YI g~j¨ e„w× K‡i Ki wbiƒcb Kiv nq, 
d‡j AMÖxg K‡ii cÖK…Z nvi `vuovq 3.4%| AwaKš‘ mswkøó AvB‡bi 52 avivbyhvqx †µZv¯Í‡iI 3% Dr‡m AvqKi Av`vq Kiv nq| GB me 
wnmv‡e cÖK…Z AvqK‡ii cwigvY `vuovq 7%|

D‡jøwLZ Kvi‡Y AvqKi AvB‡bi 82 wm avivbyhvqx wm‡g›U, wój I Ab¨vb¨ †jŠnRvZ wk‡íi Dci Av‡ivwcZ K‡ii nv‡i AmvgÄm¨Zv ev 
cÿcvZg~jK Ae¯’v weivR Ki‡Q|

wm‡g›U wk‡í eZ©gv‡bi Zxeª cÖwZ‡hvwMZvi gy‡L cÖvq 7% Ki e¨emvi jvf Øviv mgš^q Kiv m¤¢e bq| djkÖæwZ‡Z †ekxi fvM wm‡g›U †Kv¤úvbxB 
ÿwZi m¤§yLxY n‡”Q| Avi GB ÿqÿwZ AvMvgx ermi¸‡jv‡ZI ‡bwZevPK cÖfve †dj‡e e‡j cÖZxqgvb nq| 

G QvovI we‡`k åg‡Yi Li‡Pi Dci wWmKvD›U cÖKvwkZ Uvb©Ifv‡ii Dci 1.25% n‡Z msKzwPZ K‡i eZ©gvb nvi Kiv n‡q‡Q 0.50%| 
weµq e„w×‡Z cÖ‡gvkbvj e¨q AwZ ¸iæZ¡c~Y© Dcv`vb A_P G e¨q 0.50% Gi D‡aŸ© Aby‡gv`b Kiv nq bv| Av‡jvP¨ welqwU Ab¨vb¨ mKj 
†Kv¤úvbxi djvd‡j e¨vcK cÖfve †dj‡e|  

2020 m‡bi e¨emvi fv‡jv g›` wbf©i Ki‡e A_©‰bwZK cÖe„w×i Dci| B‡Zvg‡a¨ cvðvZ¨ †`‡k K‡ivbv gnvgvwii wØZxq †XD AvNvZ ‡n‡b‡Q| 
G cwiw¯’wZ Avgv‡`i ißvbxi Dci Ges †cvlvK wk‡íi Dci †bwZevPK cÖfve †dj‡e| AvNvZ nvb‡e Awfevwm‡`i †iwg‡UÝ Gi DciI| Z‡e 
Avgiv Avkvev`x †h, Af¨šÍixY A_©bxwZ A‡bKUv my`„p fv‡e ea©YcÖeb| myZivs Avgiv Ny‡i `vuov‡bvi cÖZ¨vkvq AvwQ hw`I ZvÕ GL‡bv Kzqvkv 
wgwkÖZ| hw` A_©bxwZi cÖZ¨vwkZ cÖe„w× N‡U, wm‡g‡›U Gi Pvwn`v cyYivq `yB As‡K ewa©Z n‡Z cv‡i| miKvi e„nr AeKvVv‡gv mgwš^Z Dbœqb 
cÖK‡íi Dci †Rvi w`‡q‡Q hv wm‡g‡›Ui Pvwn`vi Dci m`_©K cÖfve †dj‡e|
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wm‡g›U wk‡íi cÖe„w× wbf©i Ki‡e miKvi Gi e¨emv evÜe Kvh©µg MÖnY Kivi Dci| miKvi hw` ïé, Ki I g~mK bxwZi AmvgÄm¨Zv `~i 
bv K‡ib Z‡e Avkvbyiƒc djvdj AR©b Kiv m¤¢e n‡e bv| Gi d‡j A‡bK wm‡g›U cÖ¯‘Z KviK cÖwZôvbB FY`vq cwi‡kv‡a AcviM n‡q hv‡e 
Ges cwibwZ‡Z e¨emv ¸wU‡q †bIqvi cwiw¯’wZ `vuov‡e| cÖvi‡¤¢B ewY©Z n‡q‡Q †h, †`‡k wm‡g›U Gi Drcv`b ÿgZv Pvwn`vi eû D‡aŸ© Ae¯’vb 
Ki‡j Ggwb‡ZB jv‡fi AsK weiƒcfv‡e msKzwPZ nq| G cwiw¯’wZ Ae¨vnZ _vK‡j A`~i fwel¨‡Z A‡bK Drcv`bKvix cÖKí iæMœZvq ch©ewmZ 
n‡e| wm‡g›U wkí GKwU Avkv e¨vÄbKvix wkí hv †`‡ki A_©‰bwZK cÖe„w×‡Z cÖf‚Z mnvqZvKvix| Giƒc cÖwZkÖæwZkxj cÖKí¸wji `~`©kv †`‡ki 
gvbyl cÖZ¨vkv Ki‡e bv|

e¨emvq SzuwK mg~n

‡Kv¤úvbx‡K e¨emv cwiPvjbvq eûwea SzuwKi ‡gvKv‡ejv Ki‡Z nq| wm‡g›U wkí I Gi e¨emvwqK Kg©Kv‡Û bvbvwea SuywKi m¤§yLxb nIqv 
µgvMZfv‡eB N‡U, wKš‘ G †Kv¤úvbx Zv Aek¨¤¢vex †f‡e hyw³m½Z cÖwZKv‡ii c`‡ÿc c~ev©‡ý Abyaveb I wPwýZ K‡i _v‡K|

AwZwi³ Drcv`b ÿgZv mswkøó

‡`‡ki wkí KviLvbvi ̄ ’vwcZ Drcv`b ÿgZv Pvwn`vi Zzjbvq A‡bK †ekx hv cY¨ evRviRvZKiY I weµ‡q mgm¨vi KviY| Bnv cÖwZôvb¸‡jvi 
g‡a¨ A‡nZzK Aïf weµq cÖwZ‡hvwMZvi Rb¥ w`‡”Q| G mgm¨vi †gvKv‡ejvq Avgiv Avgv‡`i c‡Y¨i gvb Aÿzbœ †i‡L c‡b¨i eª¨vÛ B‡gR 
mgy¾¦j ivL‡Z Zrci _vwK| ZvQvov Avgv‡`i my`ÿ weµq I wecYb Rbkw³ ¸YMZ gv‡bi wfwË‡Z Avgv‡`i c‡Y¨i evRvi ˆZix‡Z ev evRvi 
a‡i ivL‡Z cÖ‡Póv Pvwj‡q hvq|

KvwiMwi mswkøó SzuwK

Drcv`b cÖwµqv I mswkøó ˆkwíK KvwiMwi c×wZ cÖwZwbqZ cwieZ©bkxj, Bnv µ‡gB AvBwU wbf©i cÖ‡KŠk‡ji w`‡K SzuK‡Q| †Kv¤úvbx G welqwU 
we‡ePbvq †i‡L Zv‡`i c‡Y¨i gvb Dbœq‡b mwe‡kl Zrci hv myjf cY¨ Drcv`‡b mnvqK n‡e|

weµq SzuwK

`ªæZ m¤úªmviYkxj evRv‡i cÖwZ‡hvMx †Kv¤úvbxi †gvKv‡ejvq evRvi Avq‡Z¡ †bqvi Kjv‡KŠkj I my‡hvM †Kv¤úvbx bvbvfv‡e MÖnY K‡i _v‡Kb|

cY¨ g~j¨ wba©viY SzuwK

mgm¨vi D™¢e nq hLb bvbv Kvi‡Y Drcv`b e¨q ea©‡bi KviY NU‡jI weµq g~j¨ e„w× Kiv m¤¢e nq bv| †Kv¤úvbx cÖwZwbqZ Zvi Drcv`b 
e¨q ch©v‡jvPbv K‡i _v‡K Ges jvfRbK cš’vq I cÖYvjx‡Z cY¨ cwi‡ek‡b Zrci _v‡K| Drcv`b e¨q AwZµg K‡i wKfv‡e evRv‡i cY¨ 
cwi‡ewkZ n‡e †m AwfcÖv‡q †Kv¤úvbxi weµ‡q wb‡qvwRZ my`ÿ Rbkw³ Zv‡`i Kg©KvÛ cwiPvjbv K‡i _v‡K|

myôz cwiPvjb SuywK

KvuPvgvj msMÖn cÖwµqv Ges Drcv`b cÖwµqvi mv‡_ G SzuwK RwoZ| Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx G e¨vcviwUi Dci myZxÿœ `„wó iv‡L| G wel‡q 
mvd‡j¨i Rb¨ KvuPvgvj mieivnKvix‡`i mv‡_ †mŠnv`©c~Y© m¤úK© eRvq ‡i‡L e¨emvwqK Pzw³ m¤úv`b Kiv nq| cvkvcvwk mieivnKvix‡`i 
Dci wbf©iZv Kgv‡Z Ges cÖwZ‡hvMxZv g~‡j¨ KvuPvgvj µ‡qi Rb¨ ‡Kv¤úvbx cÖwZwbqZ mieivnKvix‡`i ZvwjKv m¤úªmvi‡Yi KvRwU 
ch©v‡jvPbv K‡i _v‡K| GKB bxwZ AbymiY Kiv nq KviLvbvi LyPiv hš¿vsk msMÖ‡ni e¨vcv‡iI| 

cY¨ gvb wbqš¿Y SzuwK

‡Kv¤úvbxi Dbœq‡bi `„p ¯Í¤¢ I wfwË n‡jv c‡Y¨i Av‡cvlnxb gvb iÿv Kiv| †Kv¤úvbx †Kvb g~‡j¨B Zvi c‡Y¨i DrKl© gvb wbPz n‡Z †`q bv| G 
Rb¨ MÖvn‡Ki Kv‡Q G c‡Y¨i MÖnY‡hvM¨Zv eRvq _v‡K Ges eª¨vÛ B‡gR myD‡”P Ae¯’vb K‡i| c‡b¨i ¸YMZ gvb myD‡”P Zz‡j aivB †Kv¤úvbxi 
Av`k© I  `k©b|

evKx‡Z weµq SzuwK

evKx‡Z weµq I h_v mg‡q evKx Av`v‡q AÿgZv bvbvwea mgm¨vi m„wó K‡i, KviY evKx Av`v‡qi mv‡_ mswkøó †Mvwôi `vq cwi‡kva I 
‡Kv¤úvbxi Kg©KvÛ cwiPvjbv evavMÖ¯Í I †Kv¤úvbxi ÿwZi  welqwU RwoZ| GB cvIbv n‡Z cv‡i c‡Y¨i †µZvi cvkvcvwk †Kv¤úvbxi wewb‡qvM 
†_‡KI| G SuywK Gov‡bvi Rb¨ †Kv¤úvbx ‡µwWU cwjwm AbymiY K‡i wbw`©ó mg‡q MªvnK‡`i wbKU e‡Kqv Av`v‡qi Rb¨ wecYb I weµq 
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wefvM ‰`wbK wfwË‡Z e‡Kqvi cwigvY ch©‡eÿY K‡i _v‡K| c~‡e©B D‡jøL Kiv n‡q‡Q †h, SzuwK Gov‡bvi Rb¨ MÖvnK‡`i wbKU n‡Z RvgvbZ 
wnmv‡e wewfbœ ai‡bi BÝUªyg¨v›U MÖnY Kivi cwjwm i‡q‡Q Z‡e mvgvwRK mym¤úK© I myweL¨vZ e¨emvwqK cÖwZcwË aviK wKQz MÖvnK Gi KvQ ‡_‡K 
G iKg RvgvbZ †bqv m¤¢e nq bv|

Zvij¨ SzuwK

Zvij¨ kw³ n‡jv Avw_©K †jb‡`‡bi ÿgZv hv A_© e¨‡qi gva¨‡g †Kv¤úbxi `vq cwi‡kva K‡i _v‡K Ges h_vmgq m¤ú` AvniY I Ab¨vb¨ 
Riæix mvgMÖx µ‡qi `vq cwi‡kva Ki‡Z mÿg nq| †Kv¤úvbxi Zvij¨ m¤ú` e¨e¯’vcbv myôzfv‡e Kiv‡Z we‡kl Zrci _v‡K hv‡Z Zvi 
cÖ‡qvRbxq Zij m¤ú` Avq‡Z¡ _v‡K b‡Pr mKj Kg©KvÛ bmv¨vr nIqvi m¤¢vebv| Zvij¨ msK‡Ui Kvi‡Y `vq cwi‡kv‡a e¨_© n‡j ‡Kv¤úvbxi 
mybvg ÿzbœ nIqvi mg~n m¤¢vebv|

evRvi SzuwK

evRvi SzuwK ZLbB m„wó nq hLb fwel¨‡Z †Kvb Avw_©K BÝUªyg¨v›U Gi wecix‡Z cÖvße¨ A_© cÖvwß‡Z g~j¨ Awbw`©ófv‡e DVvbvgv K‡i| 
fwel¨‡Z `vq cwi‡kv‡ai e¨vcv‡i I ‰e‡`wkK gy`ªvi `vq cwi‡kv‡ai e¨vcv‡i Ges my` cwi‡kv‡ai e¨vcv‡iI wewbgq g~j¨ ev my`nvi cÖwZK‚jfv‡e 
cwiewZ©Z n‡j SzuwK‡Z co‡Z nq Ges Aek¨¤¢vex ÿwZi m¤§yLxb n‡Z nq| GB SzuwK mvgvj w`‡ZI †Kv¤úvbx‡K Aweg„k¨Kvix e¨e¯’vcbvi AvkÖq 
wb‡Z nq| evRvi SzuwKi KZK¸‡jv iKg Av‡Q; h_v-

(K) ‰e‡`wkK gy`ªvi wewbgq nvi SuywK

ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªvq cwi‡kva‡hvM¨ `vq cwi‡kv‡a h_v Drcbœ mgqKv‡j `vq MÖnY I fwel¨‡Z `vq cwi‡kva G iKg e¨e¯’vq AšÍe©Z©x mg‡q wewbgq 
nvi cÖwZKzjfv‡e cwieZ©b n‡Z cv‡i| †Kv¤úvbxi `xN©‡gqv`x ev ¯^í †gqv`x F‡Y ev fwel¨‡Z cwi‡kva‡hvM¨ µ‡q Giƒc wewbgq nvi cwieZ©b 
Gi SzuwK Ab‡b¨vcvq n‡q cÖvqktB MÖnY Ki‡Z nq |

(L) my` nvi cÖwZKzjfv‡e cwieZ©‡bi SzuwK

FY MÖnY I F‡Yi gva¨‡g m¤ú` (g~jabx m¤ú`) ev KvuPvgvj Avg`vbxi †ÿ‡Î G SzuwK MÖnY Ki‡Z nq| cÖavbZt ˆe‡`wkK FY MÖn‡Yi †ÿ‡Î 
Gi mv‡_ hy³ my`nvi ÔjvBeiÕ wba©viY n‡q _v‡K hvnv cÖvqktB cwieZ©bkxj|

(M) cY¨ µq weµ‡q SzuwK

G SzuwKi D™¢e nq evRv‡i c‡Y¨i `vg DVvbvgv‡Z hv A‡bK mgq ivR‰bwZK cwiw¯’wZ wbf©i| G SzuwK µq weµq Dfq Ae¯’v‡ZB msNwUZ n‡Z 
cv‡i|

Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx G SzuwKi cÖwZ mRvM `„wó †i‡L wewfbœ Drm †_‡K KvuPvgvj b¨vh¨ g~‡j¨ msMÖ‡ni ZrciZv MÖnY K‡i _v‡K| m¤¢e n‡j G 
Ae¯’v Gov‡bvi j‡ÿ¨ mieivnKvixi mv‡_ w¯’i g~‡j¨ †gqv`x Pzw³i AvkÖq MÖnY K‡i|

Drcv`b LiP, ‡gvU gybvdv gvwR©b I bxU gybvdv msµvšÍ Av‡jvPbv 
2019-2020 eQ‡ii weµq n‡Z Avq c~e©eZ©x 2018-2019 eQ‡ii Zyjbvq 5.14% Kg| Gi KviY n‡jv weµ‡qi cwigvY c~e©eZ©x eQ‡ii 
Zzjbvq Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i 4.79% n«vm †c‡q‡Q| Z‡e Avgiv Avb‡›`i mv‡_ Rvb‡Z PvB †h, PjwZ eQ‡ii ißvbxi cwigvY MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 
9.13% e„w× †c‡q 4.01 ‡KvwU UvKvq `uvwo‡q‡Q| Aciw`‡K Drcv`b e¨q 2019-20 erm‡i 1.92% n«vm †c‡q‡Q Av‡Mi eQ‡ii Zzjbvq| 
Gi cÖavb KviY n‡jv mvgwqKfv‡e Drcv`‡b weNœ NUv| 2019-2020 erm‡i †kqvi cÖwZ Avq K‡g (0.89) UvKvq `uvovq hv, 2018-2019 
eQ‡i wQj 1.69 UvKv| Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i d¨v±ix Ifvi ‡nW MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 5.47% A_©vr 9.40 †KvwU UvKv Kg LiP nq| 

PjwZ eQ‡ii †gvU gybvdv weMZ eQ‡ii 26.32 kZvsk A_©vr 192.92 †KvwU UvKv n‡Z K‡g 142.19 †KvwU UvKvq `uvovq| A_vr MÖm cÖwdU 
gvwR©b `vuvovq 22.33 kZvs‡k| 2019-2020 wnmve eQ‡i cÖkvmwbK e¨q Ges wecYb I weµq e¨q h_vµ‡g 18.71% Ges 11.76% Kg 
nq| cÖkvmwbK e¨q Ges wecYb I weµq e¨q Kgvi g~j KviY n‡jv †KvwfW-19 fvBivm Gi Kvi‡Y eQ‡ii †k‡l †Kvqv©Uv‡i wewfbœ e¨q 
Kgv‡bvi Rb¨ cÖ‡qvRbxq c`‡ÿc MÖnY| weÁvcb I cÖPvig~jK LiPI Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i 6.86 †KvwU UvKv K‡g‡Q Ges Ab¨vb¨ Lv‡ZI e¨‡qi 
cwigvY K‡g‡Q| 
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PjwZ eQ‡i my` eve` LiP ‡e‡o‡Q 9.91 †KvwU UvKv| Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i gybvdv Kgvi Avi GKwU KviY n‡jv cwiPvjb bM` cÖevn Kg nIqv, 
hvi d‡j FY MÖnY Gi cwigvY †e‡o hvIqv| PjwZ Ki Gi cwigvY Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i 97 jÿ UvKv e„w× †c‡q‡Q, hw`I †Kv¤úvbxi Kic~e© 
†jvKmvb n‡q‡Q| b¨ybZg Ki nvi 0.60% cÖ‡qvM Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges AvqKi Aa¨v‡`‡ki 30 aviv cÖ‡qvM K‡i Aby‡bv‡gvw`Z Li‡Pi Dci Ki 
wnmvef‚³ Kiv n‡q‡Q| 

cwiPvjb ewnf‚©Z Avq 82 jÿ UvKv n«vm †c‡q‡Q, hvi g~j KviY n‡jv 86 jÿ UvKv †kqv‡i wewb‡qv‡M †jvKmvb, 18 jÿ UvKv jf¨vsk Kg 
cvIqv, Ab¨vb¨ Avq 16 jÿ UvKv Kg nIqv, ¯’vqx m¤ú` weµ‡q jvf 30 jÿ UvKvi mgwš^Z dj| A¨v‡mvwk‡qU †Kv¤úvbx n‡Z jv‡fi Ask 
PjwZ eQ‡i 71 jÿ UvKv Kg cvIqv †M‡Q, hvi g~j KviY n‡jv gv`vi †Kv¤úvbxi e¨emv Kg nIqvq D³ mn‡hvMx †Kv¤úvbx¸wji Kg©KvÛ I 
jvf K‡g hvIqv|

djkÖæwZ‡Z 2019-2020 wnmve eQ‡i KicieZ©x bxU gybvdv MZ eQ‡ii 25.12 †KvwU UvKv jvf Gi ¯’‡j 13.25 †KvwU UvKvi †jvKmv‡b 
`vuwo‡q‡Q| Ki cieZ©x bxU gybvdvi gvwR©bI MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq n«vm †c‡q‡Q|  

m¤úK©hy³ cvwU©mg~‡ni mv‡_ †jb‡`b
Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i †Kv¤úvbx Zvi m¤úK©hy³ A‡bK¸‡jv cvwU©i mv‡_ ¯^vfvweKfv‡e Av`vb cÖ`vb Kvh©µg Pvwj‡q‡Q| Zv‡`i bvg, m¤úK©, cÖK…wZ Ges 
g~j¨ Avw_©K weeiYxi 43 bs †bv‡U wea„Z Kiv Av‡Q|

Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡ii wZbwU ˆÎgvwmK I evrmwiK Avw_©K weeiYxi D‡jøL‡hvM¨ ‰el‡g¨i e¨vL¨v wb‡¤œ cÖ`Ë n‡jvt

WvB‡i±i‡`i wigybv‡ikb
‡Kv¤úvbxi `yBRb cwiPvjK h_v - Rbve ‡gvt AvjgMxi Kwei I Rbve †gvjøv †gvnv¤§` gRby  †Kv¤úvbx cwiPvjbvq mve©ÿwYK wb‡qvwRZ 
i‡q‡Qb| Rbve AvjgMxi Kwei mvgMÖxKfv‡e d¨v±ixi Drcv`b I d¨v±ix cwiPvjbv †`Lfvj Ki‡Qb| Aciw`‡K Rbve †gvjøv †gvnv¤§` 
gRby weµq I wecYb Kg©KvÛ ¸‡jv †`Lfvj Ki‡Qb| cwiPvjK‡`i wigybv‡ikb, wgwUs G¨v‡U‡ÛÝ wd dvB‡bwÝqvj †óU‡g›U Gi 30.0, 
32.0 I 33.0 bs †bv‡U wee„Z Kiv n‡q‡Q|

Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y e¨e¯’v
Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjt GKwU wj‡óU †Kv¤úvbx wnmv‡e e¨emvq Kvh©µg‡K mwVKfv‡e mn‡hvMxZv Kivi cÖqv‡m D”P cÖhyw³ m¤úbœ e„nr 
AvKv‡ii Drcv`b Kg©KvÛ¸‡jvi Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y e¨e¯’v ˆZix Kiv n‡q‡Q| †Kv¤úvbxi AvKvi, cwimi I RwUjZv Abymv‡i hv‡Z Af¨šÍixY 
Kg©KvÛ¸‡jv myPviæ I myôzfv‡e wbqš¿‡Y _v‡K I `vwqZ¡¸‡jv wVKgZ cwiPvwjZ nq ZwØl‡q Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y e¨e¯’v ˆZix Kiv n‡q‡Q| 
Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y e¨e¯’v Ggbfv‡e ‰Zix hv‡Z Avw_©K †jb‡`‡bi Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y cvwjZ nq Ges ‡Kv¤úvbxi m¤ú‡`i myiÿv nq| Af¨šÍixY 
wbqš¿Y e¨e¯’v wbqš¿Y ms¯’vi wewae× cvjbxq¸wj wbwðZ K‡i| Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y I cÖwZcvjb wefvM †Kv¤úvbxi Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y e¨e¯’v 
ch©v‡jvPbv K‡i _v‡K Ges AwWU KwgwU‡K wi‡cvU© K‡i| †Kv¤úvbxi evRv‡ii Ae¯’v I e¨‡qi j‡ÿ¨i wfwË‡Z †`‡ki mvgMÖxK A_©‰bwZK 
we‡køl‡Yi mvnv‡h¨ ev‡R‡Ui e¨vcK cwiKíbv Kiv n‡q _v‡K| Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y e¨e¯’v KuvPvgvj, hš¿vsk Ges bb-Kv‡i›U G‡mUm& Gi 
¸YMZgvb wbwðZ K‡i, †hb †µZv‡`i Rb¨ gvbm¤úbœ wm‡g›U Drcv`b Kiv m¤¢e nq| Avgv‡`i †Kv¤úvbxi wm‡g‡›Ui gvb wewfbœ ms¯’v KZ©©K 
cixwÿZ| 

weeiY cÖ_g †KvqvU©vi
2019-2020

lvb¥vwmK
2019-2020

3q †KvqvU©vi
2019-2020

RyjvBÕ 2019-
RybÕ 2020

Avq
MÖm gybvdv 
AvqKi c~e© gybvdv
eQ‡ii bxU Avq
‡kqvi †nvìvi‡`i BKzBwU
‡gvU m¤ú`
‡gvU PjwZ m¤ú`
‡gvU PjwZ `vq
‡gvU `vq
Kv‡i›U ‡iwkI

3,195,596,691
454,060,175
113,029,546

84,772,160
7,247,001,064

20,559,974,077
11,970,432,265
11,031,143,323
13,312,973,019

1.09

6,949,954,908
744,536,049

           (10,273,612)
        (280,059,824)

6,735,420,276
20,467,754,089
12,003,797,241
11,577,551,114

13,732,333,813
1.04

11,445,311,329
1,383,606,965

141,926,802
   (236,888,199)

6,780,343,097
19,583,597,550
11,227,376,117

10,900,552,069
12,803,254,454

1.03

13,876,211,430
1,421,850,621

(28,220,185)
       (132,453,273)

6,887,115,714
19,084,838,495
10,506,676,128
10,419,742,836
12,197,722,782

1.00



wefvM ‰`wbK wfwË‡Z e‡Kqvi cwigvY ch©‡eÿY K‡i _v‡K| c~‡e©B D‡jøL Kiv n‡q‡Q †h, SzuwK Gov‡bvi Rb¨ MÖvnK‡`i wbKU n‡Z RvgvbZ 
wnmv‡e wewfbœ ai‡bi BÝUªyg¨v›U MÖnY Kivi cwjwm i‡q‡Q Z‡e mvgvwRK mym¤úK© I myweL¨vZ e¨emvwqK cÖwZcwË aviK wKQz MÖvnK Gi KvQ ‡_‡K 
G iKg RvgvbZ †bqv m¤¢e nq bv|

Zvij¨ SzuwK

Zvij¨ kw³ n‡jv Avw_©K †jb‡`‡bi ÿgZv hv A_© e¨‡qi gva¨‡g †Kv¤úbxi `vq cwi‡kva K‡i _v‡K Ges h_vmgq m¤ú` AvniY I Ab¨vb¨ 
Riæix mvgMÖx µ‡qi `vq cwi‡kva Ki‡Z mÿg nq| †Kv¤úvbxi Zvij¨ m¤ú` e¨e¯’vcbv myôzfv‡e Kiv‡Z we‡kl Zrci _v‡K hv‡Z Zvi 
cÖ‡qvRbxq Zij m¤ú` Avq‡Z¡ _v‡K b‡Pr mKj Kg©KvÛ bmv¨vr nIqvi m¤¢vebv| Zvij¨ msK‡Ui Kvi‡Y `vq cwi‡kv‡a e¨_© n‡j ‡Kv¤úvbxi 
mybvg ÿzbœ nIqvi mg~n m¤¢vebv|

evRvi SzuwK

evRvi SzuwK ZLbB m„wó nq hLb fwel¨‡Z †Kvb Avw_©K BÝUªyg¨v›U Gi wecix‡Z cÖvße¨ A_© cÖvwß‡Z g~j¨ Awbw`©ófv‡e DVvbvgv K‡i| 
fwel¨‡Z `vq cwi‡kv‡ai e¨vcv‡i I ‰e‡`wkK gy`ªvi `vq cwi‡kv‡ai e¨vcv‡i Ges my` cwi‡kv‡ai e¨vcv‡iI wewbgq g~j¨ ev my`nvi cÖwZK‚jfv‡e 
cwiewZ©Z n‡j SzuwK‡Z co‡Z nq Ges Aek¨¤¢vex ÿwZi m¤§yLxb n‡Z nq| GB SzuwK mvgvj w`‡ZI †Kv¤úvbx‡K Aweg„k¨Kvix e¨e¯’vcbvi AvkÖq 
wb‡Z nq| evRvi SzuwKi KZK¸‡jv iKg Av‡Q; h_v-

(K) ‰e‡`wkK gy`ªvi wewbgq nvi SuywK

ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªvq cwi‡kva‡hvM¨ `vq cwi‡kv‡a h_v Drcbœ mgqKv‡j `vq MÖnY I fwel¨‡Z `vq cwi‡kva G iKg e¨e¯’vq AšÍe©Z©x mg‡q wewbgq 
nvi cÖwZKzjfv‡e cwieZ©b n‡Z cv‡i| †Kv¤úvbxi `xN©‡gqv`x ev ¯^í †gqv`x F‡Y ev fwel¨‡Z cwi‡kva‡hvM¨ µ‡q Giƒc wewbgq nvi cwieZ©b 
Gi SzuwK Ab‡b¨vcvq n‡q cÖvqktB MÖnY Ki‡Z nq |

(L) my` nvi cÖwZKzjfv‡e cwieZ©‡bi SzuwK

FY MÖnY I F‡Yi gva¨‡g m¤ú` (g~jabx m¤ú`) ev KvuPvgvj Avg`vbxi †ÿ‡Î G SzuwK MÖnY Ki‡Z nq| cÖavbZt ˆe‡`wkK FY MÖn‡Yi †ÿ‡Î 
Gi mv‡_ hy³ my`nvi ÔjvBeiÕ wba©viY n‡q _v‡K hvnv cÖvqktB cwieZ©bkxj|

(M) cY¨ µq weµ‡q SzuwK

G SzuwKi D™¢e nq evRv‡i c‡Y¨i `vg DVvbvgv‡Z hv A‡bK mgq ivR‰bwZK cwiw¯’wZ wbf©i| G SzuwK µq weµq Dfq Ae¯’v‡ZB msNwUZ n‡Z 
cv‡i|

Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx G SzuwKi cÖwZ mRvM `„wó †i‡L wewfbœ Drm †_‡K KvuPvgvj b¨vh¨ g~‡j¨ msMÖ‡ni ZrciZv MÖnY K‡i _v‡K| m¤¢e n‡j G 
Ae¯’v Gov‡bvi j‡ÿ¨ mieivnKvixi mv‡_ w¯’i g~‡j¨ †gqv`x Pzw³i AvkÖq MÖnY K‡i|

Drcv`b LiP, ‡gvU gybvdv gvwR©b I bxU gybvdv msµvšÍ Av‡jvPbv 
2019-2020 eQ‡ii weµq n‡Z Avq c~e©eZ©x 2018-2019 eQ‡ii Zyjbvq 5.14% Kg| Gi KviY n‡jv weµ‡qi cwigvY c~e©eZ©x eQ‡ii 
Zzjbvq Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i 4.79% n«vm †c‡q‡Q| Z‡e Avgiv Avb‡›`i mv‡_ Rvb‡Z PvB †h, PjwZ eQ‡ii ißvbxi cwigvY MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 
9.13% e„w× †c‡q 4.01 ‡KvwU UvKvq `uvwo‡q‡Q| Aciw`‡K Drcv`b e¨q 2019-20 erm‡i 1.92% n«vm †c‡q‡Q Av‡Mi eQ‡ii Zzjbvq| 
Gi cÖavb KviY n‡jv mvgwqKfv‡e Drcv`‡b weNœ NUv| 2019-2020 erm‡i †kqvi cÖwZ Avq K‡g (0.89) UvKvq `uvovq hv, 2018-2019 
eQ‡i wQj 1.69 UvKv| Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i d¨v±ix Ifvi ‡nW MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 5.47% A_©vr 9.40 †KvwU UvKv Kg LiP nq| 

PjwZ eQ‡ii †gvU gybvdv weMZ eQ‡ii 26.32 kZvsk A_©vr 192.92 †KvwU UvKv n‡Z K‡g 142.19 †KvwU UvKvq `uvovq| A_vr MÖm cÖwdU 
gvwR©b `vuvovq 22.33 kZvs‡k| 2019-2020 wnmve eQ‡i cÖkvmwbK e¨q Ges wecYb I weµq e¨q h_vµ‡g 18.71% Ges 11.76% Kg 
nq| cÖkvmwbK e¨q Ges wecYb I weµq e¨q Kgvi g~j KviY n‡jv †KvwfW-19 fvBivm Gi Kvi‡Y eQ‡ii †k‡l †Kvqv©Uv‡i wewfbœ e¨q 
Kgv‡bvi Rb¨ cÖ‡qvRbxq c`‡ÿc MÖnY| weÁvcb I cÖPvig~jK LiPI Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i 6.86 †KvwU UvKv K‡g‡Q Ges Ab¨vb¨ Lv‡ZI e¨‡qi 
cwigvY K‡g‡Q| 
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‡Kv¤úvbxi Avw_©K weeiYxi Avq, e¨q, m¤ú` I `vq Gi Dci mwVK I b¨vh¨ gZvgZ cÖ`v‡bi gva¨‡g †Kv¤úvbxi wewae× wbixÿK †Kv¤úvbx‡Z 
ewjô Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y e¨e¯’v ̄ ’vcb Ki‡Z mnvqZv K‡i| wewae× wbixÿK wewb‡qvMKvixM‡Yi ̄ ^v‡_© †Kv¤úvbxi m¤ú` myiÿv wbwðZ K‡i Ges 
K‡cv©‡iU Mf©b¨vÝ ‡KvW bs weGmBwm/wmGgAviAviwmwW/2006-158/207/GWwgb/80 Gi cÖ‡qvM wbwðZ K‡i| AvšÍR©vwZK wnmve gvb 
Ges AvšÍR©vwZK wbixÿv gvb Abyhvqx Avw_©K weeiYxmg~n cÖ¯‘Z Kiv n‡q _v‡K| †Kvb Pjgvb cÖwZôv‡bi ¯^v_© mswkøó cÿM‡Yi eZ©gvb Ges 
fwel¨r jv‡fi wel‡q wm×všÍ MÖn‡Yi welq¸wj K‡cv©‡iU Mf©b¨vÝ Abyhvqx n‡q _v‡K| †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjbv cl©`, e¨e¯’vcbv KZ©„cÿ, Kg©x 
Ges mK‡j wg‡j †hŠ_fv‡e gybvdv AR©‡bi j‡ÿ¨ †Kv¤úvbx cwiPvjbvq mykvm‡bi GB welq¸wj ‡g‡b P‡j|

weMZ eQ‡ii cwiPvjbvi djvdj †_‡K Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡ii cwiPvjbvi e¨Z¨q I cv_©K¨
evwl©K Avq
2018-2019 eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 2019-2020 eQ‡i 4.79% weµ‡qi cwigvY Kg nIqvq PjwZ eQ‡i 5.14% Avq K‡g‡Q, hvi KviY wQj 
weµq g~‡j¨i wb¤œg~LxZv|  

wewµZ c‡b¨i e¨q
PjwZ eQ‡i e¨vM cÖwZ 7.93 UvKv weµq e¨q, 4.09 UvKv KuvPvgvj eve` e¨q Ges d¨v±ix Ifvi †nW eve` e¨q †e‡o hvq| mKj 
KuvPvgv‡ji e¨qB †e‡o hvq| 11.61 †KvwU UvKv gv`vi †f‡mj Gi AePq e„w× cvIqvq d¨v±ix Ifvi †nW 9.40 †KvwU UvKv e„w× cvq| 
AePq e„w× bv †c‡j GB LiP 2.61 †KvwU UvKv Kg‡Zv| 

‡gvU gybvdv 
Kg weµq g~‡j¨ wewµ Ges weµq Kivi e¨q †e‡o hvIqvq †gvU gybvdvi nvi 2.94% kZvsk K‡g hvq| 

cwiPvjb gybvdv 
cÖkvmwbK e¨q 5.80 †KvwU UvKv n«vm †c‡q‡Q| Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡ii †kl †KvqvU©v‡i K‡ivbv fvBivm (†KvwfU-19) Gi Kvi‡Y wewfbœ e¨e¯’v MÖnY 
Kivq wewfbœ Lv‡Z LiP Kgv‡bv m¤¢e n‡q‡Q| wecYb I weµq LiP 7.13 †KvwU UvKv n«vm †c‡q‡Q| weÁvcb I cÖPvi Lv‡Z LiP 6.86 †KvwU 
UvKv Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i n«vm †c‡q‡Q| 

‡kqvi cÖwZ Avq 
2019-2020 wnmve eQ‡i MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq †kqvi cÖwZ 2.58 UvKv Avq Kg nq, hvi KviY n‡jv †KvwfU-19 Gi cÖv`yf©v‡ii Kvi‡Y 
weµq Gi cwigvY K‡g hvIqvq Avq Kg nIqv|   

weMZ 5 erm‡ii cwiPvjb I Avw_©K cwimsL¨vb 
weMZ cvuP eQ‡ii cÖavb cwiPvjb I Avw_©K cwimsL¨vb Ges we‡eP¨ eQ‡ii Ae¯’vb msjvM-1 G wee„Z n‡q‡Q|

jf¨vsk msµvšÍ cÖ¯Ívebv 
Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i bxU ‡jvKmvb nIhv m‡Z¡I †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjbv cl©` wi‡UBÛ Avwb©m n‡Z jf¨vsk †Nvlbvi wm×všÍ MÖnY K‡i‡Q| cl©` g‡b K‡i 
†h Av‡jvP¨ eQi GKwU A¯^vfvweK eQi Ges wek¦vm K‡i †h, ¯^vfvweK Ae¯’v wd‡i G‡j †Kv¤úvbx Avevi jvfRbK Ae¯’vq wd‡i Avm‡e| 
‡Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjbv cl©` Zvu‡`i 14 b‡f¤^i 2020 Zvwi‡Li cl©` mfvq 30 Ryb 2020 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii Rb¨ 10% bM` jf¨vsk 
Aby‡gv`b K‡i‡Qb A_©vr cÖwZ 10.00 UvKv AwfwnZ g~‡j¨i †kqv‡ii wecix‡Z 1.00 UvKv gvÎ| Zv‡Z †gvU bM` jf¨vsk `vuovq 
148,500,000 UvKv hv 29 wW‡m¤^i 2020 Zvwi‡L AbywôZe¨ 26Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq ‡kqvi‡nvìviMY KZ©„K Aby‡gv`b mv‡cÿ| 

2019-2020 wnmve eQ‡ii AwR©Z bxU jv‡fi e›Ub wb‡¤œ cÖ`wk©Z n‡jvt

weeiY cwigvb (UvKv)
cyÄxf‚Z jf¨vsk (c~e©eZ©x eQi †_‡K)
‡hvM: cyb: g~j¨vqbK…Z wiRvf© Ges wejw¤^Z Ki`vq
‡gvU wiRvf©
‡hvM: PjwZ eQ‡ii bxU gybvdv
wefvRb‡hvM¨ Znwej
we‡qvM: cÖ¯ÍvweZ jf¨vsk: bM` jf¨vsk 10% nv‡i
Aew›UZ gybvdv

1,957,937,216 
28,605,629 

1,986,542,845 
(132,453,273)

1,854,089,572 
148,500,000 

1,705,589,572
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†evW© wgwUs, AwWU KwgwU wgwUs Ges bwg‡bkb GÛ ‡igybv‡ikb KwgwU wgwUs G Dcw¯’wZi Z_¨
30 Ryb 2020 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡i †evW© wgwUs, AwWU KwgwU wgwUs Ges bwg‡bkb GÛ ‡igybv‡ikb KwgwU (GbAviwm) wgwUs G Dcw¯’wZi 
Z_¨ wb‡¤œ cÖ`Ë n‡jv, hv K‡c©v‡iU Mfb©¨vÝ ‡KvW Gi wb‡`©kbv Abyhvqx AbywôZ n‡q‡Q t 

‡kqvi‡nvwìs c¨vUvb©
30 Ryb 2020 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii †kqvi †nvwìs c¨vUvb© msjvM-2 G wee„Z n‡q‡Q|

cwiPvjK wbe©vPb Ges cybt wbe©vPb
‡Kv¤úvbxR G¨v±, 1994 Gi wewa †gvZv‡eK Ges †Kv¤úvbxi msN ¯§vi‡Ki 81 aviv Abymv‡i cÖwZ evrmwiK mvaviY mfvq PµvKv‡i GK 
Z…Zxqvsk cwiPvjK Aem‡i hv‡eb| †m Abymv‡i wb‡¤œv³ 2 (`yB) Rb cwiPvjK Aemi MÖnY Ki‡eb t

1. Rbve ‡gvnv¤§` Rvnv½xi Avjg 

2. Rbve †gvt wgRvbyi ingvb †gvjøvn&

‡hvM¨ weavq Zuviv cybtwbe©vP‡bi AvMÖn e¨³ K‡ib| Zvu‡`i GKwU mswÿß Rxeb e„ËvšÍ msjvM-3 G †`qv Av‡Q, hv evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR GÛ 
G·‡PÄ Kwgkb Gi 3 Ryb 2018 Zvwi‡Li †bvwUwd‡Kkb Gi aviv bs 1(5)(24) Abymi‡Y wea„Z Av‡Q|

bvg
‡evW© wgwUs G

Dcw¯’wZ

AwWU KwgwU
wgwUs G
Dcw¯’wZ

Gb Avi wm 
wgwUs G 
Dcw¯’wZ

Rbve †gvnv¤§` Rvnv½xi Avjg
bb-Gw·wKDwUf wW‡i±i

9/9 - -

Rbve †gvt AvjgMxi Kwei
Gw·wKDwUf wW‡i±i

9/9 - -

Rbve †gvjøv †gvnv¤§` gRby
Gw·wKDwUf wW‡i±i

9/9 - -

Rbve †gvt wgRvbyi ingvb †gvjøvn&
bb-Gw·wKDwUf wW‡i±i
m`m¨, AwWU KwgwU
m`m¨, bwg‡bkb GÛ ‡igybv‡ikb KwgwU

8/9 2/4 1/1

Rbve †gvt Avjgvm wkgyj
bb-Gw·wKDwUf wW‡i±i
m`m¨, AwWU KwgwU
m`m¨, bwg‡bkb GÛ ‡igybv‡ikb KwgwU

5/9 3/4 1/1

Rbve RvwKi Avn‡g` Lvb
¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjK
‡Pqvig¨vb, AwWU KwgwU 

6/9 4/4 -

cÖ‡dmi W. Gg. Avey BDmyd
¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjK
‡Pqvig¨vb, bwg‡bkb GÛ ‡igybv‡ikb KwgwU  

9/9 - 1/1

Rbve †gvt gRnviæj Bmjvg, GdwmGm

cwRkb

‡Pqvig¨vb

fvBm †Pqvig¨vb

e¨e ’̄vcbv cwiPvjK

AwZwi³ e¨e ’̄vcbv
cwiPvjK

cwiPvjK

¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjK

¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjK

‡Kv¤úvbx mwPe 9/9 4/4 1/1
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Avw_©K wee„wZ‡Z cwiPvjK‡`i †NvlYv
‡Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjKMY †Kv¤úvbx cwiPvjbvi Rb¨ `vqe×, Avw_©K weeiYxmg~n cÖ¯‘Z Ges Dc¯’vc‡b Zuviv ÁvbZt wbðqZv cÖ`vb  K‡ib †h- 

 AvBGGm 1 Abymv‡i Avw_©K weeiYxmg~n cÖ¯‘Z Kiv n‡q‡Q, †Kvb Avq I e¨q ÔÔG·Uªv AwW©bvixÓ jvf ev ÿwZ wnmv‡e †`Lv‡bv nq wb|

 e¨e¯’vcbv KZ©„K Avw_©K weeiYxmg~n cÖ¯‘Z Kiv n‡q‡Q AZ¨šÍ mZZvi mv‡_ I cwiPvj‡bi djvdj h_vh_fv‡e msNwUZ nIqvi 
cÖwZdjb NwU‡q K¨vk †d¬v Ges mgg~jab Gi cwieZ©b mwVKfv‡e wee„Z Kiv n‡q‡Q|

 †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjb wnmve¸wj h_vh_ wnmve ewn‡Z msiÿY Kiv n‡q‡Q| 

 Avw_©K weeiYxmg~n cÖ¯‘‡Z h‡_vchy³ wnmve bxwZgvjv AbymiY Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges wnmve¸wj b¨vq m½Z I wePvi we‡ePbv cÖmyZfv‡e wea„Z 
n‡q‡Q|

 Avw_©K weeiYxmg~n ˆZix‡Z evsjv‡`‡k Abym„Z AvšÍR©vwZK GKvDw›Us ó¨vÛvW© ev AvšÍR©vwZK dvB‡bwÝqvj wi‡cvwU©s ó¨vÛvW© AbymiY 
K‡i cÖ¯‘Z Kiv n‡q‡Q| G msµvšÍ wel‡q †Kvb wePz¨wZ NU‡j Zv h_vh_fv‡e e¨³ Kiv n‡q‡Q|

 msL¨vjNy Askx`vi‡`i‡K wbqš¿YKvix msL¨v¸iæ Askx`vi‡`i ̄ ^v‡_© Zv‡`i KZ…©K cÖZ¨ÿ ev c‡ivÿ †Kvb Ab¨vh¨ Kg©‡hvM †_‡K myiÿv Kiv 
n‡q‡Q| G j‡ÿ¨ Kvh©Kix cÖwZnZ cš’v MÖnY Kiv n‡q‡Q|

 cÖvß Z_¨vw`i wfwË‡Z fwel¨‡Z †Kvb ÿwZKi SzuwK mdjfv‡e mvgvj †`Iqvi cwiKíbv cwiPvjKMY MÖnY K‡ib| GRb¨ †Kv¤úvbx Zvi 
myôz bxwZ I m¤ú` e¨envi K‡ib| G Rb¨B †Kv¤úvbx Avw_©Kfv‡e h‡_ó kw³kvjx| cl©` cwiPvjKMY Avw_©K, cwiPvjb BZ¨vw` ¸iæZ¡c~Y© 
Dcv`vb¸wj we‡kølY K‡i †Kv¤úvbxi mÿgZv hvPvB K‡ib AvMvgx w`b¸‡jv‡Z avivevwnKfv‡e AMÖmi n‡Z| cwiPvjKMY Av¯’vevb 
AvMvgx‡Z hyw³msMZfv‡e †Kv¤úvbxi Kvh©µg jvMvZvifv‡e Pvwj‡q hvIhvi Rb¨ †Kv¤úvbxi h‡_ó m¤ú` i‡q‡Q| myZivs †Kv¤úvbx 
avivevwnKfv‡e cwiPvwjZ n‡e GB wfwË‡Z Zvi Avw_©K weeiYxmg~n cÖ¯‘Z K‡i‡Q|

 ‡Kv¤úvbx †Kvb AšÍe©Z©xKvjxb †evbvm †kqvi ev óK wWwf‡WÛ †NvlYv K‡i wb|

 we‡eP¨ wnmve eQ‡i AvBwcI dv‡Ûi †Kvb Ae¨eüZ A_© ‡bB|

‡Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjb Kvh©µg 
30 Ryb 2020 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡i ‡Kv¤úvbxi ¯’vwcZ Drcv`b ÿgZv Ges cÖK…Z Drcv`b Gi mv‡_ weMZ eQ‡ii Z‡_¨i Zzjbvg~jK wPÎ wb‡¤œ 
cÖ`Ë n‡jv t

ms ’̄vwcZ Drcv`b ÿgZv (‡gt Ub)

cÖK …Z Drcv`b (‡gt Ub)

e¨eüZ Drcv`b ÿgZv (%)

2019-2020 eQ‡i cÖK …Z Drcv`b Gi ea©b (%)

3,324,000 ‡gt Ub

2,306,260 ‡gt Ub

69%      

3,324,000 ‡gt Ub

2,408,302 ‡gt Ub

73%      

weeiY 2019-2020 2018-2019

(4.24%)
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MZ 5 (cvuP) eQ‡ii ¯’vwcZ Drcv`b ÿgZvi wecix‡Z cÖK…Z Drcv`‡bi aviv wb‡¤œ cÖ`Ë n‡jv t

weµq Kvh©µg 
mviv erm‡i †Kv¤úvbx ewa©Z weµq ivR¯^ Avq Dc‡fvM K‡i‡Q| GB ivR¯^ ea©‡b mnvqZv K‡i‡Q c‡Y¨i DbœZ ¸YMZ gvb, ¸Y ms‡hvMKvix 
MÖvnK ‡mev, kw³kvjx cwi‡ekb P¨v‡bj Ges †Kv¤úvbxi M„nxZ cÖ‡gvkbvj Kvh©µg| c‡Y¨i ¸YMZ gvb wVK ivL‡Z K‡Vvifv‡e Z`viwK Kiv 
nq hv‡Z Ae‡jvKb Kiv nq †h gv‡bi cwigvcK¸‡jv AvB.Gm.I. 9000t2008, evsjv‡`k ó¨vÛvW©m& GÛ †Uwós BÝwUwUDkb I ey¨‡iv Ae 
BwÛqvb ó¨vÛvW©m& Gi mswkøó gv‡bi D‡aŸ© Ae¯’vb K‡i| 

MZ cvuP eQ‡ii weµ‡qi MÖvwd‡Kj wPÎ wb‡¤œ cÖ`Ë n‡jvt
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Avw_©K djvdj
c~e©eZ©x 2018-2019 wnmve eQ‡ii mv‡_ 2019-2020 Gi Zzjbvg~jK Avw_©K Ae¯’v Dc¯’vcb Kiv n‡jv t

cÖvwZôvwbK mvgvwRK `vqe×Zv (wmGmAvi) msµvšÍ Kvh©µg
Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx GKwU K‡c©v‡iU bvMwiK wnmv‡e mgv‡Ri cÖwZ `vqe×Zvi ¯^xK…wZ Rvbvq| GKwU †UKmB Dbœq‡bi Ask wnmv‡e †Kv¤úvbxi 
K‡c©v‡iU mvgvwRK `vqe×Zv ¸iæZ¡ mnKv‡i MÖnY K‡i _v‡K| G e¨vcv‡i Zvi Kvh©µ‡gi Ask we‡kl msjvM-8 G wee„Z n‡q‡Q|

ißvbx
1995 c~e©eZ©x mg‡q evsjv‡`k wm‡g›U Avg`vbxKviK †`k wnmv‡e wPwýZ wQj| 2003 m‡b evsjv‡`k †_‡K cÖ_g wm‡g›U ißvbx ïiæ nq Ges 
†`‡ki ißvbx BwZnv‡m wea„Z Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjt wm‡g›U ißvbxi AMÖcw_K|

eZ©gv‡b evsjv‡`‡ki wm‡g›U fviZxq ̄ ’vbxq wm‡g›U Gi weµq g~‡j¨i mv‡_ Zxeª cÖwZ‡hvwMZv K‡i wU‡K Av‡Q| wm‡g›U ißvbx cwimsL¨vb ej‡Q, 
RvZxq wm‡g›U ißvbxi wmsnfvM `Lj K‡i Av‡Q ÔµvDb wm‡g›UÕ| Gfv‡e ißvbxi gva¨‡g ‰e‡`wkK gy`ªv Avq K‡i G †Kv¤úvbx RvZxq 
A_©bxwZ‡Z D‡jøL‡hvM¨ Ae`vb ivL‡Q| ißvbx‡Z Ae`v‡bi Rb¨ 2008-2009 Ges 2009-2010 A_© eQ‡i †Kv¤úvbx ci ci 2 (`yB) evi 
RvZxq ißvbx Uªwd (¯^Y©) Ges 2013-2014 eQ‡i RvZxq ißvbx Uªwd (†eªvÄ) AR©b K‡i cyi¯‹…Z n‡q‡Q| we‡eP¨ 2019-2020 A_© eQ‡i 
†Kv¤úvbx 527 wgwjqb UvKv ißvbxi gva¨‡g ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv Avq K‡i‡Q, hvÕ weMZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 9.13% †ekx| 

Z_¨ cÖhyw³
Z_¨ cÖhyw³ wefvM Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjt (µvDb wm‡g›U MÖæc) Gi GKwU ¸iæZ¡c~Y© wefvM| GB wefvM †Kv¤úvbxi D‡Ïk¨ ev¯Íevq‡Y 
cÖ‡qvRbxq myiÿvi Rb¨ wewfbœ Dcv‡q Z_¨ w`‡q Avm‡Q| †KvwfW-19 gvnvgvix Kvjxb mg‡q GB wefvM †Kv¤úvbxi Ab¨ mKj ÷ª¨v‡UwRK 
weR‡bm BDwbU‡K `~ieZ©x †hvMv‡hvM cø¨vUdi‡gi gva¨‡g mnvqZv w`‡q Avm‡Q| †Kv¤úvbxi mKj wefvM GLb AvB.wU cø¨vUdi‡g mshy³ Ges 
GB wefvM Ab¨ mKj wefvM‡K mn‡hvMxZv Kivq D‡jøL‡hvM¨ AMÖMwZ Ki‡Z †c‡i‡Q| D‡jøL‡hvM¨ msL¨K AvB.wU wWfvBm Gi Dbœqb Kiv n‡q‡Q 
hvÕ cieZ©x‡Z †Kv¤úvbxi wm‡g›U †Wwjfvix NvU¸wj‡Z ‡cÖiY Kiv n‡q‡Q|  

AvMvgx w`b¸‡jv‡Z †Kv¤úvbxi e¨emvqxK Z_¨ we‡kølY Ki‡Z Av‡iv DbœZ cÖhyw³i A¨vcm e¨envi Kiv n‡e| GB ga¨eZx© e¨e¯’v eZ©gv‡b Pvjy 
_vKv Gm/4 nvbv BAviwc Gi mv‡_ mgwš^Z K‡i KvR Kiv n‡e|  

gvbe m¤ú`
Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjwg‡UW Gi Kg©KZ©v / Kg©PvixMY †Kv¤úvbxi Ab¨Zg ¸iæZ¡c~Y© m¤ú`| †Kv¤úvbxi Ôgvbe m¤ú` Ges cÖkvmbÕ 
wefvM n‡Z c„_K K‡i 3 Rb †jvKej wb‡q gvbe m¤ú` wefvM Pvjy n‡q‡Q, GLb ch©šÍ G wefvM 10 (`k) Rb Rbkw³ wb‡q KvR K‡i hv‡”Q| 
G wefv‡Mi D‡Ïk¨ n‡jv, †Kv¤úvbx‡Z kÖwgK‡`i Rb¨ `ÿZv Ges wkÿvi cwi‡ek m„wó Kiv, hv‡Z Kg©PvixMY Zv‡`i †kÖô DrKl© cÖ‡qvM Ki‡Z 
cv‡i Ges Zv‡`i Af¨šÍixY ¸YMZ m¤¢ve¨Zvi DrKl© NUv‡Z cv‡i|

weµq
Drcv`b e¨q
‡gvU gybvdv
Ki c~e© bxU gybvdv
Ki cieZ©x bxU gybvdv
‡gvU m¤ú`
bxU m¤ú` (GbGwf)
bxU cwiPvjb bM` cÖevn
‡kqvi cÖwZ Avq (BwcGm)
‡kqvi cÖwZ bxU m¤ú` (GbGwfwcGm)
‡kqvi cÖwZ bxU cwiPvjb bM` cÖevn
MÖm gvwR©b
bxU gvwR©b (Ki c~e©)
bxU gvwR©b (Ki cieZ©x)

          13,876,211,430 
        (12,454,360,809)
            1,421,850,621 
                (28,220,185)
              (132,453,273)
          19,084,838,495 
            6,887,115,713 

548,157,464 
                             (0.89)
                             46.38 
                               3.69 

10.25%
(0.20%)
(0.95%)

14,628,432,591
(12,698,608,615)

1,929,823,976
435,412,444
251,150,155

19,277,983,869
7,160,477,708
266,848,976

1.69
48.22
1.80

13.19%
2.98%
1.72%

weeiY 2019-2020
UvKv

2018-2019
UvKv



‡Kv¤úvbxi ev‡RU Ges jÿ¨gvÎv AR©‡b wefvMxq I e¨w³MZ ‡K.wc.AvB. Gi mv‡_ †Kv¤úvbx ‡K.wc.AvB. cÖYqb Kiv n‡q‡Q| Avgv‡`i 
B.Avi.wc. mdU&Iqv‡i cÖwZwU Kg©KZ©v / Kg©Pvixi ‡K.wc.AvB. mshy³ Kiv n‡q‡Q, ‡hb cÖwZwU Kg©KZ©v / Kg©Pvix Zv‡`i wb‡Ri ‡K.wc.AvB. 
Ae‡jvKb Ki‡Z cv‡i| ‡Kv¤úvbxi mvgMÖxK ‡K.wc.AvB. AR©‡bi j‡ÿ¨ Avgiv cÖwZwU e¨w³i ‡K.wc.AvB. AR©b wbwðZ Kivi welqwU 
ZË¡veavb K‡i _vwK| Avgiv RbwcÖq ‡ej Kvf© g¨vwUª· Abymv‡i cÖwZwU Kg©Pvixi evrmwiK Kg©Kv‡Ûi g~j¨vqY K‡i _vwK| G‡Z Kg©KZ©v / 
Kg©Pvixi cvi`kx©Zv Ges Acvi`kx©Zv cÖwZqgvb n‡q D‡V| AvMvgx erm‡i Avgiv Ab&jvBb Gi gva¨‡g Kg©KZv© / Kg©Pvix‡`i evwl©K 
g~j¨vqYI Ki‡Z cvi‡ev| †KvwfW-19 Gi Kvi‡Y c„w_ex 2020 mv‡j GK bZzb c„w_exi m¤§yLxb n‡Z hv‡”Q| wek¦ ¯^v¯’¨ ms¯’v `ywbqve¨vcx G‡K 
gnvgvixi †NvlYvI w`‡q‡Q| eZ©gv‡bi ¯^vfvweK Ae¯’vq Avgv‡`i Kg©KZ©v / Kg©Pvix‡`i Rb¨ wKQz cÖwZKv‡ii e¨e¯’v †bqv n‡q‡Q hv‡Z 
†KvwfW-19 msµgY n‡Z myiÿv cvq| †Kvb Kg©KZ©v / Kg©Pvix †KvwfW-19 G AvµvšÍ n‡j Avgiv Zvi Rb¨ †eZbmn 21 w`‡bi we‡kl QzwUi 
Ges Kg©Pvix Kj¨vY Znwej †_‡K wPwKrmvi Rb¨ wKQy fvZv ms¯’v‡bi e¨e¯’v K‡iwQ| K‡ivbvq AvµvšÍ m‡›`n n‡j Avgiv Zvi cixÿvi e¨e¯’v 
‡i‡LwQ| K‡ivbvi cÖv_wgK Ae¯’vq †`‡k jK&WvDb †NvlYvi mv‡_ mv‡_ Avgiv Kg©Pvix‡`i evwo‡Z Ae¯’vb K‡i Awd‡mi KvR Kivi my‡hvM 
cÖ`vb K‡iwQ Ges †ivóvi wWDwUiI cÖPjY K‡iwQ| †KvwfW-19 †_‡K myiÿvi Rb¨ KiYxq Ges eR©bxq Kg©KvÛ cÖPv‡ii bxwZgvjv MÖnY 
K‡iwQ|

GKRb Kg©KZ©v / Kg©Pvixi †Kv¤úvbx‡Z PvKzix Kivi wel‡q Zvi m‡šÍvl-Am‡šÍvl AbymÜvb I cwigv‡ci Rb¨ GKwU di‡gU ‰Zix K‡iwQ| 
Avgiv KvwqK GBP.Avi.AvB.Gm. iƒcvšÍwiZ K‡i wWwRUvj dig-G wb‡quwuQ| K‡ivbv gnvgvixi Kvi‡Y PvKzix cÖv_©x‡`i myiÿv I myweavi Rb¨ 
PvKzixi mvÿvrKvi Avgiv ¯‹vBwc ev Ryg A¨vcm Gi gva¨‡g MÖnY K‡iwQ| GB gnvgvixi Rb¨ evwn‡ii †Kvb ms¯’vi gva¨‡g Kg©KZ©v / 
Kg©Pvix‡`i cÖwkÿY bv K‡i Af¨šÍixY cÖwkÿK Øviv m¤úbœ Kiv n‡”Q Ges AbjvBb †UªBwbs †cvU©v‡ji gva¨‡g cvi¯úwiK Av‡jvPbv I gZ 
wewbgq K‡i †hvM¨Zv I Áv‡bi cwimxgv e„w× Kiv n‡”Q|

MZ cvuP eQ‡ii  †Kv¤úvbxi Rbkw³i GKwU MÖvd bx‡P cÖ`Ë n‡jvt

Rxeb wbivcËv, ¯^v¯’¨ I Kg© cwi‡ek
Kg©Pvix‡`i wbivcËv I cwi‡ek msiÿY Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjt Gi cÖv_wgK Ges ¸iæZ¡c~Y© `vwqZ¡| Avgiv †Kv¤úvbxi ‡jvKej, 
wVKv`vi Ges ¯’vbxq m¤úª`vq¸wji wbivcËv iÿvq A½xKvive×| Avgv‡`i wbivcËv Kg©m~Px mKj ‡jvKe‡ji g‡a¨ wbivcËvi ms¯‹…wZ cyYt 
cÖPjb Ki‡e| RvZxq Ges AvšÍR©vwZK wbqg, wkígvY Ges m‡e©v”P cÖPjb Gi cwicvjb B.GBP.Gm. / cwjwmi bxwZi g‡a¨ AšÍf‚©³ Kiv 
n‡q‡Q| Rxeb wbivcËv, ¯^v¯’¨ I Kg© cwi‡ek cwicvj‡bi gva¨‡g mKj e¨emvqxK Kvh©µ‡g GwUi Dbœqb ‡Kv¤úvbx‡Z Ges †`‡k GB ms¯‹…wZi 
Pvjy Ki‡e| Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjt cÖZ¨vkv K‡i †h Rxeb wbivcËv, ¯^v¯’¨ I Kg© cwi‡ek m¤úwK©Z g¨v‡bR‡g›U wm‡÷g m‡šÍvmRbKfv‡e 
cwicvjb Ki‡Q Ges G wel‡q AvšÍR©vwZK m‡ev©”P ¯^xK…wZ AvB.Gm.I. 9001 Gi ¯^xK…wZ jvf K‡i| G †ÿ‡Î Avgv‡`i A½xKv‡ii Ask wnmv‡e 
Avgiv AvšÍR©vwZK ¯^xK…wZ AvB.Gm.I. 14001, AvB.Gm.I. 45001 gvY AR©‡bi cÖ‡Póvq AvwQ| 
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2020 mv‡j Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjt Zvi cÖwZwU †ÿ‡Î Rxeb wbivcËv, ¯^v¯’¨ I Kg© cwi‡ek cÖwZcv`‡b µgvMZ DbœwZ NwU‡q‡Q, hvi 
djkÖæwZ‡Z eo ai‡bi AvnZ nIqv Ges Rxeb bv‡mi nvi D‡jøL‡hvM¨fv‡e n«vm †c‡q‡Q| 2020 mv‡ji Ryb gv‡mi †k‡l 
Gj.wU.AvB.Gd.Avi. wQj 1.3 Ges †Kvb Rxeb bvm wQj bv| Avgiv `~N©UYv k~‡b¨i †KvVvq Avbvi Rb¨ wewfbœ cÖ‡Póv ‡hgb- wbivcËv 
e¨e¯’v, cÖwkÿY, G wel‡q mnvqK wPšÍv-fvebv, wbivcËv ms¯‹…wZ Ges IqvK© cviwgU BZ¨vw` cÖPjb K‡i‡Q| Kg©‡ÿ‡Î `~N©UYv †iv‡a wb¤œwjwLZ 
6 (Qq) ai‡bi SuywKi wel‡q Av‡jvKcvZ K‡iwQt

 msKxY© Kg©¯’vb
 D”y¯’v‡b KvR 
 Dò GjvKvq KvR
 ‰e`¨ywZK KvR
 ‡givgZ KvR Ges
 weaŸsmx KvR

Avgiv Avgv‡`i Kg©KZ©v / Kg©PvixM‡Yi wbw`©ó mgq AšÍi wPwKrmv msµvšÍ cixÿv-wbixÿv K‡i _vwK| Avgiv ÔKv‡Ri Rb¨ Dchy³Õ cixÿv 
c×wZ Pvjy Kivi cwiKíbv KiwQ| ZvQvov †Kv¤úvbxi dvó GBW †m›Uvi Kg©KZ©v / Kg©Pvix‡`i Ges wVKv`vi‡`i 24/7 ̄ ^v¯’ †mev w`‡q Avm‡Q| 
Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjt Kg©KZ©v / Kg©Pvix‡`i Ges wVKv`vi‡`i K¬vkiæ‡g G msµvšÍ †Uªwbs Gi e¨e¯’vmn Av‡jvP¨ †Uªwbs †Kvm© cyYM©wVZ 
K‡i‡Q| Rxeb wbivcËv, ¯^v¯’¨ I Kg© cwi‡ek cyi¯‹vi cÖvwß n‡jv G†ÿ‡Î D‡jøL‡hvM¨ AR©‡bi ¯^xK…wZ|  

Avgiv evqy `~lY Kgv‡bvi Rb¨ cÖ‡qvRxq e¨e¯’v MÖn‡Y A½xKvive×| Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjt evqy `~lY Gi gvÎv ch©‡eÿ‡Yi Rb¨ evqy 
`~lY ch©‡eÿY †cÖvMÖvg ev¯ÍevqY K‡i‡Q Ges G Rb¨ †h me †ÿ‡Î DbœqY cÖ‡qvRb ZvÕ wPwýZ Ki‡Yi e¨e¯’v MÖnY K‡i‡Q| evqy `~lY nv‡ii 
Z‡_¨ wewfbœ ai‡bi Dcv`vb _v‡K| wb¤œwjwLZ cš’vq †Kv¤úvbx evqy `~lY K‡Vvifv‡e wbqš¿Y K‡i| h_vt †jvwWs Gwiqv‡Z Wvó G·UªvKmb 
wm‡÷g Gi e¨envi; cvwb wQUv‡bv; e„ÿ †ivcb; Wvó Kv‡j±i; cwi¯Kvi cwiQbœZv Awfhvb; m‡e©vcwi mswkøó mK‡ji gv‡S G msµvšÍ 
m‡PZbZv e„w×| G QvovI Avgiv B‡Kv ncvi, wd·W †fKvg cvBwcs wm‡÷g, †gKvwbK¨vj †ivW myBcvi, †UªBjvi †fKvg †gwkb ¯’vc‡bi 
cwiKíbv KiwQ| 

gvby‡li Ges cwi‡e‡ki hZœ †bqv n‡jv Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjt Gi m‡ev©”P AMÖvwaKvi| hv‡Z †Kv¤úvbx‡Z hviv KvR K‡i Zv‡`i cÖ‡Z¨‡K 
†hb nZvnZ bv n‡q cÖwZw`‡bi KvR †k‡l my¯’fv‡e Zv‡`i cwiev‡ii wbKU wd‡i †h‡Z cv‡i|   

RvZxq A_© fvÐv‡i Avw_©K Ae`vb t
30 Ryb 2020 A_© eQ‡i †Kv¤úvbx 3,251 wgwjqb UvKv RvZxq A_© fvÐv‡i Rgv K‡i‡Q, hvi we¯ÍvwiZ weeiY wb¤œiƒc t

                      weeiY
AwMÖg AvqKi
g~mK
ïé
‡gvU

 2015-16   
 258 

 1,378 
 594 

 2,230 

2016-17   
 336 

 1,359 
 543 

 2,238 

2017-18  
 590 

 1,801 
 847 

 3,238 

2018-19  
 668 

 2,122 
 910

 3,700 

2019-20 
403

2,003
845

3,251

(wgwjqb UvKvq)
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weMZ cvuP eQ‡i RvZxq A_© fvÛv‡i †Kv¤úvbxi RgvK…Z A‡_©i Z_¨ wb‡¤œ MÖv‡di gva¨‡g Dc¯’vcb Kiv n‡jvt

e¨v‡jÝ kxU DËi NUbvejx
e¨v‡jÝkxU cÖ¯‘‡Zi cieZ©x NUbvmg~n wb¤œiƒc t

 ‡Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjbv cl©` Zvu‡`i 14 b‡f¤^i 2020 Zvwi‡Li cl©` mfvq 30 Ryb 2020 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii Rb¨ 10% bM` jf¨vsk 
Aby‡gv`b K‡i‡Qb A_©vr cÖwZ 10.00 UvKv AwfwnZ g~‡j¨i †kqv‡ii wecix‡Z 1.00 UvKv gvÎ| Zv‡Z †gvU bM` jf¨vsk Gi cwigvY 
`vuovq 148,500,000 UvKv hv 29 wW‡m¤^i 2020 Zvwi‡L AbywôZe¨ 26Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq ‡kqvi‡nvìviMY KZ©„K Aby‡gv`b 
mv‡cÿ| 

 Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjwg‡UW Gi wZbwU gv`vi †f‡mj AÎ †Kv¤úvbxi m¤ú~Y© gvwjKvbvaxb wZbwU mvewmwWqvix †Kv¤úvbx‡Z 
¯’vbvšÍi Kivi Kvh©µg ¯’wMZ Kivi welqwU ‡Kv¤úvbxi cl©` mfvq me©m¤§wZµ‡g Aby‡gv`b Kiv nq| D³ gv`vi †f‡mj¸‡jv Ges 
¯’vbvšÍi Kivi welqwU c~e©eZ©x cl©` mfvq Ges evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Aby‡gv`b Kiv n‡qwQj| gv`vi ‡f‡mj Gi gvwjKvbv ¯’vbvšÍi 
Kivi Rb¨ wewfbœ AvšÍR©vwZK Awd‡mi Aby‡gv`‡bi cÖ‡qvRb nq| wKš‘ wek¦e¨vcx †KvwfW-19 gnvgvixi cÖv`~f©v‡ei Kvi‡Y mg¯Í 
AvšÍR©vwZK Awdm¸‡jvi Kvh©µg eÜ n‡q hvq, hvi djkÖæwZ‡Z gv`vi †f‡mj¸‡jv mvewmwWqvix †Kv¤úvbx‡Z ¯’vbvšÍi Kivi 
AvbyôvwbKZv m¤úbœ Kiv hvq wb| GQvovI eZ©gv‡b cÖZxqgvY nq †h, gv`vi †f‡mj¸‡jv ¯’vbvšÍi Kivi †ÿ‡Î AvšÍR©vwZK Ges 
RvZxqfv‡e cÖPzi cwigv‡Y AcÖZ¨vwkZ Ki cÖ`v‡bi m¤§yLxb n‡Z n‡e, hv gv`vi †f‡mj¸‡jv ¯’vbvšÍi Kivq †h myweav¸‡jv Avkv Kiv 
n‡qwQj eZ©gvb cwiw¯’wZ D³ c~e©eZ©x wm×v‡šÍi cwicš’x| GgZve¯’vq, Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjwg‡UW Gi gvwjKvbvaxb wZbwU 
gv`vi †f‡mj D³ †Kv¤úvbxi m¤ú` wnmv‡eB _vK‡e, hv cieZ©x evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ Dc¯’vcb Kiv n‡e| G‡ÿ‡Î Gg. 
AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjwg‡UW Gi gvwjKvbvaxb wZbwU gv`vi †f‡mj‡K ¯’vbvšÍi Kivi Rb¨ MwVZ wZbwU mvewmwWqvix †Kv¤úvbx‡K eÜ 
Kiv n‡e|    

 Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjwg‡UW Gi 6ô BDwbU ¯’vcb AvcvZZt ¯’wMZ Kivi welqwU ‡Kv¤úvbxi cl©` mfvq me©m¤§wZµ‡g 
Aby‡gv`b Kiv nq| wek¦e¨vcx †KvwfW-19 gnvgvixi cÖv`~f©v‡ei Kvi‡Y 6ô BDwbU ¯’vcb Kivi Rb¨ AvšÍR©vwZK wVKv`vi‡`i mv‡_ 
KvwiMwi, evwbwR¨K Ges A_©vq‡bi wel‡q Av‡jvPbv ¯’wMZ n‡q hvq| GQvovI †KvwfW-19 gnvgvixi cÖv`yf©v‡ei mv‡_ mv‡_ †`‡k wm‡g›U 
wk‡íi Pvwn`v Zxeª nv‡i n«vm †c‡q‡Q Ges wm‡g‡›Ui Drcv`b b~¨bZg ch©v‡q cwiPvwjZ n‡”Q| hw` mvgMÖxK A_©bxwZ cybiæ¾xweZ bv nq 
Z‡e AvMvgx `yB †_‡K wZb eQ‡ii g‡a¨ wm‡g‡›Ui Pvwn`v gš’i _vK‡e e‡j g‡b Kiv n‡”Q| GgZve¯’vq, †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjbv cl©` 
eZ©gvb †cÖÿvc‡U g‡b K‡i †h, †Kv¤úvbxi we`¨gvb Drcv`b ÿgZv wm‡g‡›Ui eZ©gvb Pvwn`v‡K c~iY Ki‡Z mÿg n‡e| ZvB †Kv¤úvbxi 
6ô BDwbU ¯’vcb Kivi welqwU cieZ©x mg‡q we‡ePbv Kiv †h‡Z cv‡i| 
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 Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjwg‡UW KZ©„K µvDb †gwibvm© wjwg‡UW Ges µvDb cwjgvi e¨vwMs wjwg‡UW Gi m¤ú~Y© e¨emvwqK Kvh©µg 
fvov †bqvi welqwU cl©` KZ©„K Aby‡gvw`Z nq, hvi djkÖæwZ‡Z Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±ix wjwg‡UW Gi e¨emvwqK `ÿZv e„w×mn 
wm‡g‡›Ui KuvPvgv‡ji `vg Ges weµxZ c‡Y¨i Drcv`b LiP Kg‡e|   

 ‡Kv¤úbxi cÖqvZ e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK, AvjnvR& †gvt Lwei DwÏb †gvjøvn MZ 25 †g 2019 Zvwi‡L g„Z¨yeiY K‡ib| G msµvšÍ 
mvK‡kmb mvwU©wd‡KU gnvgvb¨ †KvU© KZ©„K 1 A‡±vei 2020 Zvwi‡L Bm¨y Kiv n‡q‡Q, hv 30 Ryb 2020 Zvwi‡Li ci cvIqv †M‡Q| 

Mfb©¨vÝ, ‰bwZKZv Ges Zvi cwicvjb
mykvmb Ges ‰bwZK AvPiY Gg. AvB. wm‡g›U d¨v±wi wjwg‡U‡Wi mKj Kg©Kv‡Ûi wfwË| Bnv wek¦vm, SzuwK e¨e¯’vcbv, w¯’wZkxj we¯Ívi Ges 
µwgK e¨emv cÖmv‡i mnvqZv cÖ`vb K‡i| bxwZgvjv n‡jv P¨v‡jwÄs Bmy¨i gy‡LvgyLx msMÖvg Kiv, Avgv‡`i Av`vb-cÖ`vb I ‡hvMv‡hv‡Mi mnR 
c×wZ AbymiY, mevi Rb¨ Revew`wnZv Ges Kg©KZ©v / Kg©Pvix‡`i‡K mvwe©K Kg©cš’v Abymi‡Yi mvnm cÖ`vb|  Avgv‡`i e¨emvwqK ̂ bwZKZvi 
cvkvcvwk wbR¯^ ‰bwZKZv, bxweo cÖwkÿY Kg©KZ©v / Kg©Pvix‡`i ̂ bwZKfv‡e wm×všÍ wb‡Z mvnm †hvMvq| Avgv‡`i Kv‡Ri ̀ vwqZ¡ cvj‡b µgvMZ 
ZË¡veavY Kivi c×wZ, AbymiY Kivi AvPiY †bZ…Z¡ MÖn‡Y mnvqZv K‡i|

myZivs Avgv‡`i ‡Kv¤úvbxi `vwqZ¡kxj Kg©KZ©vMY wb‡`©k cÖ`vb K‡ib I cÖkvmb cwiPvjbv K‡ib wjwLZ cÖbqbK„Z AvBb, bxwZ Ges wba©vwiZ 
c×wZ AbymiY K‡i, hv evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR A¨vÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgk‡bi (weGmBwm) weÁwß bst weGmBwm /wmGgAviAviwmwW / 2006 - 
158/207/cÖkvmb/80 ZvwiL 3 Ryb 2018, ‡Kv¤úvwb AvBb, 1994 Ges XvKv Ges wPUvMvs ÷K G·‡PÄ Gi wjw÷s ‡i¸‡jkbm, 2015 
wb‡`©wkKv¸wj‡Z wba©viY Kiv n‡q‡Q| Av‡jvP¨ A_© eQi Z_v 30 Ryb 2020 wnmve eQ‡ii Rb¨ cwiPvjK‡`i ‡NvlYvcÎ, ‡kqviavi‡Yi 
cwigvY I aiY Ges cl©‡`i cÖwZ e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK Ges wm.Gd.I. Gi ‡NvlYvcÎ cwiwkó- 1, 2,  4 Ges 5 G aivevwnKfv‡e wee„Z Kiv 
n‡q‡Q| AwaKš‘, ‡gmvm© Avn‡g` Rv‡Ki GÛ †Kvs, PvU©vW© GKvD›U¨v›Um& KZ©„K cÖ`Ë K‡c©v‡iU Mfb©¨vÝ Kgcøv‡qÝ cÖwZ‡e`b Ges K‡c©v‡iU 
Mfb©¨vÝ Kgcøv‡qÝ mvwU©wd‡KU GB cÖwZ‡e`‡bi mv‡_ cwiwkó 6 Ges 7 G wee„Z Kiv n‡q‡Q|

Avgv‡`i K…ZÁZv cÖKvk
Avgv‡`i GB Av‡jvP¨ erm‡ii cÖkswmZ Kvh©µg ev e¨emvwqK AR©b wewfbœ msMVb, cÖwZôvb I e¨w³e‡M©i mvbyMÖn I cÖkswmZ mvnvh¨ I 
mn‡hvwMZvi mgwš^Z cÖwZdjb| cÖ_‡gB Avgiv ¯§iY KiwQ Avgv‡`i m¤§vbxZ MÖvnK‡`i Ges m‡½ m‡½ Avgv‡`i Kg©KZ©v / Kg©Pvix‡`i AK¬všÍ 
kÖg, mnvqZv cÖ`vbKvix †kqvi‡nvìvi Ges Ab¨vb¨ †óK‡nvìvi‡`i| GB cÖm‡½B Avgv‡`i cwiPvjbv cl©` kª×v Ávcb Ki‡Qb, Avgv‡`i 
m¤§vbxZ †óK‡nvìvi‡`i Zuv‡`i A‡kl mg_©b, myweÁ w`K-wb‡`©kbvi Rb¨, hvi Kvh©KvwiZv †Kv¤úvbxi cÖkswmZ mvdj¨ AR©‡b mnvq n‡q‡Q|

Avgviv K„ZÁ wP‡Ë Avgv‡`i m¤§vbxZ †kqvi‡nvìviM‡Yi Ag~j¨ mnvqZv ¯§iY KiwQ, hv ïay evrmwiK mvaviY mfv cwiPvjbvqB mnvqZv 
K‡iwb eis Ab¨vb¨ †ÿ‡ÎI Zv‡`i mvnvh¨ †c‡qwQ| Avgiv gnvg~j¨ g‡b Kwi Avgv‡`i m¤§vwbZ MÖvnKM‡Yi mnvqZv, mvnvh¨ Ges †h wek¦vm I 
Av¯’v Zuviv Avgv‡`i Dci Ac©b K‡i‡Q| Avgv‡`i ïfvKv•ÿx‡`i cÖwZ AšÍ‡ii Mfxi ‡_‡K ab¨ev` Ávcb KiwQ|

Avgiv AvšÍwiK K…ZÁZv Ávcb KiwQ MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k miKv‡ii mKj gš¿Yvj‡qi cÖwZ, RvZxq ivR¯^ †evW©, evsjv‡`k wewb‡qvM Dbœqb 
KZ©„cÿ, †iwRóªvi Ae R‡q›U óK †Kv¤úvbxR GÛ dvg©m, evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb, †m›Uªvj wW‡cvwRUix evsjv‡`k 
wjwg‡UW, XvKv óK G·‡PÄ wjt, wPUvMvs óK G·‡PÄ wjt, ‡Kv¤úvbxi mKj e¨vsKvi, exgvKvix cÖwZôvbmg~n, Avw_©K cÖwZôvbmg~n, †fÛim&, 
†cÖm I wewfbœ wgwWqv Ges mKj e¨emvqxK cvU©bvi I Zv‡`i KgKZ©v / Kg©Pvix‡`i hv‡`i KvQ †_‡K AdzišÍ mvnvh¨ mn‡hvwMZv †c‡qwQ| hv‡`i 
Qvov G †Kv¤úvbx myPviæiƒ‡c cwiPvjbv Kiv mnRZi n‡Zv bv| G QvovI AmsL¨ ïfvKv•ÿx‡`i mnvqZv †c‡qwQ | mK‡ji cÖwZ iBj Avgv‡`i 
AdzišÍ fvjevmv I kÖ×v|

me‡k‡l wKš‘ K…ZÁZvq D‡aŸ©, Avgv‡`i Me© Avgv‡`i KgKZ©v / Kg©Pvix‡`i cÖwZ hv‡`i AK¬všÍ Kg© m¤úv`b kw³ ms‡hvM Kg©KzkjZv G 
†Kv¤úvbx‡K eZ©gvb mvd‡j¨i kx‡l© Ae¯’vb Ki‡Z mnvqZv K‡i‡Q |

cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i c‡ÿ

(‡gvnv¤§` Rvnv½xi Avjg)
‡Pqvig¨vb
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ANNEXURE

ANNEXURE-I

SUMMARY OF KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA OF PRECEDING FIVE YEARS AND THE CURRENT YEAR

                Particulars

Revenue

Gross Profit

Operating Profit

Net Profit Before Tax

Net Profit After Tax

Earnings Per Share (Taka)

2019-20

13,876,211

1,421,851

799,582

(28,220)

(132,453)

(0.89)

2018-19

14,628,433

1,929,824

1,177,413

435,412

251,150

1.69

2017-18

12,559,312

1,643,420

1,001,290

410,225

315,613

2.13

2016-17

9,439,820

1,610,438

1,109,777

859,884

661,079

4.45

2015-16

9,016,549

1,659,355

1,196,135

980,009

744,248

5.01

2014-15

8,264,241

1,413,692

984,673

856,236

648,851

4.37

Income and Expenses

2019-20

8,299,906

36,825

281,256

10,503,676

19,084,839

6,887,116

1,777,980

10,419,743

12,197,723

19,084,839

2018-19

8,390,082

41,908

256,342

10,631,559

19,277,984

7,160,478

2,442,641

9,674,866

12,117,506

19,277,984

2017-18

8,142,906

34,530

232,155

11,304,321

19,713,912

7,124,354

2,760,000

9,829,558

12,589,558

19,713,912

2016-17

  7,582,097

-      

198,585

10,138,765

17,919,447

7,097,795

2,448,881

8,372,771

10,821,652

17,919,447

2015-16

  5,416,696

-     

133,919

8,609,003

14,159,619

6,724,824

713,546

6,721,249

7,434,795

14,159,619

2014-15

4,210,152

-     

96,956

7,754,595

12,061,703

5,879,330

838,392

5,343,981

6,182,373

12,061,703

Assets and Liabilities (Taka in ’000)

(Taka in ’000)

                Particulars

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Intangible Asset 

Investment in Associate Companies

Current Assets

Total Assets

Equity and Liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity

Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities & Provision

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities
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ANNEXURE

ANNEXURE-II

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

(a) Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and other related parties (name wise details) : Not applicable.

(b) Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance 
and their Spouses and Minor Children (name-wise details): 

(c) Executives (top five salaried employees other than the Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief 
Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance):

Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the Company (name wise details):

Name Position
No. of Shares

Self Spouse Minor Children 
Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam Chairman 23,024,925

12,127,500
14,397,075
12,127,500
7,276,500

23,388,750

Nil N/A
Mr. Molla Mohammad Majnu Managing Director
Mr. Md. Alamgir Kabir Director Nil Nil
Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah Director Nil N/A
Mr. Md. Almas Shimul Director Nil Nil

Alhaj Md. Khabir Uddin Mollah Former Managing Director 
(Died on 25.5.2019) Nil N/A

N/A N/A

N/AMr. Zakir Ahmed Khan Independent Director Nil Nil
Prof. Dr. M. Abu Eusuf Independent Director Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Md. Mukter Hossain Talukder, FCA Chief Executive Officer Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS Sr. GM & Company Secretary Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Md. Abdul Kayum, FCMA Sr. DGM & CFO
(Current Charge)

Nil Nil Nil

Name No. of Shares
Executives Nil

Name Position No. of Shares
Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam Chairman 23,024,925

Alhaj Md. Khabir Uddin Mollah Former Managing Director
(Died on 25.5.2019) 23,388,750

17.52

15.16

67.08%

0.24%

SHAREHOLDING COMPOSITION OF THE MEMBERS (AS AT 30 JUNE 2020) 

Sponsors and Director     Foreigners     Institute     General Public

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares % of Shares
Sponsors and Directors
Foreigners
Institute
General Public

99,618,750
358,209

26,009,120
22,513,921

67.08%
  0.24%
17.52%
15.16%
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ANNEXURE

ANNEXURE-III
RESUME OF RE-APPOINTED DIRECTORS

Directors’ profile who seek re-appointment

Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam
Chairman
Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam is a man of wisdom and energetic businessman. After completing education from 
Government College of Commerce, Chattogram, Bangladesh in 1980 started his career by joining in a private service.
He has derived vast proficiency in trading in Iron & Steel, Cement, Bitumen, C. I. Sheet, Zinc Ingot, Capital Market, Industrial 
Ventures etc. Initially he established his business house named Jahangir & Others in 1987 which was subsequently 
incorporated as Jahangir & Others Limited in 2003. He has established himself as one of the business leaders in Bangladesh.
He is the Sponsor Director and Chairman of M. I. Cement Factory Limited (Crown Cement), Crown Power Generation 
Limited, Crown Polymer Bagging Limited, Crown Mariners Limited, Crown Transportation & Logistics Limited and GPH Ship 
Builders Limited.
He is also the Chairman and Managing Director of GPH Engineers & Development Limited, Chittagong Capital Limited, GPH 
Power Generation Limited.
He is the Managing Director of GPH Ispat Limited,  Jahangir & Others Limited and Indo Steel Re-rolling Industries Limited.
He is also the Director of Crown Cement Concrete and Building Products Limited, Premier Cement Mills Limited, Premier 
Power Generation Limited, National Cement Mills Limited, Asia Insurance Limited and Chartered Life Insurance Limited, Eco 
Ceramics Industries Limited and Imperial Hospital Limited. 
As a part of social activities, he is actively involved with the following social organizations:

• Founder Member of Independent University of Bangladesh (IUB), Chattogram, Bangladesh
• Donor Member of Gulshan North Club Limited
• Permanent Member of Gulshan Club Limited
• Life Member of Chittagong Maa-o-Shishu Hospital
• Vice President of Bangladesh Small and Captive Power Producers' Association
• Member of Bangladesh German Chamber of Commerce and Industry
• Member of Bangladesh Ex-Cadet Association
• Life Member of Bangladesh National Society for the Blind
• Life Member of Bhatiary Golf & Country Club
• Life Member of Gulshan Society
• Adviser of Gulshan Joggers Society
• General Member of FBCCI
• Permanent Member of Banani Club Limited

• Life Member of Dhaka Boat Club Limited
Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam is a man of commitment which he strongly maintains in his day to day business activities.

Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah
Additional Managing Director
Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah is a Sponsor Director and Additional Managing Director of M. I. Cement Factory Limited.
He is the Managing Director of Molla Salt (Triple Refined) Industry Limited, Crown Polymer Bagging Limited and Crown 
Power Generation Limited.
He is also the Director of Crown Mariners Limited, Crown Cement Concrete and Building Products Limited and Crown 
Transportation and Logistics Limited. Together with his other family members, he has been carrying out the trading 
operations from their reputed organization, dealing in Cement and Other Construction Materials.He is an active partner of 
Molla Salt Industries and M. M. Salt Industries Limited, from which two branded salt has been leading the market of the 
nation named as “Molla Super Salt” and “Molla Salt” for the decades. He is also one of the members of the Board’s Audit 
Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee of M. I. Cement Factory Limited.
He is the highest Tax Payer of Narayanganj District for the consecutive last 5 (Five) years. Other than a businessman, he also 
loves to work for the underprivileged peoples of the society for which he has cofounded & leading the “Molla Salt 
Foundation Ltd.” as honorable secretary.
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ANNEXURE

ANNEXURE - IV

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In compliance with the Condition No. 5(xxv) of the Corporate Governance Code as issued by BSEC vide its notification dated 
3 June 2018, a brief Management analysis is given on Company’s position on the operations and financial statements 
focusing, in particular, on the following issues: 

(a) Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements;

The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all the years presented. The specific accounting policies 
selected and applied by the Company’s management for significant transactions and events that have a material effect in 
preparation and presentation of financial statements are in compliance with the framework of the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounting standards

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987, the Companies Act., 1994 and other 
applicable laws and regulations.

Accounting convention

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost model except property, plant and equipments which have 
been measured under revaluation model. The Company classified the expenses using the function of expenses method as 
per the IAS-1: Presentation of financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of financial statements, complying IFRS, requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also 
requires management to exercise their judgment in ascertaining assumption in the process of applying the Company’s 
accounting policies and reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Such estimates are prepared on the 
assumption of going concern and are established based on currently available information. Changes in facts and 
circumstances may result in revised estimates and actual result could differ from the estimates.

Estimates are made by the Management in the preparation of the financial statements include assumptions used for 
depreciation, allowances for receivables, deferred taxes and provisions for employees’ benefits. 

Property, plant and equipments (PPE)

Tangible fixed assets are accounted for according to the IAS-16: Property, plant and equipments either at historical cost or 
at revaluation less cumulative depreciation and the capital work in progress is stated at cost. Historical cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Depreciation on assets other than land is calculated using the reducing balance method or straight line method over their 
estimated useful lives.

In respect of addition to fixed assets, depreciation is charged from the month of addition in which the assets are ready to 
use while no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.

Details of the significant accounting policies is available in Note No. 3.0 of the financial statements. 

(b) Changes in accounting policies and estimation:

1. Depreciation on mother vessel

The estimated useful life of the three mother vessels (Crown Voyager, Crown Victory, Crown Vision) was changed by the 
Management for the year ended 30 June 2020, due to the industry practice. As a result, the total depreciation of this year 
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has changed. Previously the depreciation charged for the three mother vessel was 5%, but now it is 21.42% for Crown 
Voyager and 15% for Crown Vision. Crown Victory's estimated useful life is over, so there would be no depreciation charge 
for Crown Victory. We are providing a short calculation for the purpose of better understanding regarding the above 
mentioned issue. The effect of such changes in estimates is mentioned below:

2. Lease assets

Initial application of new standards IFRS 16

IFRS 16 introduces a single, on balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right of use assets 
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payment. 
There are recognition exemptions for short term leases and leases of low values items. Lessor accounting remains similar 
to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.

IFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance, including IAS 17 leases, IFRIC 4 determining whether an arrangement contains a lease, 
SIC-15 Operational Leases- Incentives and SIC-27 evaluating the substances of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a lease.

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2019. The Company has adopted IFRS 16 with effect 
from 1 July 2019 in preparing these financial statements.

The most significant impact identified is that the Company will recognize new assets and liabilities for its operational leases 
of office building and lighter vessels. In addition, the nature of expenses related to those leases will now change as IFRS 16 
replaces the straight-line operating lease expenses with a depreciation charge right-of-use assets and interest expenses on 
lease liabilities. 

Impacts on financial statement due to initial adoption of IFRS 16: 

On transition of IFRS 16, the company has to recognized Tk.38,20,56,982 as right-of-use assets (ROU) and Tk. 381,470,486 as 
lease liabilities during the year. The remaining amount of Tk. 586,496 has been reflected in statement of changes in equity.

(c) Comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of financial performance or results and financial position as 
well as cash flows for current financial year with immediate preceding five years explaining reasons thereof has 
been described below:

Decrease in total revenue by 5.14% has mainly arisen from decrease in volume 4.79% with the remaining due to marginal 
decrease in average selling price. The volume and price drop is mainly the effect of COVID-19 in the last quarter of the 
financial year that led to severe depletion in cement demand. Gross profit percentage declined by 2.94% mainly for 

         

Financial Results 2019 -20 2018 -19 2017 -18 2016 -17 2015 -16 2014 -15

Revenue
Gross Profit
Profit before Tax
Net Profit for the year 7
Shareholders’ Equity
Total Assets
Total Current Assets
Total Current Liabilities
Current Ratio (Time)

14,628,433
1,929,824

435,412
251,150

7,160,478
19,277,984
10,631,559
9,674,866

1.10

9,439,820
1,610,438

859,884
661,079

7,097,795
17,919,447
10,138,765
8,372,771

1.21

9,016,549
1,659,355

980,009
44,248

6,724,824
14,159,619
8,609,003
6,721,249

1.28

8,264,241
1,413,692

856,236
648,851

5,879,330
12,061,703
7,754,595
5,343,981

1.45

13,876,211
1,421,851

(28,220)
(132,453)
6,887,116

19,084,839
10,503,676
10,419,743

1.01 

12,559,312
1,643,420

410,225
315,613

7,124,354
19,713,912
11,304,321
9,829,558

1.15

(Taka in ’000)

Sl. No. Particulars Amount (Taka)

A Depreciation as per previous rate 70,861,853
B Depreciation as per revised/present rate 186,925,893
C Profit decreased for the year ended 30 June 2020 (difference) 116,064,040
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marginal reduction in selling price and increase in cost of sales due to the impact of COVID-19. Due to higher tax 
expenditure, your Company has faced net loss after tax of Tk. 13.25 Crore. 

CASH FLOWS MOVEMENT

M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. has been generating cash flows from its operating activities. However, to support the growth 
momentum and retain its market share to meet consumer expectation, M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. has been investing in 
capital expenditure over the years.

DIVIDEND

Despite the fact that the company has incurred a net loss for this year the Board has decided to declare a dividend using 
its retained earnings. The Board is of the opinion that this has been an unusual financial year leading to this loss and is 
confident that the company will return to profit in the coming year once normalcy returns. The Board of Directors in their 
meeting held on 14 November 2020 has recommended cash dividend @ 10% i.e. Tk. 1.00 (Taka one) only per share of Tk. 
10.00 each aggregating to Tk. 148,500,000 for the year ended 30 June 2020 subject to the approval of the shareholders' in 
the 26th Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 29 December 2020.

With this recommendation of proposed cash dividend, the summary of the total dividend in 2020 with the preceeding 5 
(Five) years  is represented below:

(d) Comparison of the financial performance or results and financial position as well as cash flows with the peer 
industry scenario:

Listed cement companies in Bangladesh comprises of the following:

Cash flows Movement 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

Net cash flows from operating activities 548,158 266,849 201,913 257,125 1,586,198 1,134,273 
Net cash flows used in investing activities 485,297 1,723,576 (818,548) (2,687,081) (1,119,968) (525,637)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (942,479) (1,915,678) 1,073,466 2,603,234 (285,310) (344,208)
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents 90,976 74,747 456,831 173,278 180,920 264,428 
Cash and cash equivalents at 01 July 280,774 206,027 3,856,614 3,683,336 3,502,416 3,237,988 
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 371,749 280,774 4,313,445 3,856,614 3,683,336 3,502,416 
Net operating cash inflows per share 3.69 1.80 1.36 1.73 10.68 7.64 

    (Taka in ’000)

Financial Results 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

Net Profit After Tax (132,453) 251,150 315,613 661,079 744,248 648,851
Earnings Per Share (0.89) 1.69 2.13 4.45 5.01 4.37
Final Cash Dividend 148,500 148,500 222,750 297,000 297,000 371,250
Number of Shares 148,500,000 148,500,000 148,500,000 148,500,000 148,500,000 148,500,000 
Cash Dividend per Share 1.00 1.00 1.50 2.00 2.00 2.50 

    (Taka in ’000)

Name of the Company Market 
Category

Year of listing 
on DSE

Year of listing 
on CSE Year end

M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. (MICFL) A 2011 2011 30-June
Premier Cement Mills Ltd. (PCML) A 2013 2013 30-June
Meghna Cement Mills Ltd. (MCML) A 1995 1996 30-June
LafargeHolcim Bangladesh Ltd. (LHBL) A 2003 2003 31-December
Heidelberg Cement Bangladesh Ltd. (HCBL) A 1989 1995 31-December
Confidence Cement Ltd. (CCL) A 1995 1995 30-June
Aramit Cement Ltd. (ACL) Z 1998 1998 30-June
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EPS = Earnings Per Share, NAVPS = Net Asset Value Per Share, NOCFPS = Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share, C= Cash 
Dividend, B= Stock Dividend, N/A= Not Available.

(e) Financial and economic scenario of the country and the globe has been discussed briefly in the following 
manner:

In June 2020, World Bank published the Global Economic Prospects that describes both the immediate and near-term 
outlook for the impact of the pandemic and the long-term damage it has dealt to prospects for growth. The baseline 
forecast envisions a 5.2 percent contraction in global GDP in 2020, using market exchange rate weights-the deepest global 
recession in decades, despite the extraordinary efforts of governments to counter the downturn with fiscal and monetary 
policy support. Over the longer horizon, the deep recessions triggered by the pandemic are expected to leave lasting scars 
through lower investment, an erosion of human capital through lost work and schooling and fragmentation of global trade 
and supply linkages.

The pandemic is expected to plunge most countries into recession in 2020, with per capita income contracting in the largest 
fraction of countries globally since 1870. Advanced economies are projected to shrink 7 percent. That weakness will spill 
over to the outlook for emerging market and developing economies, who are forecast to contract by 2.5 percent as they 
cope with their own domestic outbreaks of the virus. This would represent the weakest showing by this group of economies 
in at least sixty years.

The impact of Covid-19 upon the Bangladesh economy has been no less dramatic in the first two months of lockdown. The 
economic impact has been felt in three main avenues: first, a drop in domestic economic activity, after the shutdown 
announced on March 26; the second is a decline in exports of ready-made garments, which represent more than 80 percent 
of Bangladesh’s exports and have been strongly impacted (overall exports fell by 83 percent year-on-year in April). Finally, 
there has been major job losses. After the nationwide lockdown commenced on March 26, millions of rickshaw-pullers, day 
laborers and factory workers rushed for their villages, leaving the streets of Dhaka with a ghostly look. The Bangladesh 
Economic Association (BEA) estimates that nearly 36 million jobs were axed during the 66 days of general holidays 
announced by the government in a bid to contain the coronavirus. Most of the job losses were in the agriculture, industry 
and service sectors. 

A large assistance programme of four packages totaling some Tk. 1.03 trillion billion was announced by the Prime Minister 
Sheikh Hasina since April 5, 2020 in phases. 

Bangladesh is a resilient country that has always hogged world news for natural disasters or humanitarian crises. Despite a 
global recession which is shaping up to be historic in scale, Bangladesh might be one of only two ASEAN and South Asian 
economies - the other being Vietnam - to register a positive growth in 2020. A low ratio of public debt to gross domestic 
product, which is 33-34 percent, leaves Bangladesh with a fiscal headroom to borrow low-cost funds from the global 
financial market. The US Dollar-Taka exchange rate is very stable and foreign exchange reserves have climbed to an all-time 
high of $42 billion.

Remittances have seen all-time records in the past few months. Another encouraging sign has been in the export of 
readymade garments, which are seeing signs of recovery with orders coming in from export destinations although the 
numbers are not at the earlier normal levels. With the easing of lockdown, the Bangladesh domestic economic scenario is 
changing rapidly. The only worrying sign is the resurgence of Covid-19 in the western world leading to lockdowns. This will 
again hurt exports. The banking sector is awash with liquidity so availability of credit should be forthcoming. The domestic 
economy is expected to fare better in the coming months.

Sl. No. Items MICFL PCML MCML LHBL HCBL ACL

1 Net Profit After Tax (in Million Taka) (132.45) 5,245.13 54.084 1,737.45 (186.66) (232.30)

2 Dividend 10% C 10% C 5% C
5% B 10% C Nil Nil

3 EPS (0.89) 2.55 2.08 1.50 (3.30) (6.86)
4 NAVPS 46.38 49.74 32.73 13.95 71.88 25.63
5 NOCFPS 3.69 6.99 (4.71) 3.52 4.65 (12.06)
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(f) Risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining such risk and concerns mitigation plan 
of the company:

The Company may face a few risks in coming years such as Credit Risk or Market Risk or Commodity Risk because of 
pandemic situation prevalent throughout the world since March 2020. A few customers may not be able to pay dues in 
time, competition in market increasing as most of the competitor has unused capacity, they are reducing price and sale on 
credit as a result receivable is increasing. The Company may have to face risk of local laws and regulation such as The 
National Board of Revenue (NBR) impose new provision of Advance Income Tax (AIT) paid at import stage under section 53 
to be treated as minimum tax under section 82(C) which may incurred huge for the Company.  

The Company has taken many steps to control the above risk such as assessment of new customer’s solvency by Credit 
Management Department (CMD) before registering new customer for allotment of dealership or supply of goods to them, 
fixing credit limit, taking Bank Guarantee (BG) or Postdated Cheque (PDC) equivalent to credit limit amount, close 
monitoring/follow up of the customers on regular basis. The Company also filed a writ petition to the High Court against 
National Board of Revenue on the issues of AIT paid at import stage for which the Honorable High Court issued rules to the 
concerned stake holders and is under subjudice. 

(g) Future plan or projection or forecast:

M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. has an ambition to provide consumers’ preferred quality products to its numerous 
customer’s/brand users. Looking ahead in 2020 and beyond, M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. wishes to continue with the same 
zeal that it had started 26 years ago, to capture the 10% market share, in partnering with the national exchequer and to 
operate as a socially-responsible Company. Moreover, the Company’s social responsibility initiatives in 2020 will bring 
about a positive change across the nation with various initiatives directed towards poverty alleviation, gender equality, 
human development and well-being, partnership in green cultivation practices, and extending sustainable practices in 
manufacturing to improve air quality and water usage.

The Management of M. I. Cement Factory Limited always convey the future plan or projection or forecast for Company’s 
operation, performance and financial position with justification, i.e. actual position with the valued shareholder of the 
Company. In continuation of this, the future plan of our Company will be conveyed to our valued shareholders in the next 
Annual General Meeting by our honorable Management.
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ANNEXURE-V

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S (CFO)
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES

11 November 2020

The Board of Directors
M. I. Cement Factory Ltd.

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 2020. 

Dear Sir(s),

Pursuant to the Condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/ 
207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby 
declare that:

(1) The Financial Statements of M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. for the year ended on 30 June 2020 have been prepared in 
compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as 
applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis, 
in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly 
presented in its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control and 
maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established 
policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The management’s use of the going concerns basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is 
appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that: 

(i)  We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30 June 2020 and that to the best of our 
knowledge and belief:

(a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading;

(b)  these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

(ii)  There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 
which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the Company’s Board of Directors or its 
members.

(Md. Mukter Hossain Talukder, FCA)
Chief Executive Officer 

(Md. Abdul Kayum, FCMA)
Chief Financial Officer (Current Charge)
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1.0 Board of Directors 
Size of the Board of Directors 1 (1)
The total number of members of a company’s Board of Directors 
(hereinafter referred to as “Board”) shall not be less than 5 (five) and 
more than 20 (twenty)

√

1 (2) Independent Directors

1 (2) (a) At least one fifth (l/5) of the total number of Directors in the 
company’s Board shall be Independent Directors √

1 (2) (b) Independent Director means a Director

1 (2) (b) (i)
Who either does not hold any share in the company or holds less 
than one percent (1%) shares of the total paid-up shares of the 
company

√

1 (2) (b) (ii)

Who  is  not  a  sponsor  of  the  company  or  is  not connected   with   
the   company’s  any   sponsor   or director  or  nominated  director  or  
shareholder  of  the company  or  any  of  its  associates,  sister  concerns, 
subsidiaries and parents or holding entities who holds one percent (1%) 
or more shares of the total paid-up shares   of   the   company   on   the   
basis   of   family relationship and his or her family members also shall 
not hold above mentioned shares in the company

√

1 (2) (b) (iii) Who  has  not  been  an  executive  of  the  company  in immediately 
preceding 2 (two) financial years √

1 (2) (b) (iv) Who does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or 
otherwise, with the company or its subsidiary/associated companies √

1 (2) (b) (v) Who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right Entitlement Certificate) 
holder, director or officer of any stock exchange √

1 (2) (b) (vi)
Who is not a shareholder, director excepting independent director 
or officer of any member or TREC holder of stock exchange or an 
intermediary of the capital market

√

1 (2) (b) (vii)

Who is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an 
executive during the preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned 
company’s statutory audit firm or audit firm engaged in internal 
audit services or audit firm conducting special audit or professional 
certifying compliance of this Code

√

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status 
(“√” has been put in 

the appropriate 
column) Remarks

(if any)

Complied
Not 

Complied

ANNEXURE VII      

Report on Compliance of the Corporate Governance Code of BSEC [Condition No. 1 (5) (xxvii)] 
The Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission’s Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/ 
207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 is presented below:
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1 (2) (b) (viii) Who is not an independent director in more than 5 (five) listed 
companies

√

1 (2) (b) (ix)
Who has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as 
a defaulter in payment of any loan to a bank or a Non-Bank Financial 
Institution (NBFI)

√

1 (2) (b) (x)
Who has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral 
turpitude √

1 (2) (c)
Independent Director(s) shall be appointed by Board of Directors 
and approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting 
(AGM)

√

1 (2) (d) The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant for more 
than 90 (ninety) days 

√

1 (2) (e) The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for a period 
of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only 

√

1 (3) Qualification of Independent Director

1 (3) (a)

Independent director shall be a knowledgeable individual with 
integrity who is able to ensure compliance with financial laws, 
regulatory requirements and corporate laws and can make 
meaningful contribution to business

√

1 (3) (b) Independent Director shall have the following Qualifications:

1 (3) (b)(i)

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an unlisted 
company having minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or 
any listed company or a member of any national or international 
chamber of commerce or business association; or

√

1 (3) (b)(ii)

Corporate Leader who is or was a top level executive not lower than 
Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director or Deputy Managing 
Director or Chief Financial Officer or Head of Finance or Accounts or 
Company Secretary or Head of Internal Audit and Compliance or 
Head of Legal Service or a candidate with equivalent position of an 
unlisted company having minimum paid-up capital of  Tk. 100.00 
million or of a listed company

√

1 (3) (b)(iii)

Former official of government or statutory or autonomous or 
regulatory body in the position not below 5thGrade of the   national   
pay scale, who has at least educational background of bachelor 
degree in economics or commerce or business or Law; or

√

1 (3) (b)(iv) University  Teacher  who has educational  background  in Economics 
or Commerce or Business Studies or Law; or

√

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status 
(“√” has been put in 

the appropriate 
column) Remarks

(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied
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1 (3) (b)(v)

Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least in the High 
Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered 
Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or Chartered  
Financial  Analyst or  Chartered Certified Accountant  or  Certified 
Public  Accountant  or Chartered Management Accountant or 
Chartered Secretary or equivalent qualification.

√

1 (3) (c) The  independent  director  shall  have  at  least  10  (ten)  years  of 
experiences in any field mentioned in clause (b) √

1 (3) (d) In special cases the above qualifications or experiences may be 
relaxed subject to prior approval of Commission N/A

1 (4) Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer

1 (4) (a)
The  positions  of  the  Chairperson  of  the  Board  and  the Managing  
Director  (MD)  and/or  Chief  Executive  Officer (CEO) of   the   
company shall be filled   by   different individuals

√

1 (4) (b)
The   Managing   Director   (MD)   and/or   Chief   Executive Officer 
(CEO) of a listed company shall not hold the same position in 
another listed company

√

1 (4) (c) The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among the non-
executive directors of the company √

1 (4) (d)
The   Board   shall   clearly   define   respective   roles   and 
responsibilities   of   the   Chairperson   and   the   Managing Director 
and/or Chief Executive Officer

√

1 (4) (e)

In the absence   of   the Chairperson   of   the   Board,   the remaining 
members may elect one of themselves from non- executive   
directors   as   Chairperson   for   that   particular Board’s meeting; 
the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly 
recorded in the minutes

√

1 (5) The Directors’ Report to Shareholders
The Board of the company shall include the following additional statements or disclosures in the Directors’ 
Report prepared under section 184 of the Companies Act, 1994 (Act No. XVIII of 1994):

1 (5) (i) An Industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry √
1 (5) (ii) Segment-wise or product-wise performance √

1 (5) (iii) Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, threat 
to sustainability and negative impact on environment, if any √

1 (5) (iv) A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net 
Profit Margin, where applicable √

1 (5) (v) A discussion on continuity of any extra-ordinary activities and their 
implications (gain or loss) N/A

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status 
(“√” has been put in 

the appropriate 
column) Remarks

(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied
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1 (5) (vi)

A detailed discussion on related party transactions along with a 
statement showing amount, nature of related party, nature of 
transactions and basis of transactions of all related party 
transactions

√

1 (5) (vii) A statement of utilization of proceeds from public issues, rights 
issues and/or through any other instrument N/A

1 (5) (viii)
An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the company 
goes for Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPO). 
Rights Share Offer, Direct Listing, etc.

N/A

1 (5) (ix) An explanation on any significant variance occurs between Quarterly 
Financial Performance and Annual Financial Statements √

1 (5) (x) A statement of remuneration paid to directors including 
independent directors √

1 (5) (xi)
A statement that the financial statements prepared by the 
management of the issuer company present fairly its state of affairs, 
the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity

√

1 (5) (xii) A statement that proper books of account of the issuer company
have been maintained √

1 (5) (xiii)

A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and 
that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment

√

1 (5) (xiv)

A statement that International Accounting Standards 
(IAS)/Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS)/ International 
Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS)/ Bangladesh Financial Reporting 
Standards (BFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed 
in preparation of the financial statements and any departure there-
from has been adequately disclosed

√

1 (5) (xv) A statement that the system of Internal control is sound in design 
and has been effectively implemented and monitored √

1 (5) (xvi)

A statement that minority shareholders have been protected from  
abusive  actions  by,  or  in  the  interest  of,  controlling shareholders 
acting  either  directly  or  indirectly  and  have effective means of 
redress

√

1 (5) (xvii)

A statement that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, if the issuer 
company is not considered to be a going concern, the fact along 
with reasons there of shall be disclosed

√

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status 
(“√” has been put in 

the appropriate 
column) Remarks

(if any)
Complied Not 

Complied
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1 (5) (xviii)
An explanation that significant deviations from the last year’s operating
results of the issuer company shall be highlighted and the reasons
thereof shall be explained

√

1 (5) (xix) A statement where key operating and financial data of at least 
preceding 5 (five) years shall be summarized √

1 (5) (xx) An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not 
declared dividend (cash or stock) for the year N/A

1 (5) (xxi) Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock 
dividend has been or shall be declared as interim dividend √

1 (5) (xxii) The total number of Board meetings held during the year and 
attendance by each director √

1 (5) (xxiii) A  report  on  the  pattern  of  shareholding  disclosing  the aggregate number of shares (along with 
name-wise details where stated below) held by:

1 (5) (xxiii) (a) Parent/ Subsidiary/ Associated  Companies  and other related 
parties (name wise details) √

1 (5) (xxiii) (b)
Directors,     Chief     Executive     Officer,     Company Secretary,  
Chief  Financial  Officer,  Head  of  Internal Audit  and  Compliance  
and  their  spouses  and  minor children (name wise details)

√

1 (5) (xxiii) (c) Executives, and √

1 (5) (xxiii) (d)

Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in 
the company (name wise details);
Explanation : For the purpose of this clause, the expression 
“Executive” means top 5 (five) salaried employees of the company, 
other than the Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, 
Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance

√

1 (5) (xxiv) In case of the appointment or re-appointment of a director, a disclosure on the following 
information to the shareholders:

1 (5) (xxiv) (a) A brief resume of the director √
1 (5) (xxiv) (b) Nature of his or her expertise in specific functional areas; and √

1.5 (xxiv) (c) Names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship 
and the membership of committees of the Board √

1 (5) (xxv)
A Management’s Discussion  and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed   analysis of the 
company’s position  and  operations  along  with  a  brief  discussion  of changes in the financial 
statements, among others, focusing on:

1 (5) (xxv) (a) Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial 
statements √

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status 
(“√” has been put in 

the appropriate 
column) Remarks

(if any)

Complied
Not 

Complied
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1 (5) (xxv) (b)

Changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly 
describing the effect on financial performance or results and 
financial position as well as cash flows in absolute figure for such 
changes

√

1 (5) (xxv) (c)

Comparative   analysis   (including   effects   of   inflation)   of financial 
performance or results and financial position as well as  cash  flows  
for  current  financial   year  with   immediate preceding five years 
explaining reasons thereof

√

1 (5) (xxv) (d) Compare such financial performance  or  results  and  financial 
position as well as cash flows with the peer industry scenario √

1 (5) (xxv) (e)
Briefly  explain  the  financial  and  economic  scenario  of  the 
country and the globe √

1 (5) (xxv) (f)
Risks  and  concerns  issues  related  to  the  financial  statements, 
explaining  such  risk  and  concerns  mitigation  plan  of  the 
company; and

√

1 (5) (xxv) (g)

Future plan or projection or forecast for company’s operation, 
performance and financial position, with justification thereof, i.e., 
actual position shall be  explained to the shareholders  in the next 
AGM

√

1 (5) (xxvi)
Declaration  or  certification  by the  CEO  and  the  CFO  to  the 
Board as required under condition No. 3 (3) disclosed as per 
Annexure-A and

√

1 (5) (xxvii)
The  report  as  well  as  certificate  regarding  compliance  of 
conditions  of  this  Code  as  required  under  condition  No. 9 shall 
be disclosed as per Annexure-B and Annexure-C.

√

1 (6) Meeting of the Board of Directors
The  company shall conduct  its  Board  meetings  and  record  the 
minutes of the meetings as well as keep required books and records 
in  line  with  the  provisions  of  the  relevant  Bangladesh  Secretarial 
Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries 
of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not 
inconsistent with any condition of this Code.

√

1 (7) Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer

1 (7) (a)
The  Board shall lay down  a  code  of  conduct,  based  on  the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee  
(NRC) at condition No. 6, for the  Chairperson of the Board, other 
board  members and Chief Executive Officer of the company

√

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status 
(“√” has been put in 

the appropriate 
column) Remarks

(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied
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1 (7) (b)

The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on   
the   website   of   the   company  including,   among  others, prudent 
conduct and behavior, confidentiality, conflict of interest, 
compliance with laws, rules and regulations, prohibition  of  insider  
trading,  relationship with environment, employees, customers and 
suppliers and independency

√

2.0 Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company

2 (a)
Provisions  relating  to  the  composition  of  the  Board of the 
holding company shall be made applicable  to  the composition of 
the Board of the subsidiary company

N/A

2 (b)
At  least  1  (one)  independent  director  on  the  Board  of  the 
holding  company  shall  be  a  director  on  the  Board  of  the 
subsidiary company

N/A

2 (c)
The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary company shall 
be placed for review at the following Board meeting of the holding 
company

N/A

2 (d)
The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding 
company shall state that they have reviewed the affairs of the 
subsidiary company also

N/A

2 (e)
The  Audit  Committee  of  the  holding  company shall also review 
the financial statements, in particular the investments made by the 
subsidiary company

N/A

3.0
Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of 
Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS)

3 (1) Appointment

3 (1) (a)
The  Board  shall appoint a  Managing Director  (MD)  or  Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO), a Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial  Officer  (CFO)  
and  a  Head  of  Internal  Audit  and Compliance (HIAC)

√

3 (1) (b)

The   positions   of   the   Managing   Director   (MD)   or   Chief 
Executive  Officer  (CEO),  Company  Secretary  (CS),  Chief Financial   
Officer   (CFO)   and   Head   of   Internal   Audit   and Compliance 
(HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals

√

3 (1) (c) The  MD  or  CEO,  CS,  CFO  and  HIAC  of  a  listed  company shall not 
hold any executive position in any other company at the same time √

3 (1) (d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsibilities and 
duties of the CFO, the HIAC and the CS √

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status 
(“√” has been put in 

the appropriate 
column) Remarks

(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied
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3 (1) (e)

The  MD  or  CEO,  CS,  CFO  and  HIAC shall not be removed from  
their  position  without  approval  of  the  Board  as  well  as 
immediate   dissemination   to   the   Commission   and   stock 
exchange(s)

√

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall attend the 
meetings of the Board:
Provided that the CS, CFO and/or the HIAC shall not attend such part 
of a meeting of the Board which involves consideration of an agenda 
item relating to their personal matters.

√

3 (3) Duties  of  Managing Director (MD)  or  Chief  Executive  Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

3 (3) (a)
The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have reviewed financial statements for the 
year and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:

3 (3) (a) (i)
These   statements   do   not   contain   any  materially  untrue 
statement  or  omit  any  material  fact  or  contain  statements that 
might be misleading; and

√

3 (3) (a) (ii)
These statements together presented a true and fair view of the 
company’s  affairs  and  are  in  compliance  with  existing accounting 
standards and applicable laws

√

3 (3) (b)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to the best of 
knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company 
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code 
of conduct for the company’s Board or its members

√

3 (3) (c) The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be disclosed in the 
Annual Report √

4.0
Board of Directors Committee:
For ensuring good governance in the company, the Board shall have at least following sub-committees:

4 (i) Audit Committee; and √
4 (ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee √

5 (1) Responsibilities to the Board of Directors

5 (1) (a) The company shall have an Audit Committee as a subcommittee of 
the Board

√

5 (1) (b)

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board of Directors in ensuring 
that the financial statements reflected true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the company and in ensuring a good monitoring system 
within the business

√

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status 
(“√” has been put in 

the appropriate 
column) Remarks

(if any)

Complied
Not 

Complied

3 (2) Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings

5.0 Audit Committee
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5 (1) (c) The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board; the duties 
of the Audit Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing √

√

5 (2) (b)
The Board of Directors shall appoint members of the Audit 
Committee who shall be non-executive directors of the company 
and excepting Chairperson of the Board and shall include at least 1 
(one) Independent Director

√

5 (2) (c)
All members of the audit committee should be "financially literate" and 
at least 1 (one) member shall have accounting or related financial 
management background and 10 (ten) years of such experience

√

5 (2) (d) N/A

5 (2) (e) The Company Secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee √

5 (2) (f) The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute 
without at least 1(one) Independent Director √

5 (3) (a) The Board of Directors shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit 
Committee, who shall be an Independent Director √

5 (3) (b)

In  the  absence  of  the  Chairperson  of  the Audit  Committee,  the 
remaining members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for 
that particular meeting, in that case there shall be no problem of 
constituting a quorum as required under condition No. 5 (4) (b) and 
the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly 
recorded in the minutes

√

5 (3) (c)

Chairperson of the audit committee shall remain present in the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM):
Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the Audit Committee, 
any other member from the Audit Committee shall be selected to 
be present in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and reason for 
absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall be 
recorded in the minutes of the AGM

√

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status 
(“√” has been put in 

the appropriate 
column) Remarks

(if any)
Complied Not 

Complied

5 (2) Constitution of the Audit Committee
5 (2) (a) The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members

When the term of service of any Committee member expires or there is 
any circumstance causing any Committee member to be unable to hold 
office before expiration of the term of service, thus making the number 
of the Committee members to be lower than the prescribed number of 
3 (three) persons, the Board shall appoint the new Committee member 
to fill up the vacancy immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from 
the date of vacancy in the Committee to ensure continuity of the 
performance of work of the Audit Committee

5 (3) Chairman of the Audit Committee
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5.4 Meeting of the Audit Committee

5 (4) (a)

The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meetings in a 
financial year:
Provided that any emergency meeting in addition to regular 
meeting may be convened at the request of any one of the members 
of the Committee

√

5 (4) (b)

The  quorum  of  the  meeting  of the  Audit  Committee  shall be
constituted in presence of either two members or two-third of the  
members  of  the Audit  Committee,  whichever is higher, where 
presence of an Independent Director is a must

√

5 (5) (a) Oversee the financial reporting process √
5 (5) (b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles √

5 (5) (c)

Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that 
it is adequately resourced, including approval of the Internal 
Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the Internal Audit 
and Compliance Report

√

5 (5) (d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors √

5 (5) (e)
Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of 
the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for 
approval or adoption

√

5 (5) (f) Review along with the management, the annual financial statements 
before submission to the board for approval √

5 (5) (g) Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly 
financial statements before submission to the board for approval √

5 (5) (h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function √

5 (5) (i)
Review  the  Management’s  Discussion  and  Analysis  before 
disclosing in the Annual Report √

5 (5) (j) Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the 
management √

5 (5) (k) Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness 
issued by statutory auditors √

5 (5) (l)

Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and 
magnitude,  level  of  expertise  deployed  and  time  required 
for effective audit and evaluate the performance of external 
auditors; and

√

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status 
(“√” has been put in 

the appropriate 
column) Remarks

(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied

5 (5) Role of Audit Committee
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5 (5) (m)

Oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public Offering 
(IPO) or Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights Share Offer have 
been utilized as per the purposes stated in relevant offer document 
or prospectus approved by the Commission:
Provided that the management shall disclose to the Audit 
Committee about the uses or applications of the proceeds by major 
category (capital expenditure, sales and marketing expenses, 
working capital, etc.), on a quarterly basis, as a part of their quarterly 
declaration of financial results:
Provided further that on an annual basis, the company shall prepare 
a statement of the proceeds utilized for the purposes other than 
those stated in the offer document or prospectus for publication in 
the Annual Report along with the comments of the Audit 
Committee

N/A

√

5 (6) (a) (ii) (a) Reporting on conflicts of interests N/A

5 (6) (a) (ii) (b)
Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect 
identified in the internal audit and compliance process or in the 
financial statements

N/A

5 (6) (a) (ii) (c)
Suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances including 
securities related laws, rules and regulations; and N/A

5.6 (a) (ii) (d)
Any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary shall 
be disclosed to the Board immediately N/A

5 (6) (b) Reporting to the Authorities

If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board about anything
which has material impact on the financial condition and results 
of operation and has discussed with the Board and the 
management that any rectification is necessary and if the Audit 
Committee finds that such rectification has been unreasonably 
ignored, the Audit Committee shall report such finding   to the 
Commission, upon reporting of such matters to the Board for three 
times or completion of a period of 6 (six) months from the date of 
first reporting to the Board, whichever is earlier

N/A

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status 
(“√” has been put in 

the appropriate 
column) Remarks

(if any)
Complied Not 

Complied

5 (6) Reporting of the Audit Committee
5 (6) (a) Reporting to the Board of Directors

5 (6) (a) (i) The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board
5 (6) (a) (ii) The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board on the following findings, if any:
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Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, including 
any report made to the Board under condition No. 5(6)(a)(ii) above 
during the year, shall be signed by the Chairperson of the Audit 
Committee and disclosed in the annual report of the issuer 
company.

N/A

6 (1) (a)
The   company   shall have a   Nomination   and   Remuneration
Committee (NRC) as a sub-committee of the Board

√

6 (1) (b)

The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination 
criteria   or   policy   for   determining   qualifications,   positive 
attributes,  experiences  and  independence  of  directors  and  top 
level  executive  as  well  as  a  policy  for  formal  process  of 
considering remuneration of directors, top level executive

√

6 (1) (c)
The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set forth  in  
writing  covering  the  areas  stated  at  the  condition  No. 6 (5) (b)

√

6 (2) (a)
The  Committee shall comprise of  at  least  3 (three) members 
including an Independent Director

√

6 (2) (b) All   members   of   the   Committee shall be non-executive directors √

6 (2) (c) Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by 
the Board

√

6 (2) (d) The  Board shall have authority  to  remove  and  appoint  any 
member of the Committee

√

6 (2) (e)

In  case  of  death,  resignation,  disqualification,  or  removal  of any  
member  of  the  Committee  or  in  any  other  cases  of vacancies,  
the  board  shall fill the  vacancy  within  180  (one hundred   eighty)   
days   of   occurring   such   vacancy   in   the Committee

√

6 (2) (f)

The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any 
external expert and/or member(s) of staff to the Committee as 
advisor  who  shall  be  non-voting  member,  if  the  Chairperson 
feels  that  advice  or  suggestion  from  such  external  expert and/or 
member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for the Committee

√

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status 
(“√” has been put in 

the appropriate 
column) Remarks

(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied

5 (7) Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors

6.0 Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
6 (1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors

6 (2) Constitution of the NRC
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6 (2) (g) The   company  secretary  shall act  as   the   secretary  of   the
Committee √

6 (2) (h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without 
attendance of at least an Independent Director √

6 (2) (i)

No  member  of  the  NRC shall receive,  either  directly  or indirectly,  
any  remuneration  for  any advisory  or  consultancy role  or  
otherwise,  other  than  Director’s  fees  or  honorarium from the 
company

√

6 (3) (a)
The  Board shall select 1  (one)  member  of  the  NRC  to  be 
Chairperson of the Committee, who shall be an Independent 
Director

√

6 (3) (b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining 
members elected one of themselves as Chairperson for that 
particular  meeting,  the  reason  of  absence  of  the  regular 
Chairperson shall duly be recorded in the minutes

√

6 (3) (c) The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) to answer the queries of the shareholders √

6 (4) (a) The  NRC shall conduct at  least  1 (one) meeting  in  a  financial 
year √

6 (4) (b) The  Chairperson  of  the  NRC  may  convene  any  emergency 
meeting upon request by any member of the NRC √

6 (4) (c)

The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in  
presence  of  either  two  members  or  two  third  of  the members  
of  the  Committee,  whichever  is  higher,  where presence of an 
Independent Director is must as required under condition No. 
6(2)(h)

√

6 (4) (d)
The proceedings of each  meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded 
in the minutes and such minutes shall be confirmed in the next 
meeting of the NRC

√

6 (5) (a)
NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the 
Board and to the shareholders √

6 (5) (b)

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status 
(“√” has been put in 

the appropriate 
column) Remarks

(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied

6 (3) Chairperson of the NRC

6 (4) Meeting of the NRC

6 (5) Role of the NRC

NRC shall oversees, among  others, the  following  matters  and make report with recommendation 
to the Board:
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6 (5) (b) (i)

Formulating the criteria for determining  qualifications, positive 
attributes and  independence  of  a  director  and recommend   a   
policy   to   the   Board,   relating   to   the remuneration   of   the   
directors,   top   level   executive, considering the following:

√

6 (5) (b) (i) (a)
The level and   composition   of   remuneration   is reasonable   and   
sufficient   to   attract,   retain   and motivate  suitable  directors  to  
run  the  company successfully

√

6 (5) (b) (i) (b)
The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets 
appropriate performance benchmarks; and

√

6 (5) (b) (i) (c)

Remuneration   to   directors,   top   level   executive involves  a  
balance  between  fixed  and  incentive pay  reflecting  short  and  
long-term  performance objectives   appropriate   to   the   working   
of   the company and its goals

√

6 (5) (b) (ii)
Devising  a  policy  on  Board’s  diversity  taking  into consideration    
age,    gender,    experience,    ethnicity, educational background and 
nationality

√

6 (5) (b) (iii)

Identifying persons who   are   qualified   to   become directors and 
who may be appointed   in   top   level executive  position  in  
accordance  with  the  criteria laid down, and recommend their 
appointment and removal to the Board

√

6 (5) (b) (iv) Formulating  the  criteria  for  evaluation  of  performance of 
Independent Directors and the Board

√

6 (5) (b) (v)
Identifying   the   company’s   needs   for   employees   at different  
levels  and  determine  their  selection,  transfer or replacement and 
promotion criteria; and

√

6 (5) (b) (vi) Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s 
human resources and training policies

√

6 (5) (c)
The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy 
and the evaluation criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a 
glance in its annual report.

√

7 (1) The issuer company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform the following 
services of the company, namely:

√
√

7 (1) (iii) Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records or 
financial statements √

√

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status 
(“√” has been put in 

the appropriate 
column) Remarks

(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied

7.0 External / Statutory Auditors

7 (1) (i) Appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions
7 (1) (ii) Financial information systems design and implementation

7 (1) (iv) Broker-dealer services
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7 (1) (v) Actuarial services √
7 (1) (vi) Internal audit services or special audit services √
7 (1) (vii) Any service that the Audit Committee determines √

7 (1) (viii) Audit or certification services on compliance of corporate 
governance as required under condition No. 9(1); and √

7 (1) (ix) Any other service that creates conflict of interest √

7 (2)

No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess 
any share of the company they audit at least during the tenure of 
their audit assignment of that company; his or her family members 
also shall not hold any shares in the said company:
Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother, sister, 
son-in-law and daughter-in-law shall be considered as family 
members

√

7 (3)

Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain present 
in the Shareholders’ Meeting (Annual General Meeting or 
Extraordinary  General  Meeting)  to  answer  the queries  of  the 
shareholders

√

8 (1) The  company shall have an  official  website  linked  with  the website 
of the stock exchange √

8 (2) The company kept the website functional from the date of listing √

8 (3)
The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its 
website as required under the listing regulations of the concerned 
stock exchange(s).

√

9 (1)

The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing Professional 
Accountant or Secretary (Chartered Accountant or Cost and 
Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary) other than its 
statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly basis regarding compliance 
of conditions of Corporate Governance Code of the Commission and 
shall such certificate shall be disclosed in the Annual Report

√

9 (2)
The   professional who will  provide   the   certificate   on compliance 
of this Corporate Governance   Code   shall   be appointed by the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting

√

9 (3)
The directors of the company shall state, in accordance with the 
Annexure-C attached, in the directors’ report whether the company 
has complied with these conditions or not.

√

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status 
(“√” has been put in 

the appropriate 
column) Remarks

(if any)
Complied Not 

Complied

8.0 Maintaining a website by the Company

9.0 Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance



M. I. CEMENT FACTORY LTD. I ANNUAL REPORT I 2019-20102

ANNEXURE

ANNEXURE-VIII

CSR ACTIVITIES
CSR reflects an organization’s commitment towards improving the society’s wellbeing and it also serves to enhance the 
organization’s image. M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. does not consider business is all about maximizing profit; rather it believes 
in contribution towards the society as a social obligation and in which our customers, investors like to be more engaged 
with. Thus M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. always tries to explore thoughtful, comprehensive approaches to corporate citizenship 
that we believe aligns with Company’s values and maximizes the impact it can make as a corporation. We primarily focus 
on specific societal issues; Followings are the few CSR initiatives that we have carried on last year:

MERIT SCHOLARSHIP

As the poor student doesn’t have the financial support for their education along with their other needs. We are providing 
several poor students with proper financial assistance to support their education. We also motivate the meritorious 
students by awarding them for their great success in exams.

HONORING OUR FREEDOM FIGHTERS

We, M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. (Crown Cement) believe that we are doing business in our independent country because of 
the sacrifice of those Freedom Fighters who has given their life to free our country from Pakistan. It is our great opportunity 
to honor those war heroes who is still alive and also the family members who has given their life to gain freedom of our 
country. On occasion of Victory Day, M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. (Crown Cement) has honored two freedom fighters for their 
outstanding contribution during the liberation war of Bangladesh in 1971. The freedom fighters, who were honored as part 
of Crown Cement’s “Honoring Our Hero” initiative, comprises Mr. Jalal Ahmed Fakir of Netrokona and Mr. Md. Kata Sake of 
Sherpur. They were honored with crests, financial assistance and gift vouchers at a program held at the headquarters of 
Crown Cement in Dhaka on 11 December 2019. Mr. Md. Alamgir Kabir, Vice Chairman of Crown Cement, Mr. Molla 
Mohammad Majnu, Managing Director, Mr. Masud Khan, FCA, FCMA, Adviser to the Board and Mr. Md. Mukter Hossain 
Talukder, FCA, Chief Executive Officer were present at the function. It’s not marketing or branding, it’s a social responsibility 
for us.

DONATION TO THE UNDERPRIVILEGED

We live in the country where most of the people are underprivileged. Remembering this we do the donation for the poor 
people, physically disabled people, books for the slump children, severe patients both inside the officials and also outsider 
of the office.

PROMOTING THE YOUTH

We always support the youth for their unlimited possibilities to do the right changes in the society. Keeping it mind 
Legendary cricketer Mr. Tamim Iqbal Khan, opening batsman of Bangladesh National Cricket Team and Brand Ambassador 
of Crown Cement, delivers directional and inspirational speech to the emerging and young cricketers of Munshiganj district 
at a cricket workshop in Munshiganj Stadium in February 2020, jointly organized by Crown Cement and Munshiganj Zila 
Krira Sangstha.

SPONSORING THE ARCASIA FORUM-20

The Architects’ Regional Council Asia (ARCASIA) is a Council of the presidents of the National Institutes of Architects of 
twenty-one Asian countries that are members of ARCASIA. Every alternate year, ARCASIA FORUM is hosted by one of the 
member countries of ARCASIA. The Institute of Architects Bangladesh (IAB) has hosted ARCASIA FORUM-20 from 3 
November 2019 to 7 November 2019 with the theme “Architecture in a Changing Landscape”. Renowned Architects from 
around the world came together to discuss development ideas, innovation, designs, best practices and structural excellence 
in this occasion and also to celebrate ARCASIA’s 50th Anniversary. As a part of its Corporate Social Responsibility, M. I. 
Cement Factory Ltd has supported this great cause to uphold innovation and excellence, also actively promoted this event.

SPONSORING THE TALENTS 

The Spartans’ Communication Club (a club of Dhaka University Marketing Dept.) arranged a business competition program 
at Six Season Hotel named “SELL SATION 2019” for enhancing knowledge among the students. Sell Sation 2019 had 
nationwide response where students from 30+ university participated with more than 200 teams, comprising of more than 
600 participants.
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SOCIAL OBLIGATIONS

M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. (Crown Cement) recognizes that various human activities leave harmful effects from the society. 
In connection, the organization has sponsored some of the youths to spectate the Cricket Tournaments at the Stadium. We 
also donate to Abdul Hakim Kallyan Trust Academy for procuring sports items for practicing of their players.

BUSINESS RESEARCH BY DISTRICT LEVEL COLLEGE STUDENTS

We all know that practical experience is the best and internships give students that hands-on experience they need.  In 
other words, quality internships are essential to develop key skills that students can't get in a classroom. Internships are a 
proven way to gain relevant knowledge, skills and experience while establishing important connections in the field. 

With all these value-added features in our plan, every year we offer internship opportunities to a good number of college 
students who are mainly based in the district level. Under our unique model of internship, students can perform their 
internship by engaging themselves in research work in their respective districts without moving to Dhaka. During 
internships, students are first trained and paid reasonable allowances. 

While Dhaka is well-known for dominating every facility that jobseekers require, M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. (Crown Cement)  
extends helping hand to pull students of district level up by creating first job opportunities for many students. Besides 
internship facilities, the high achievers of interns are taken into the regular job too.  This year, so far about 424 students 
have been brought under this scheme. The scheme has already gained huge popularity within the short span of time.

WE HONOR TEACHERS

A Teacher’s Motto is “Once a teacher always a teacher.” Teachers choose teaching not only because of their favorite subject 
and but also because they like the students mostly. The teachers teach students carefully with utmost sincerity, and love 
them as their own children. We owe them more than our parents. Our parents bring us up and give us food and drink for 
our survival, but teachers stimulate our hearts with the light of knowledge and remove all sorts of ignorance. The study that 
we do at schools and colleges build the foundation of our character.

Bangladesh is blessed with many dedicated teachers, but few could get due honor, especially at their end part of life either 
from their students or from the society. Teachers deserve respect from parents, students, the state, and the community 
because they play a critical role in shaping the society. It is true that teachers are paid salaries and provided with other 
facilities; but a teacher’s love and blessing can never be measured in terms of money. M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. (Crown 
Cement)  truly realized this reality and introduced “Teachers’ Award Program” for great teachers especially at the district 
level. This year we have awarded 137 teachers under this program. 

It is relevant to add here that recipients of Awards praise our initiative enthusiastically. Some awardees are under the 
impression that only Crown Cement has come forward to recognize uniquely our life long services toward the society. Many 
of them termed ‘beyond expectation’.

ENGINEERS RECOGNIZED FOR CONTRIBUTION TOWARDS DEVELOPMENT IN DISTRICT LEVEL

Development and construction move in parallel. Engineers, especially civil engineers take ultimate responsibility for the 
projects that they manage or research that they perform. Therefore, they must be able to lead planners, surveyors, 
construction managers, civil engineering technicians, civil engineering technologists and others in implementing their 
project plan. When we are thinking about starting a construction work or undertaking an infrastructure project, whose 
names appear at the top of our mind, they are nobody but the ‘Engineers’. But these engineers, especially in Upazilla level 
in our country hardly get due recognition for their contribution to the development of our country.

Although many organizations/institutions praise engineers and award them, but they are mostly located in Dhaka. 
Focusing on its core value of recognizing talents, M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. (Crown Cement) came up with an idea to 
recognize outstanding performance of engineers. This year 67 engineers have been awarded for their contribution towards 
the development at the district level of the country.
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Channel Partners of M. I. Cement 
Factory Ltd. at a meetting.

On the occasion of the Victory Day, 
M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. (Crown 
Cement) has honored two freedom 
fighters for their outstanding 
contribution during the liberation 
war of Bangladesh in 1971. 

M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. (Crown 
Cement) signed an agreement with 
China Construction Seventh 
Engineering Division Corporation 
Ltd. to supply cement for 190km of 
road from Elenga to Rangpur to a 
four-lane highway.

HIGHLIGHT OF THE
EVENTS
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HIGHLIGHT OF THE
EVENTS

Visiting various Engineering Offices.

Agreement with BAUER Bangladesh 
Ltd. for the supply of Crown 
Cement BFC, CEM III/A, 32.5N to 
Rooppur Nuclear Power Plant 
Project, Ishwurdi, Pabna

Legendary cricketer Tamim Iqbal 
Khan, opening batsman of 
Bangladesh National Cricket Team 
and Brand Ambassador of Crown 
Cement, delivers directional and 
inspirational speech to the 
emerging and young cricketers of 
Munshiganj district at a cricket 
workshop in Munshiganj Stadium 
in February 2020, jointly organized 
by Crown Cement and Munshiganj 
Zila Krira Sangstha.
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Certificate awarding programme among 
the Interns, who collected market data 
under the Research, Planning & Business 
Development Department of M. I. 
Cement Factory Ltd.

HIGHLIGHT OF THE
EVENTS

A partial view of the awareness 
meeting with the House Owners 
arranged by M. I. Cement Factory Ltd.

Teachers and Students of Faridpur 
Engineering College visited the 
Factory of M. I. Cement Factory Ltd.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
M. I. CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of M. I. Cement Factory Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, and the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to 
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for qualified opinions section of our report, the 
accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at 30 
June 2020 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINIONS

1) We refer to note 8 of the accompanying financial statements which shows that the Company has 4 (four) active associate 
companies with whom the Company has regular transactions. In addition, there are 3 (three) other entities that are 
subsidiaries of this Company and are reportedly dormant and non-operating. There are common directors in the associate 
companies and nominated representative by the Company in the subsidiary entities and hence there is effective control as 
defined under IFRS 10 necessitating consolidation of accounts. As the Company did not consolidate the accounts, it is a 
deviation from the requirement of IFRS10.

Had M. I. Cement Factory Limited been consolidated with the above mentioned 7 (seven) entities, many elements in the 
accompanying financial statements would have been materially affected. In the absence of such consolidation, we are not 
able to determine the effect on the financial statements.

2) We refer to note 11.2 showing the ageing of trade receivables of Taka 3,760,582,531 against which there is a provision 
for doubtful debts of Taka 23,052,142 only as shown in note 11.1. During the year under review, the Company has not made 
any provision for doubtful debts. The Company has disclosed amounts outstanding beyond one year for Taka 313,081,169 
that do not show any movement during the year. In the absence of any policy for bad and doubtful debts, we could not 
verify the extent of doubtful debts indicating that the loss for the year has been understated. Moreover, the Company did 
not apply the expected credit loss method in accordance with IFRS 9. In addition, the Company has disclosed under note 
11.1 certain amounts received from customers that could not be accounted for due to lack of required customer details.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘International Ethics Standards Board of Accounts’ 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
the IESBA code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit 
evidence has obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

EMPHASIS OF MATTERS

1) We draw attention to note 3.9.2 of the accompanying financial statements stating that the Company has an unfunded 
gratuity scheme for its employees. Calculation of provision against gratuity payable is based on last drawn pay multiplied 
by the number of years’ service as per the Company’s policy. The Company has however not made any actuarial valuation 
of its liability for gratuity that is required under IAS 19.

2) We also draw attention to note 16 of the accompanying financial statements that represents cash and cash equivalents 
amounting to Taka 371,748,953 which comprise of cash in hand (Taka 204,392) and cash at bank (Taka 371,544,560).

We also draw attention to note 16.1 of the financial statements that indicates the company has made cash transactions 
exceeding Taka 50,000 per transaction that is a violation of the relevant section of Income Tax Ordinance (ITO) 1984.



OTHER MATTER

We are not aware of the audit status of the associate companies but the unaudited financial statements of 4 (four) associate 
companies for the year ended 30 June 2020 were made available to us. The profit recognized from the associate companies 
are based on the unaudited financial statements. We are not also aware of the audit of 3 (three) other entities which are 
reportedly dormant and awaiting for winding up as reported by the management.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1) Revenue

Revenue recognition has significant and wide influence on financial statements. The Company reported revenue for the 
amount of Taka 13,876,211,430. Revenue is recognized when the amounts and the related costs are reliably measured and 
the performance obligation is completed through passing of control to the customers. While the risk and rewards are being 
transferred for the performance obligations at the delivery point and control has passed, there is a risk that the Company 
might misstate or manipulate sales quantity or price in the financial statements. There is also a risk that revenue may be 
overstated or understated through various discounts and incentives. However, the management of the Company informed 
us that they do not have any policy that allows to give any such incentives to dealers.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

 We assessed the reporting environment of the Company as well as other relevant systems supporting the accounting 
or revenue;

 We examined customer invoice (Mushak 6.3), sales account book (6.2), VAT submission form (Mushak 9.1) and receipts 
of payment on a test basis;

 We summarized of Mushak 9.1, Mushak 6.7, Mushak 6.8 month wise and cross checked with financial statements 
booked as revenue;

 We obtained supporting documents for sales transactions recorded;

 We enquired that the Company did not offer any discount to dealers during the year;

 We assessed whether the sufficient disclosure has been given; and

 We tested the timing of revenue recognition as well as cut off checked.

2) Loan (Long term and short term)

Working capital of the Company is dependent on the short term loan and bank overdraft. Most of the loans are floating 
interest bearing and in the future, if the rates change (increases), the Company might face difficulties in providing the 
interest payments. The total long term loan is Taka 1,419,475,078 and short term loan is Taka 8,793,832,714. Total finance 
cost is Taka 992,407,650 which is 55.78% of the expenses (administrative, selling and finance cost). That is indicating a major 
portion of the cost is interest cost, which concludes the too much dependency on the loans. The Company is legally bound 
for the interest cost and any default may cause reputational and legal issues. Enough profit should be available to make the 
interest payment and any default may hamper the bargaining power of the Company to get new loans.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

 We sent bank confirmations to respective banks and also obtained few balance confirmations from certain banks with 
majority transactions;

 We reviewed and checked the sanction letter and repayment schedule;

 Cross checked with liability certificate provided by financial institutions, bank confirmations and financial statements 
booked as individual bank loan;

 We performed recalculation of finance cost and checked its accuracy; and

 We also reviewed the disclosure requirements with obtaining all terms and conditions of the loan.
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3) Implementation of IFRS 16: Leases

The Company implemented IFRS 16 “Leases” on 1 January 2019 following the transition under modified retrospective 
method under which the cumulative impact of applying IFRS 16 is accounted for as an adjustment to equity at the start 
of the current accounting period. The Company reported the Right of Use (RoU) asset for the amount of Taka 314,929,576 
and Lease obligation for the amount of Taka 340,702,914 at the year end.

Given the first time adoption of IFRS 16 “Leases”, connections to other items to the financial statements including 
depreciation and interest, high level of management judgments required for identifying the lease, lease period, discount 
rate etc. We consider the lease as key audit area.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

 We reviewed appropriateness of management’s application of IFRS 16 and assessment of the impact on the financial 
statements. Our audit procedures included testing classification and measurement of right-of-use of assets and lease 
obligation in accordance with IFRS 16;

 We checked the present value calculation for lease and also reviewed lease agreements and made calculation to 
ascertain the appropriateness of the incremental borrowing rate used;

 We also examined the accuracy and appropriateness of accounting adjustments in the financial statements arising 
from the adoption of IFRS 16; and

 We verified the sufficiency and appropriateness of disclosures in the financial statements.

REPORTING ON OTHER INFORMATION

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information in the 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the 
date of this auditors’ report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above 
when it becomes available and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

The other information comprises all of the information in the annual report other than the consolidated and separate 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with 
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International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the 
override of internal control;

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances;

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management;

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the 
audit evidence obtained whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern; and

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994 and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), we also report the following:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appeared from 
our examination of those books;

c) the Company’s statement of financial position and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
along with the annexed notes 1 to 48 dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account; and

d) the expenditures incurred and payments made were for the purposes of the Company’s affairs.

Dated, Dhaka
14 November 2020

A F Nesaruddin, FCA
Senior Partner
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants          
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2020

 30.06.2020
 Taka 

 30.06.2019
 Taka Notes

ASSETS
Non- current assets
Property, plant and equipments (PPE), net
Right-of-use asset (ROU), net
Capital work in progress
Intangible asset

Investment in associate and subsidiary companies
Current assets
Investment in shares
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Intercompany receivables
Advances, deposits and prepayments
Advance income tax
Short term investment- FDRs
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY  AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' equity
Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserve

Non- current liabilities
Employee benefits - gratuity scheme
Long term borrowing net off current portion
Lease obligation
Deferred tax liability

Current liabilities and provisions
Short term loan
Long term borrowing - current portion 
Lease obligation - current portion
Trade and other payables
Intercompany payables
Provision for tax liabilities
Provision for workers' profit participation fund
Payable to IPO applicants
Unclaimed dividend

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Net Asset Value per share (NAV) 

4
5
6
7

8

9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17
18

19
20
21
22

23
20.1
21
24
25
26
27

39

 These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes. 

-

-

8,041,020,727

307,153,556
41,908,080

8,390,082,362
256,342,357

54,941,236
1,297,877,700
3,599,007,746

291,945,998
436,521,766

2,750,180,449
1,920,310,773

280,773,483
10,631,559,150
19,277,983,869

1,485,000,000
2,956,560,000
2,106,437,216

612,480,492
7,160,477,708

162,593,243
1,575,330,192

-
704,717,145

2,442,640,580

7,668,048,872
740,527,887

478,366,997
7,230,607

722,216,731
20,561,259
12,844,691
25,068,537

9,674,865,581
12,117,506,161
19,277,983,869

48.22

7,505,811,507
314,929,576
442,339,580
36,825,332

8,299,905,995
281,256,372

44,723,353
1,768,067,235
3,927,759,329

11,031,555
425,972,816

2,445,513,518
1,508,859,370

371,748,953
10,503,676,128
19,084,838,495

1,485,000,000
2,956,560,000
1,854,089,572

591,466,142
6,887,115,714

198,049,350
821,295,223
51,060,108

707,575,264
1,777,979,946

8,793,832,714
598,179,855
289,642,806
527,995,990
62,679,643

108,699,353
-

12,836,987
25,875,488

10,419,742,836
12,197,722,782
19,084,838,495

46.38

Dated, Dhaka
14 November 2020

As per our report of same date

Md. Alamgir Kabir
Director

Molla Mohammad Majnu
Managing Director

Md. Abdul Kayum, FCMA
Chief Financial Officer (CC)

A F Nesaruddin, FCA
Senior Partner

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants 

Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS
Sr. GM & Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2020

2019-2020
 Taka 

2018-2019
 Taka Notes

Revenue 28
Cost of sales 29
Gross profit

Income from mother vessel operation 31
Administrative expenses 32
Selling and distribution expenses 33

Operating profit

Non-operating income and expenses 34
Finance cost 35.1
Financial income 35.2

Net (loss)/profit before WPPF & Income tax
Workers' profit participation fund (WPPF)
Net (loss)/profit before tax

37
(Loss)/profit before income tax
Income tax 
Current tax expense 26
Deferred tax expense 22.1

Net (loss)/profit after tax for the year

(Loss)/profit for the year
Add: Other comprehensive income
Total other comprehensive (loss)/profit for the year
Earnings per share (EPS) 38

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes. 

Share of profit from associates

13,876,211,430
(12,454,360,809)

1,421,850,621

164,378,250
(252,038,375)
(534,608,700)
(622,268,825)
799,581,796

36,578,103
(992,407,650)

110,913,521
(844,916,025)
(45,334,230)

-
(45,334,230)

17,114,045
(28,220,185)

(94,370,185)
(9,862,903)

(104,233,088)
(132,453,273)

(132,453,273)
-

(132,453,273)
(0.89)

14,628,432,591
(12,698,608,615)

1,929,823,976

163,507,500
(310,036,744)
(605,881,338)
(752,410,582)

1,177,413,394

44,823,643
(1,004,203,672)

213,753,067
(745,626,962)
431,786,432
(20,561,259)

411,225,173
24,187,271

435,412,444

(84,716,866)
(99,545,423)

(184,262,289)
251,150,155

251,150,155
-

251,150,155
1.69

Dated, Dhaka
14 November 2020

As per our report of same date

Md. Alamgir Kabir
Director

Molla Mohammad Majnu
Managing Director

Md. Abdul Kayum, FCMA
Chief Financial Officer (CC)

A F Nesaruddin, FCA
Senior Partner

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants 

Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS
Sr. GM & Company Secretary
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* FDRs amounting Taka 1,920,310,773  was presented as part of cash and cash equivalents in 2019 which have now been 
reclassified to short term investments - FDRs to conform to the current year's presentation.  Encashment of short term 
investment - FDRs has been presented net off investment reclassified during the year.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2020

2019-2020
 Taka 

2018-2019
 Taka 

Encashment of short term investment -FDRs

Increase of IPO application funds due to foreign exchange fluctuation
Dividend paid

Net (decrease)/ increase of cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Net operating cash flows per share  (NOCFPS)

Cash paid to suppliers and employees

Received from intercompany

Cash paid for operating expenses
Income tax paid

Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents

Net cash used in financing activities

Investment in shares

Receipt/(Repayment) of short term loan

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash flows from operating activities

Net cash flows from in investing activities

Paid against financial expense

Cash received from customers
Cash received from other operating income

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Repayment of lease obligation

Cash received from non- operating income

Interests received

Repayment of term loan

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipments
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments
Payment for capital work in progress

13,541,320,928
221,913,983
48,089,694

(12,249,045,546)
(610,900,963)
(403,220,632)
548,157,464

(177,553,021)
3,451,718

(179,884,183)
411,451,403
328,563,508

(6,236)
99,273,701

485,296,889

1,125,783,842
(896,383,001)
(983,411,400)
(40,767,572)

                            (7,704)
(147,693,049)

(942,478,884)

493,965

90,975,469
280,773,483

371,748,953

3.69

13,620,913,776
188,116,500
46,432,118

(12,436,446,397)
(484,329,589)
(667,837,442)
266,848,967

(717,628,878)
2,179,014

(194,398,943)
2,187,107,864

182,513,919
(212,619)

264,015,289
1,723,575,646

(311,339,224)
(429,559,240)
(952,820,525)

-

(221,969,126)
(1,915,677,856)

5,146,749

74,746,758
206,026,725

280,773,483

1.80

                           10,259 

Md. Alamgir Kabir
Director

Molla Mohammad Majnu
Managing Director

Md. Abdul Kayum, FCMA
Chief Financial Officer (CC)

Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS
Sr. GM & Company Secretary
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1.0 Incorporation and legal status  
M. I. Cement Factory Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Company" or ''MICFL'') was incorporated on           
31 December 1994 under the Companies Act, 1994 as a Public Limited Company in Bangladesh. The Company 
subsequently went for Initial Public Offering of shares in January 2011 which was fully subscribed and issued. 
The Company was listed with Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) on 5 May 2011 and Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Limited (DSE) on 18 May 2011.

The registered office of the Company is situated at West Mukterpur, Munshigonj and the corporate office is 
situated at Delta Life Tower, (3rd & 6th floor), Plot # 37, Road # 45 (South) and 90 (North), Gulshan- 2, 
Dhaka-1212.          

The Company has four associate companies namely Crown Power Generation Limited (CPGL), Crown Mariners 
Limited (CML), Crown Cement Concrete and Building Products Limited (CCCBPL) and Crown Transportation & 
Logistics Limited (CTLL).

2.0 Nature of activities     

The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and marketing of Ordinary Portland Cement (OPC) 
and Portland Composite Cement (PCC), the Company has been marketing its products with the brand name 
“Crown Cement”. In addition to sale of Company's products in the local market, the Company also exports its 
products to India. The plant of the Company is equipped with state of the art vertical roller mill.

3.0 Summary of significant accounting and valuation policies 
The accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been applied consistently to all the years presented. The specific accounting policies selected and applied 
by the Company’s management for significant transactions and events that have a material effect in 
preparation and presentation of financial statements are in compliance with the framework of International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

3.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements

 (a)  Accounting standards       

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the requirements of Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Companies Act 
1994 and other applicable laws and regulations. 

(b) Accounting convention     

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost model except property, plant and equipments 
which have been measured under revaluation model. The Company classified the expenses using the function 
of expenses method as per IAS-1: Presentation of financial statements.

(c) Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of financial statements, complying IFRS, requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates. It also requires management to exercise their judgment in ascertaining assumption in the process 
of applying the Company’s accounting policies and reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. Such estimates are prepared on the assumption of going concern and are established based on 
currently available information. Changes in facts and circumstances may result in revised estimates and actual 
results could differ from the estimates.

Estimates are made by management in the preparation of the financial statements include assumptions used 
for depreciation, allowance for receivables, deferred taxes and provisions for employees benefits.
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Mother vessels   

Buildings   

Plant and machineries   

Furnitures   

Decorations   

Equipments   

Computers   

Transport and vehicles   

Other assets   

Straight line  

Reducing balance  

Reducing balance  

Reducing balance   

Straight line  

Straight line  

Straight line  

Reducing balance  

Reducing balance  

15.00 to 21.42

5

10

10

20

20

33.33

10-15

10-20

5

5

10

10

20

20

33.33

10-15

10-20

Category of PPE     Depreciation Method
Rate (%) 

2020         2019

 (d) Re-arrangement of figures   

 Previous year figures have been re-arranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year's presentation.

3.2 Foreign currency translation/transaction 
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction 
date in accordance with IAS-21: The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates and the resultant gain/loss is 
recognized in the financial statements. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated at the rates prevailing on the reporting date. Exchange differences at the statement of financial 
position date are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. 

3.3 Property, plant and equipments (PPE)
Tangible fixed assets are accounted for according to IAS-16: Property, plant and equipments either at historical 
cost or at revaluation less accumulated depreciation and the capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. 
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repair and maintenance costs are charged to the Statement of 
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on assets other than land is calculated using the reducing balance method or straight line 
method over their estimated useful lives at the following rates: 

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. 

In respect of addition to fixed assets, due to automated accounting system (SAP), depreciation is charged from 
the month of addition in which the assets are ready to use while no depreciation is charged in the month of 
disposal.        

In the  last year financial statements, we had charged depreciation on mother vessel @5.00%. Due to change 
of estimate  relating to depreciable life of mother vessel, the depreciation charge has increased from 5% to 
15% and 21.42% for the financial year 2019-2020. Had we estimated to depreciate with the earlier estimation 
of useful life of mother vessel, the depreciation charge to statement of comprehensive income would have 
been lower by Taka 116,123,537.   

137 no. of transport vehicles / vessels owned by the Company are being operated by Crown Transportation and 
Logistics Limited. No related income and expenses except depreciation has been recognized in the financial 
statements.       

In accordance with the provision of IAS-36 Impairment of assets, no impairment indication has been observed 
till reporting date.          
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Opening balance 01 July 2019    
Accomulated depreciation 30 June 2019    
Written down value/ Cost at 1 July 2019    
Remaining useful life     
Residual value     
Depreciation per month    
Depreciation for the year    
Written down value     

 1,325,377,448 
 346,593,607 
 978,783,841 
  56 months 
 247,343,648 
 13,061,432 

 156,737,184 
 822,046,657 

 347,050,023 
 40,113,204 

 306,936,819 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 306,936,819 

 478,938,107 
 26,333,210 

 452,604,897 
  80 months 
 254,916,685 

 2,471,103 
 29,653,232 

 422,951,665 

Particulars Crown Voyager Crown Victory Crown Vision

Changes in estimates

The estimated useful life of the three mother vessels (Crown Voyager, Crown Victory, Crown Vision) was 
changed by the management for the year ended 30 June 2020, due to the industry practice. As a result the total 
depreciation of this year has changed. Previously the depreciation charged for the three mother vessels was 
5%, but now it is 21.42% for Crown Voyager and 15% for Crown Vision. Crown Victory's estimated useful life is 
over, so there would be no depreciation charge for Crown Victory. We are providing a short calculation for the 
purpose of better understanding regarding the above mentioned issue.

3.04 Leases assets    

 Initial application of new standards

 The Company has initially applied IFRS 16 from 1 July 2019. Due to the transition methods chosen by the 
Company in applying the standard, comparative information throughout these financial statements has not 
been restated to reflect the requirements of this new standard.

 IFRS 16: Leases       

 IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a 
right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its 
obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short term leases and leases of 
low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify 
leases as finance or operating leases.     

 IFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance, including IAS 17 leases, IFRIC 4 determining whether an 
arrangement contains a lease, SIC-15 operating leases – incentives and SIC-27 evaluating the substance of 
transactions involving the legal form of a lease.   

 The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2019. Although early adoption is 
permitted, the Company has not early adopted IFRS 16 in preparing these financial statements.

 The most significant impact identified is that the Company will recognize new assets and liabilities for its 
operating leases of Office building and Lighter Vessel. In addition, the nature of expenses related to those 
leases will now change as IFRS 16 replaces the straight-line operating lease expense with a depreciation charge 
for right-of-use assets and interest expense on lease liabilities.   

 Previously, the Company recognized operating lease expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease 
and recognized liabilities only to the extent that there was a timing difference between actual lease payments 
and the expense recognized.     

 As a lessee, the Company applies IFRS 16 initially on 1 April 2019, to all contracts entered into before 1 July 
2019 and which were identified as leases in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4, using the modified 
retrospective approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting IFRS 16 will be recognized as an 
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 July 2019, with no restatement of comparative 
information. The Company also applies IFRS 16 to all contracts entered into on or after 1 July 2019, considering 
exemption criteria of the new standard as applicable. The new standard has material effect on the Company’s 
financial statements which are described in note 5 (ROU Asset), 21 (Lease obligation).
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3.4.1 Changes in accounting policies     
 Except for the changes below, the Company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods 

presented in these financial statements.     

 The Company applied IFRS 16 with a date of initial application of 1 July 2019. As a result, the Company has 
changed its accounting policy for lease contracts as detailed below.  

 The Company applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach, under which the cumulative effect 
of initial application is recognized at 1 July 2019. The details of the changes in accounting policies are 
disclosed below:

3.4.2 Definition of a lease      

 Previously, the Company determined at contract inception whether an arrangement is or contains a lease 
under IFRIC 4. Under IFRS 16, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the 
definition of a lease.       

 On transition to IFRS 16, the Company elected to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment 
of which transactions are leases. It applied IFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously identified as leases. 
Contracts that were not identified as leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not reassessed for whether there is a lease.

 As a lessee         

 As a lessee, the Company previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment 
of whether the lease transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the 
underlying asset to the Company. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognizes right-of-use assets and lease 
liabilities for all applicable leases i.e. these leases are on-balance sheet.    

 The Company decided to apply recognition exemptions to short term leases as applicable. For leases of other 
assets, which were classified as operating under IAS 17, the Company recognized right-of-use assets and lease 
liabilities.

 i. Leases classified as operating leases under IAS 17     

 At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted 
at the Company’s incremental borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019. Right-of-use assets are measured at their 
carrying amount as if IFRS 16 had been applied since the commencement date, discounted using the 
opportunity cost rate at the date of initial application - the Company applied this approach to its largest 
property leases.        

 The Company used the following practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 to leases previously classified as operating 
leases under IAS 17. The Company applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

 ii. Leases previously classified as finance leases    

 The Company has no finance lease

3.4.3 Impacts on financial statements      

 On transition to IFRS 16, the company recognized Taka 382,056,982 as Right-of-use assets (ROU) and            
Taka 381,470,486 as lease liabilities. The remaining amount of Taka 586,496 has been reflected in the 
statement of changes in equity. 

 IFRS 16.C12 (a) when measuring lease liabilities, the Company discounted lease payments using its 
incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019. The weighted-average rate applied is 9%.

Opeating Lease commitment at 30 June 2019    
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019    
Finance Lease liabilites recognized as at 30 June 2019    
Adjustments for recognition exemption and others    
Lease Liabilities recognized at 1 July 2019    

 382,056,982 
 381,470,486 

 -   
 -   

 381,470,486 

Particulars Taka
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3.4.4 Application of Leases
 The Company has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative 

information has not been restated and continues to be reported under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The details of 
accounting policies under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 are disclosed separately if they are different from those under 
IFRS 16 and the impact of changes is disclosed in Note 5.

3.4.5 Significant accounting policy     

 Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time 
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset, the Company assesses whether:

  The contract involves the use of an identified asset – this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should 
be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier 
has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified; 

  The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset 
throughout the period of use; and      

  The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the 
decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare 
cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company 
has the right to direct the use of the asset if either:   

  The Company has the right to operate the asset; or 

  The Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used; 

  This policy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 July 2019.

 At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the 
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

 Policy applicable before 1 July 2019     

 For contracts entered into before 1 January 2019, the Company determined whether the arrangement was or 
contained a lease based on the assessment of whether:

  Fulfilment of the arrangement was dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets; and 

  The arrangement had conveyed a right to use the asset. An arrangement conveyed the right to use the asset 
if one of the following was met:      

  The purchaser had the ability or right to operate the asset while obtaining or controlling more than an 
insignificant amount of the output;

  The purchaser had the ability or right to control physical access to the asset while obtaining or controlling 
more than an insignificant amount of the output; or

  Facts and circumstances indicated that it was remote that other parties would take more than an insignificant 
amount of the output and the price per unit was neither fixed per unit of output nor equal to the current 
market price per unit of output

 As a lessee       

 The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability (for its Office Building and Lighter Vessel) at 
the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus 
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to 
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.
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 The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement 
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. In addition, 
the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability.     

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Company’s opportunity cost rate. Generally, the Company uses its borrowing cost rate as the 
discount rate.       

  Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise fixed payments, including 
in-substance fixed payments.

 The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when 
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the 
Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee or if the 
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

 When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has 
been reduced to zero.

 The Company presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position. 

 Short term leases and leases of low-value assets   

 Currently the Company has no such short term lease or lease of low value asset. The Company will not 
recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or 
less and leases of low value assets. The Company will recognize the lease payments associated with these 
leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term as applicable.

 In the comparative period, assets held under operating leases were not recognized in the Company’s 
statement of financial position. The Company recognized operating lease expense on a straight-line basis over 
the term of the lease and recognized liabilities only to the extent that there was a timing difference between 
actual lease payments and the expense recognized.

 As a lessor

 There is no such lease for which the Company is a lessor.

 As a lessee

 The Company leases Office Building and Lighter Vessel as operating leases.

3.5 Intangible assets 
 Intangible fixed assets are accounted for according to IAS-38: Intangible Assets. Intangible assets acquired 

separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are  
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally 
generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is 
reflected in the income statement in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

 Intangible assets include acquired computer software capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire 
and bring to use the specific software. Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over 
the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets, from the month they are available for use. Enterprise 
Resource Plan (ERP) software is amortized at the rate of 10%.  

3.6 Inventories  
 Inventories are valued in accordance with IAS-2: Inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The 

cost of inventories is based on weighted average method. The cost of finished goods comprises raw materials, 
packing materials, direct labour, other direct and related production overheads (based on normal capacity) 
and production related depreciation.
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3.7 Trade receivables, intercompany receivables and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognized and carried at original invoiced amount. Receivables are stated at net off 
provision for doubtful debts. Provision is made in these accompanying financial statements complying the 
Company's policy and receivables are written off when the debts became finally irrecoverable. Further, 
management has assessed the objective evidence regarding capacity of repayment of its sister concerns and 
impairment provision is made in these accompanying financial statements complying the Company's policy.

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents
It includes cash in hand and bank deposits those are available for use by the Company having no potential risk 
of changes in value of these current assets.    

3.9 Employee benefits 
3.9.1 Defined contribution plan

Defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which the Company provides benefits for 
all of its permanent employees. The recognised Employees’ Provident Fund is being considered as defined 
contribution plan as it meets the recognition criteria specified for this purpose. All permanent employees 
contribute 7% of their basic salary to the provident fund and the Company also makes equal contribution. This 
fund is recognised by the National Board of Revenue (NBR). The Company recognises contribution to defined 
contribution plan as an expense when an employee has rendered required services. The legal and constructive 
obligation is limited to the amount it agrees to contribute to the fund. Obligations are created when they are due.

3.9.2 Defined benefits plan 
This represents an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees. One latest basic salary is allocated 
to employees for the year(s) of service rendered who have not completed ten years while one and a half latest 
basic salary is allocated in the same manner who have completed ten years of service in the Company.

No actuarial valuation was done for liability on account of gratuity. Had any actuarial valuation been carried 
out the difference between current provision and actuarial valuation would have been nominal as internally 
assessed by the management.

3.9.3 Short term employee benefits
(a) Group insurance benefit      

 The permanent employees of the Company are covered under a group insurance scheme and insurance 
premium is being charged to statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

(b) Workers' profit participation fund (WPPF)   

 The Company recognizes a provision and expenses for Workers' Profit Participation @ 5% of net profit as per 
relevant Act, 2006 (Ammended 2013). 

(c) Leave encashment benefit     

 The permanent employees of the Company are entitled to encash earned leave in pursuant to the leave 
encashment policy consistently applied and  approved by the Board. The Company calculates benefit for leave 
encashment on a calendar year basis. 

3.10 Trade payaables, intercompany payables and other payables
Liabilities are recorded at the amount payable for settlement in respect of goods and services received by the 
Company.

3.11 Provisions 
Provisions are recognized in accordance with IAS-37: Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets). 
The Company recognizes a provision when there is a present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of 
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
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3.12 Revenue recognition         
 Revenue recognition follows the principles as ennunciated under IFRS 15.

(a) The Company recognizes sales when products are dispatched and when significant risks and rewards of 
ownership are also transferred to the buyers and consequently performance obligation are fulfilled;

i) The entity has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and 
customer obtains control of the goods;    

ii) It is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur;

iii) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

iv) It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and

(b) Interest income on bank deposits is recognized once credited to the Company accounts maintained with 
the respective banks;       

(c) Income from mother vessel, when it is being chartered out, is recognized on the basis of contractual 
agreement between the Company and Crown Maritime and Shipping Services;

(d) Dividend income from investment in shares is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive payment 
is established; and       

(e) Other income is recognized on accrual basis.   

3.13  Advertising and promotional expenses
All costs associated with advertising and promotional activities are charged out in the year of occurrence.

3.14  Allocation of directors' remuneration
Directors' remuneration is allocated to different departments like administration, factory and selling and 
distribution on the basis of the functions performed by them for the Company.

3.15 Allocation of depreciation 
Depreciation is allocated to factory, administrative and selling & distribution overheads on the basis of utilization 
of assets by the function of the Company.

3.16 Income tax

3.16.1 Current tax        
The Company qualifies as a “Publicly Traded Company” as defined in income tax laws. The applicable tax rate 
for the Company is 25% and hence provision for taxation has been made on this basis which is in compliant 
with the Finance Act, 2019.       

As per 82 (C), sub section 2(ii) of the Income Tax Ordinance 1984,  tax deducted  under section 53 from import 
goods by an industrial undertaking (except an industrial undertaking engaged in producing cement, iron or 
iron products cannot carry forward) instructed by Finance Act 2019 as raw materials for its own consumption. 
Any tax deducted or collected at source under the provisions of sections mentioned in clause (b) shall be the 
minimum tax on income from the source or sources for which tax has been deducted or collected. To comply 
with the above mentioned rule we have to consider total income tax deducted in import stage during the year 
as our minimum current income tax under 82 (C). However, We have not considered this amount in our current 
tax computation. Since we have filed a writ petition, we have considered our tax liability on the basis of 0.60% 
of gross receipts and consider section 30B.

3.16.2  Deferred tax         

 Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method. Deferred tax arises due to temporary difference, 
deductible or taxable, for the events or transaction is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other 
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comprehensive income. A temporary difference is the difference between the tax base of an asset or liability 
and its carrying reported amount in the statement of financial position. Deferred tax assets or liability is the 
amount of income tax recoverable or payable in future period(s) recognized in the current period. The deferred 
tax liability/expense does not create a legal liability/recoverability to and from the income tax authority in the 
current period. Deferred tax provision has been calculated as per IAS-12 and calculation sheet has been 
attached herewith as note: 21.

3.17 Investment in associate companies
Associate companies are those where the Company has direct investment in those entities. 

Associate companies use similar accounting policies and investment in such are accounted for following the equity 
method and recognized in the statement of financial position at cost plus proportionate share of post acquisition 
profit or loss wherever applicable. Proportionate share of losses in associate companies are recognized. 

3.18 Investment in shares
Investment in shares which are actively traded on a quoted market is designated at fair value (market price) 
through statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Gains or losses arising from a change in 
the fair value of such financial assets are recognized in the Statement of Profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income accordingly. 

3.19 Financial instruments
Pursuant to the guidance in IFRS 9, the Company records in the statement of financial position derivative 
instruments at their fair values. The accounting of changes in fair value of a derivative depends on the intended 
use of the derivative and the resulting designation. The Company designates its derivatives based on the 
criteria established under IFRS 9.

3.20 Cash flows statement 
 Cash flows statement is prepared principally in accordance with IAS-7: Cash flows statement and the cash 
flows from operating activities have been presented under direct method.

3.21 Segment information
The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and selling of similar type of products; this forms the 
focus of the Company's internal reporting system. The Company's business is not organized in different 
products/ geographical components. Hence, segmentation within a wide portfolio of products/ geographical 
location is not a part of the regular internally reported financial information to the operating decision makers. 
Therefore, it is not possible to segment the Company's results by  products/ geographic location which might 
involve a high degree of estimation.

 3.22  Earnings per share  
The Company separately presented  separate basic and diluted (when dilution is applicable) earnings per share 
(EPS) data for its ordinary shares according to IAS-33.

 3.23  Finanace expances and income    
Finance expenses comprise bank charges. All finance expenses are recognised in the profit and loss statement 
along with interest income from fixed deposit and from saving or current account. 

 3.24  Date of authorization    
The Board of Directors has authorized the financial statements on 14 November 2020 for publication.

 3.25 General   
 i) These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka which is functional and presentation currency 

of the Company. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Taka. 

ii) Profit recognized from the associates company are based on the un-audited financial statements. Audit of 
the Company is currently ongoing.        
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 30.06.2020
 Taka 

 30.06.2019
 Taka 

The Board of Directors decided to sell the Vessel Crown Victory on its 221st board meeting held on 20 June 2020. Due 
to the situation arising out of Covid-19, the sale could not be completed. The Company has no intention to sell the 
Vessel immediately.  It is di�cult to estimate at this stage the realizable value of the asset since the Vessel market is 
very volatile and the principles of IFRS 13 regarding fair market valuation for "non-current assets" cannot be applied 
practically. Any estimates are unreliable and may lead to misleading conclusions and thus the Vessel is not presented 
separately as per IFRS 5 'Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations'.

The Company purchased land amounting to Taka 16,912,700 on 4 December 2019 and 21 June 2020 as per the 
agreements. The Company has applied for mutation for  these new land acquisition and the mutation is under 
process. (Application Ref - 25,59,845)

Property, plant and equipments of the Company were revalued by of M/S. S.F. Ahmed & Co., Chartered Accountants 
as on 30 June 2016, following "Market Approach”.

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.0

Property, plant and equipments (PPE), net

*Depreciation has been increased due to changes of depreciation policy of Mother Vessels.

Right-of-use asset (ROU), net

Adjustments on adoption of IFRS16 as at 1 July 2019

Add: Charged during the year
Less: Disposals during the year

Add: Additions made during the year
Less: Disposals during the year

C. Carrying amount (A-B)

A. At cost

B. Accumulated depreciation

C. Carrying amount (A-B)

A separate schedule of property, plant and equipments is given in Annexure-A.

Opening balance

Add: Charged during the year

Add: Additions made during the year

Less: Disposals during the year

Opening balance

B. Accumulated depreciation

Less: Disposals during the year

A. At cost

11,417,708,881
222,251,180

11,639,960,061
10,591,108

11,629,368,953

3,376,688,158
752,721,208

4,129,409,366
5,851,919

4,123,557,447
7,505,811,507

382,056,982
-
-

382,056,982

67,127,406
-

67,127,406
314,929,576

10,523,902,600
908,741,720

11,432,644,320
14,935,438

11,417,708,881

2,726,772,230
658,419,827

3,385,192,057
8,503,898

3,376,688,158
8,041,020,727

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
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 30.06.2020
 Taka 

 30.06.2019
 Taka 

6.0

7.0

8.0

Intangible Assets
Software

B. Accumulated amortization

(i) Investment in associate companies

Add: Share money deposit

(c) Crown Cement Concrete and Building Products Limited (CCCBPL)

Sub-Total (i)

Add: Additions made during the year

Add: Share of profit from investment

C. Carrying amount (A-B)

Add: Charged during the year

Add: Share of profit from investment

(a) Crown Power Generation Limited (CPGL)

Opening balance

Investment in associate and subsidiary companies

(b) Crown Mariners Limited (CML)
Add: Share of profit from investment

Capital work in  progress

Opening balance

Machineries and equipments
Building construction

Others

A. At cost

Construction of silo
Jetty construction

-
17,887,163

394,752,949
7,793,463

21,906,005
442,339,580

50,827,478
-

50,827,478

8,919,398
                          5,082,748 

14,002,146
36,825,332

8,162,729
941,201

9,103,930

247,679,628
10,956,614
6,300,000

264,936,242

500,000
5,216,230

5,716,230
279,756,402

44,698,159
8,761,897

246,615,845
5,654,107
1,423,548

307,153,556

38,366,505
12,460,973

50,827,478

3,836,651
                    5,082,748 

8,919,398
41,908,080

-
8,162,729

8,162,729

231,655,086
16,024,542

-
247,679,628

500,000
-

500,000
256,342,357
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 30.06.2020
 Taka 

 30.06.2019
 Taka 

Financial statements (un-audited) as at
Percantage (%) of MICFL stake
Initial investment
Total assets 
Total liabilities
Revenue
Profit during the year
Accumulated profit/(loss)
Unrecognized losses of associate companies

 30 June 2020
20%

 2,000,000
125,897,879
87,354,483
63,250,587
 4,706,005

 28,543,397
             -                    

 30 June 2020 
20%

 500,000 
2,054,801,644
1,384,716,564

310,719,622
54,783,070

546,090,080
               - 

 30 June 2020 
20%

 500,000 
 2,579,260,091 
 2,386,772,366 
 3,665,372,331 

 26,081,148 
 187,487,725 

                 - 

 30 June 2020 
20%

 500,000 
604,188,331
701,846,954
709,876,640
 25,853,769 

 (100,158,623)
 (19,531,725)

Particulars

Crown
Mariners
 Limited
(CML)

Crown
Transportation
and Logistics

Limited
(CTLL)

Crown
Cement Concrete

and Building
Products Limited

(CCCBPL)

Crown
Power

Generation
Limited
(CPGL)

These Companies are being operated independently. However, share of proportionate profits and losses in those 
Companies are recognized in accompanying financial statements in accordance with relevant provision of IFRS.

Share money deposit of Taka 6,300,000 shown under 8(b) was wrongly shown as advance to Crown Mariners 
Limited (CML) in the year 2013-2014 has now been rectified and transferred to the appropiate account.

Consolidation could not be done since the accounts and audit of the associate companies could not be 
completed on time.  Consolidation of accounts will be done from next year after completing the audit of the 
other concerns well before time.

Summarized key financial information of the associate companies are presented below in accordance with 
IAS-28 Investment in associates.

- -
499,990 -
499,990 -

- -
499,990 -
499,990 -

- -
499,990 -
499,990 -

Sub-Total (ii) 1,499,970 -

Net investment in associate and subsidiary companies (i+ii) 281,256,372 256,342,357

(a) Ocean Vision Shipping Lines Limited

(b) Ocean Victory Shipping Lines Limited

Add: Share money deposit
(c) Ocean Voyager Shipping Lines Limited

Add: Share money deposit

Add: Share money deposit

(ii) Investment in subsidiary companies
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 30.06.2020
 Taka 

 30.06.2019
 Taka 

Three new Companies named Ocean Vision Shipping Lines Limited, Ocean Victory Shipping Lines Limited and 
Ocean Voyager Shipping Lines Limited have been formed in financial year 2019-20. However, their operations have 
not been started yet.

Consolidation of the subsidiary companies namely, Ocean Vision Shipping Lines Limited,  Ocean Victory Shipping 
Lines Limited and Ocean Voyager Shipping Lines Limited were not done since there have been no transaction in 
these entities. These entities were initially created following a Board decision where it was decided to transfer the 
three mother vessels from M. I. Cement Factory Limited to these entities for better efficiency, transparency, 
accountability and reduce the risk to the Company should a maritime dispute arise. The Board subsequently 
rescinded its earlier decision to transfer the vessels since the regulatory formalities across the world to complete 
the transfer could not take place with the outbreak of pandemic. It was also found that the transfer will subject the 
Company to significant Tax and VAT costs that does not justify the benefits. The process of winding up these 
Companies is underway. The revised decision has been conveyed to the regulators as a Price Sensitive Information.

9.0
54,941,236 56,337,091

45,670 227,917
39,434 38,288

54,947,471 56,526,720
(10,224,119) (1,585,484)
44,723,353 54,941,236

Less: Disposals during the year

Less: Unrealized loss from fair valuation

Opening balance
Add: Additions made during the year

Investment in shares 

9.1 Break-up of investment in shares:

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

AB  Bank 1st  Mutual Fund
AB Bank Limited
Apex Tannery Limited 
Aftab Automobiles Limited
Agni System Limited
Bata Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited
Bay Leasing and  Investment Limited 
BDCOM Online Limited   
BSRM Steels Limited 
City General Insurance Company Limited
Delta Life Insurance Company Limited 
EBL 1st Mutual Fund
Eastern Housing Limited
EBL NRB  Mutual Fund
Export Import (Exim) Bank of Bangladesh Limited
Beximco Pharmaceuticals Ltd.
First Janata Bank Mutual Fund
First Finance Limited
Grameenphone  Limited
Heidelberg Cement Bangladesh  Limited 
ICB AMCL Third NRB Mutual Fund 
IDLC Finance Limited

 1,067 
 107 

 114,000 
 208 
 30 
 23 
 51 
 30 

 134 
 87 
 6 

 272 
 3 

 383 
 2,045 

 72,000
 908 
 341 
 12 

 10,000 
 27 
 92

 5,478
 967 

 16,108,200 
 7,391 

 413 
 23,619 

 776 
 536 

 7,812 
 1,142 

 369 
 1,114 

 161 
 2,039 

 23,109 
 5,925,600 

 4,896 
 2,046 
 4,143 

 2,414,000 
 122 

 4,864 

 4,481 
 728 

 12,186,600 
 4,909 

 402 
 15,944 

 566 
 510 

 4,502 
 1,140 

 348 
 1,115 

 116 
 1,647 

 17,587 
 4,874,400 

 3,723 
 1,739 
 2,866 

 1,373,000 
 143 

 3,855 

Sl. No. Name of shares  Quantity Cost
(in Taka)

Market value
(in Taka)



 30.06.2020
 Taka 

 30.06.2019
 Taka 

23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49

IFIC Bank  Limited
IFIC Bank 1st Mutual Fund 
Islamic Finance & Investment  Limited 
Linde Bangladesh Limited 
LafargeHolcim Bangladesh Limited 
LankaBangla Finance  Limited 
National Credit and Commerce Bank  Limited
National Bank  Limited
Malek Spinning Mills  Limited 
Meghna Life Insurance Company  Limited
Meghna Petroleum Limited 
National Housing Finance and Investment  Limited 
Orion Pharma  Limited
One Bank Limited  
Pioneer Insurance Company  Limited 
Popular Life First Mutual Fund 
Reliance One- Reliance Insurance Mutual Fund
Rupali Insurance Company  Limited 
Rupali Bank  Limited 
Shasha Denims Limited
Southeast Bank  Limited
Square Pharmaceuticals  Limited 
Social Islami Bank Limited
Summit Power Limited 
Titas Gas Transmission and Distribution Company Limited
Trust Bank 1st Mutual Fund 
United Finance Limited

 1,100 
 408 
 12 

 10,000 
 859 
 386 

 210,000 
 66,057 

 2 
 15 
 25 
 16 
 79 

 869 
 15 

 1,319 
 363 

 5 
 13,068 

 119,091 
 28,039 

 115 
 6,352 

 200,063 
 22 

 420 
 248 

 860,774 

 11,296 
 2,158 

 196 
 12,171,000 

 34,064 
 7,628 

 3,045,000 
 528,458 

 33 
 654 

 4,953 
 361 

 2,623 
 11,558 

 497 
 6,499 
 3,435 

 72 
 449,064 

 5,228,662 
 378,527 
 28,233 
 84,315 

 8,402,627 
 642 

 2,287 
 3,836 

 54,947,471 

 9,460 
 1,877 

 149 
 12,845,000 

 30,838 
 4,979 

 2,499,000 
 475,610 

 26 
 647 

 3,945 
 394 

 3,318 
 7,995 

 441 
 5,540 
 2,940 

 79 
 318,859 

 2,572,366 
 316,841 
 19,838 
 74,954 

 7,022,211 
 653 

 1,974 
 3,100 

 44,723,353 

Sl. No. Name of shares  Quantity  Cost
(in Taka)

Market value
(in Taka)

With the onset of the pandemic, there was a drastic reduction in sales for the last quarter as a result of which the 
level of inventory increased.

10.0 Inventories 
Raw material (note - 10.1) 1,150,240,988 949,720,281
Stores and spare parts 362,000,032 348,154,974
Finished cement 57,706,027 2,445
Goods in transit 198,120,187 -

1,768,067,235 1,297,877,700

2020 2019  2019 
10.1 Raw materials UOM Quantity Quantity Taka

MT 115,474 19,204 96,619,498
MT 26,056 6,061 16,822,850
MT 91,923 108,166 336,252,543
MT 4,589 43,918 105,419,915
MT 25,343 116,723 295,177,029
MT 877 877 84,271,644
MT 90 110 10,644,502
PCS 115,374 269,544 4,512,300

618,016,133
81,610,354

281,852,687
11,892,454
61,996,887
84,271,644
8,645,036
1,955,793

1,150,240,988 949,720,281

Cement grinding aid
Izonil

Fly ash
Lime stone

Slag

Clinker
Gypsum

Bags

 2020 
Taka
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11.0 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables  (note - 11.1) 3,737,530,389 3,402,639,887
Other receivables (note - 11.3) 190,228,940 196,367,859

3,927,759,329 3,599,007,746

The Company received a total of Taka 20,681,337 from customers that could not be accounted for due to lack 
of required information. This happened in the last quarter when the office was shut due to pandemic and many 
of the accounts staff were stricken with Covid-19. We are now in the process of identifying the customers and 
crediting these amounts.

The Company could not apply the expected credit loss method under IFRS 9 since proper ageing analysis could 
not be done for reasons explained above. We shall do this next year once we complete the process of 
reconciliation and ageing.

The Company has a long-standing practice of closing its accounts with its customers in the month of April 
every year. During this time, all the outstanding balances with our customers including ageing is reconciled. 
This year, with the outbreak of the pandemic in the month of March, we could not do the closing in the month 
of April. Also, at the time of audit, it was identified that some collection were not properly allocated to 
customers having multiple account receivable code. This resulted in distortion of ageing since there are many 
codes against which amounts have been received but the collection has been shown under another code.

 30.06.2019
 Taka 

11.1
3,760,582,531 3,425,693,210

23,052,142 23,053,323
3,737,530,389 3,402,639,887

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Trade receivables
Receivables from customers (note - 11.2)

11.2 Ageing of the trade receivables is as follows:
Receivable due up to one  month 1,226,095,701
Receivable due above (1) one  month up to (3) three months 892,803,412
Receivable due above (3) three  months up to (6) six months 555,804,441
Receivable due (6) six months up to (1) one year 723,509,138
Receivable due above (1) one year 27,480,519

999,662,091
917,780,188
621,368,988
908,690,095
313,081,169

3,760,582,531 3,425,693,210

11.3 Other receivables
Interest receivable on short term investment - FDRs 42,173,739 30,533,919
Receivable from Alunited Maritime Business (Pvt) Limited 2,956,940 2,956,940
Crown Maritime and Shipping Services 105,341,267 162,877,000
Duty drawback receivable 39,756,993 -

190,228,940 196,367,859

 30.06.2020
 Taka 

For the reason of changes duty draw back policy, we did not receive adjustment duty draw back into VAT current 
account. So, we have considered this amount as other receivables. 



 30.06.2019
 Taka 

 30.06.2020
 Taka 

12.0 Intercompany receivables
- 1,700,703

19,005,602 91,238,672
- 149,195,136

12,903,738 12,319,513
- 58,369,760

31,909,340 312,823,783
20,877,785 20,877,785

11,031,555 291,945,998
Less: Impairment allowance

Crown Power Generation Limited

Crown Cement Concrete and Building Products Limited
Crown Polymer Bagging Limited

Crown Cement Trading Company
Crown Mariners Limited

All the intercomapny transactions are purely for business purposes only and no material amount of 
intercompany loans have been exchanged. 

13.0 Advances, deposits and prepayments

105,690,210
35,530,432
15,133,859
1,327,789
6,361,900

17,509,737
155,297,612

336,851,539

27,756,032
6,663,486
4,815,674

39,235,193

109,428,632
8,737,213

13,808,723
602,792

4,504,360
57,814,855

162,643,595
357,540,171

21,381,391
4,834,196

10,319,075
36,534,663

L/C margin deposits

Advance to employee against salary

Deposits

Advances

Advance against rent

Advance to employee against works 

Value Added Tax (VAT)

Advance against land purchase  (note - 13.1)

Margin for bank guarantee

Advance to parties and contractors

Advance to others  (note - 13.2)

Security deposit and other deposits

Crown Power Generation Limited

Particulars  Purpose

Crown Mariners Limited  

Crown Polymer Bagging Limited

Crown Cement Concrete and
Building Products Limited

Crown Transportation and
Logistics Limited

Crown Cement Trading Company

Power generated is supplied fully to M. I. Cement Factory Limited 
at less than the competitive market price. 
All bags as produced is supplied to M. I. Cement Factory Limited 
at less than competitive market price.
This company went into commercial production on 15 May 2013 
and is involved in ready mix cement business using exclusively 
Crown Cement.  
Crown Transportation & Logistics Limited is providing logistics 
service for carrying finished product to customer at a lower price 
than the market rate.
A partnership firm of directors, occasionally involved in cement 
trading business.
Crown Mariners Limited is providing logistics  service for carrying 
raw materials from Chittagong port to factory ghat at less than 
competitive market price upto 30 April 2020.

M. I. CEMENT FACTORY LTD. I ANNUAL REPORT I 2019-20 131

NOTES



M. I. CEMENT FACTORY LTD. I ANNUAL REPORT I 2019-20132

NOTES

3,486,423
2,734,300

96,744
597,000

44,639,639
8,880,928

-
60,435,034

505,029
1,234,108

7,442
597,000

26,982,487
-

2,571,917
31,897,982

425,972,816 436,521,766

Pre payments

Insurance premium

Others
Advertisement and publicity

Central Depositary Bangladesh Limited (CDBL) expense
Bureau of Indian Standard (BIS) expense
Bangladesh Standard Testing Institution (BSTI) expense

Light Emitting Diode (LED) Liners  (note- 13.3)

 30.06.2019
 Taka 

 30.06.2020
 Taka 

A number of advances have been made against land purchase. These have been made against agreements with 
parties and the Company is enjoying possession of the land. Of the advances, the advance made to Mr. Iftekhar 
for Taka 15,000,000 is disputed and matter is pending with the court, whilst the advance made to Mr. Dilip 
Kumar Saha amounting Taka 4,000,000, Mr. Rafiq Uddin Molla amounting Taka 86,562,632 and Mr. Amin 
Hossain amounting Taka 3,866,000  are expected to be adjusted shortly.

The Company has received land registration documents totaling Taka 43,054,864 from Rafiq Uddin Molla that 
will be subsequently adjusted in the Company's books. 

13.1

We made payment as an advance to others amounting to Taka 162,643,595 for construction of 6 unit (silo) and 
other works. So far, we have adjusted Taka 20,000,000 and remaining balance which will be adjusted with in 
December 2020. 

Advance to others includes Taka 45,754,390 made to CMSS and Taka 91,511,509  to CFPD. These mainly relate 
to advance against ongoing expenses of CMSS for shipping service given to MICFL and have been 
subsequently settled after the reporting date. Advance to CFPD has been made against construction of clinker 
silo for the 6th unit. These are expected to be settled by the end of December 2020.

13.2

Light Emitting Diode (LED) Liners are not capitalized and charged based on its running hours.13.3

14.0
2,750,180,449 2,082,343,006

403,220,632 667,837,443
3,153,401,081 2,750,180,449

Less: Adjustments made during the year (note - 14.1) 707,887,563 -
2,445,513,518 2,750,180,449

Advance income tax

Add: Paid during the year
Opening balance

14.1 Adjustments made during the year
Advance income tax has been adjusted against final assesment amount as per section 83 (2)/ 156 /159 under 
the Income Tax Ordinance, 1984.
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15.0 Short term investment- FDRs
One Bank Limited                       364,814,660 
Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited                       106,444,407 
Bank Alfalah Limited                       337,842,615 
Habib Bank Limited                         62,044,471 
Standard Chartered Bank Limited                       306,587,512 
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited                         52,562,004 
Eastern Bank Limited                       278,563,702 
United Commercial Bank Limited                                       -   
Trust Bank Limited                                       -   
The City Bank Limited                                       -   
IPDC Limited                                       -   

                   1,508,859,370 
16.0 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand (note - 16.1) 204,392
Cash at banks (note - 16.2) 371,544,560

371,748,953

                338,747,294
                  98,493,046
                111,244,430
                113,897,974

303,956,000
50,000,000

549,706,900
263,236,419
21,182,655
13,287,998
56,558,057

             1,920,310,773

452,005
280,321,478

280,773,483

 30.06.2019
 Taka 

 30.06.2020
 Taka 

As per 82(C), sub section 2(ii) of the Income Tax Ordinance 1984,  tax deducted  under section 53 from import 
of raw materials by an industrial undertaking engaged in producing cement, iron or iron products shall be 
treated as minimum tax. 

To comply with the above mentioned rule we have to consider total income tax deducted in import stage 
during the year as our current income tax. But we have not considered this amount as our current tax as we 
have filed a writ petition numbering 7591/2020 and 7592/2020.

 Final assessment 
amount by DCT 

 Adjusted 
as at date

Year of 
adjustment  Balance 

25,838,661 25,838,661 2011-2012 -
48,287,322 56,117,467 2012-2013 (7,830,145)
98,260,484 95,390,047 2012-2013 2,870,437

184,787,887 179,703,497 2012-2013 5,084,390
232,919,203 226,650,449 2012-2013 6,268,754
121,820,733 121,820,733 2014-2015 -
124,007,810 124,007,810 2014-2015 -
164,522,612 - - 164,522,612
159,537,293 - - 159,537,293
214,942,520 - - 214,942,520
162,491,702 - - 162,491,702

1,537,416,227 829,528,664 707,887,563

Financial
year

Assesment
year

2011-2012
2012-2013
2013-2014

2008-2009
2009-2010

2016-2017
2017-2018

2010-2011

2007-2008

2014-2015
2015-20162014-2015

2006-2007

2012-2013

2009-2010

2011-2012

2008-2009

2013-2014

2010-2011

2007-2008

2015-2016
2016-2017

* FDRs amounting Taka 1,920,310,773  was presented as part of cash and cash equivalents in 2019 which have 
now been reclassified to short term investments - FDRs to conform to the current year's presentation. 

*The Company has 85 bank accounts for different purpose and out of them 10 bank accounts with various 
banks had no transaction since long. 
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16.1 Cash in hand
Cash in hand, Head office 49,979 134,225
Cash in hand, Factory 154,413 317,780

204,392 452,005

 30.06.2019
 Taka 

 30.06.2020
 Taka 

During the year, the Company made total Taka 58,501,821 debit transactions and Taka 27,138,859 credit 
transactions in cash above the ceiling of Taka 50,000 per transaction as allowed under the relevant section of 
Income Tax Ordinance, 1984. This happened due to emergency cash purchases to meet urgent purchases for 
the factory and offices to ensure business continuity specially during the pandemic. We shall endeavor to 
minimize such transaction as much as practicable in the next year. The amounts will be accordingly reflected in 
the company’s tax returns.  

16.2 Cash at banks
One Bank Limited
South East Bank Limited
Mercantile Bank Limited
Jamuna Bank Limited
State Bank of India
The City Bank Limited
National Bank Limited
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited
Prime Bank Limited
United Commercial Bank Limited
Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Pubali Bank Limited
Janata Bank Limited
Dhaka Bank Limited
Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited
Uttara Bank Limited
Brac Bank limited
Islami Bank Bangladesh Limited
Standard Chartered Bank
IFIC Bank Limited
The Hongkong And Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
National Credit and Commerce Bank Limited
One Bank Limited, Dividend account
Dutch bangla  Bank Limited, Dividend account
United Commercial Bank Limited, Dividend account
South East Bank Limited, Dividend account
Bank Asia Limited
Arab Bangladesh Bank Limited
Agrani Bank Limited
Eastern Bank Limited
Trust Bank Limited
Premier Bank Limited
NRB Bank Limited

178,336
600,736
729,705
202,757

5,101,285
251,893

2,566,971
7,100,081

281,496,278
82,050

611,365
788,147

3,215,211
1,410,548
5,845,837

5,607
16,975,839
2,609,890

55,675
2,285,829
1,692,099
2,575,624
5,992,437
5,902,233

16,645,229
2,910,154
1,570,222

282,824
5,177

-
3,160

1,208,094
643,270

371,544,560

235,829
177,445

8,903,238
41,877

5,704,912
2,411,075

15,912,988
11,110,853
98,895,590
1,683,374

752,501
5,677,719
4,710,840

23,821,650
2,590,483

6,987
17,053,247
7,605,860

14,408,585
1,399,309
1,790,236
2,085,084
5,814,469
5,804,368

15,500,785
2,848,950
2,861,813

20,118,514
5,869

383,177
3,850

-
-

280,321,478
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16.3 A number of cheques received from customers are appearing in the bank statement for a long period. These 
relate to deposits from retailers on behalf of dealers that cannot be traced to the dealers. With the onset of 
Covid-19 and shut down of our offices and our dealers, the number of untraced deposits have gone up. The 
company is now in the process of identifying these deposits and clearing these outstanding amounts.

As the office was working with limited staff and most finance staff was stricken with Covid-19, the balances 
were not transferred timely and remained in our books. 

The transfer of the shares of Late Alhaj Md. Khabir Uddin Mollah is yet to be executed and succession certificate 
received as on 1 October 2020.

The Company increased its paid-up capital from 1,350 million to 1,485 million by issuing 13,500,000 ordinary 
shares as  bonus share of Taka 10 each to the shareholders as declared at 18th Annual General Meeting held on 
23 December 2012.

30 June 2019
26,751
1,230

71
36
19
5
8

11
27
18

28,176

30 June 2020
3,062,018
1,776,496

473,852
548,873
447,658
201,417
368,492
743,903

11,116,824
129,760,467

148,500,000

30 June 2019
3,243,231
1,740,631

503,876
523,751
475,816
170,411
373,492
842,695

10,889,908
129,736,189

148,500,000

Holdings Number of share holders 

Share capital
Authorized capital

500,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Taka 10 each 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000

Issued, subscribed & paid-up capital

148,500,000 Ordinary Shares of Taka 10 each fully paid-up and share holding position is as under:

17.0

Holding % Number of shares 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
1 230,249,250 230,249,250
2 233,887,500 233,887,500
3 143,970,750 143,970,750
4 121,275,000 121,275,000
5 121,275,000 121,275,000
6 72,765,000 72,765,000
7 25,987,500 25,987,500
8 25,987,500 25,987,500
9 20,790,000 20,790,000
10 488,812,500 488,812,500

15.50%

15.75%
9.70%
8.17%
8.17%
4.90%
1.75%
1.75%
1.40%

32.92%
100% 1,485,000,000 1,485,000,000

Molla Mohammad Majnu
Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah

SL
No. 

 Face Value (Taka) 

Md. Abdul Ahad

Md. Alamgir Kabir

Alhaj Md. Abdur Rouf    
Md. Ashrafuzzaman

Md. Almas Shimul

As at 30 June 2020Name

Late Alhaj Md. Khabir Uddin Mollah 

General Public

Mohammed Jahangir Alam

(Died on 25.05.2019)

23,024,925

23,388,750
14,397,075
12,127,500
12,127,500
7,276,500
2,598,750
2,598,750
2,079,000

48,881,250
148,500,000

100,001 to 1,000,000 shares
50,001 to 100,000 shares

20,001 to 30,000 shares
10,001 to 20,000 shares

30,001 to 40,000 shares

Over 1,000,000 shares

40,001 to 50,000 shares

Less than 499 shares

5,001 to 10,000 shares
500 to 5,000 shares

Shareholding range
30 June 2020

25,399
1,252

68
37
18
6
8

10
28
18

26,844

 30.06.2019
 Taka 

 30.06.2020
 Taka 
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Share premium realized during the year 2010-2011 3,048,000,000 3,048,000,000
Less:  Income tax paid on share premium 91,440,000 91,440,000

2,956,560,000 2,956,560,000
Employee benefits - gratuity scheme
Opening balance 162,593,243 131,243,324
Add : Provision made during the year 44,534,662 47,204,464

207,127,905 178,447,788
Less : Adjustments made during the year 9,078,555 15,854,545

198,049,350 162,593,243

Long term borrowing net off current portion
A) Term loan
Standard Chartered Bank (note - 20.2) 336,752,419 558,280,937
Prime Bank Limited (note - 20.3) 840,822,623 1,098,065,262
Dhaka Bank Limited (note - 20.4) 112,506,519 464,646,587
Pubali Bank Limited (note - 20.5) 901,452 1,385,590
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited - 19,069,193

1,290,983,012 2,141,447,569
B) Term loan
Prime Bank Limited (note - 20.6) 19,458,189 32,125,178
Dhaka Bank Limited (note - 20.7) 109,033,877 142,285,332

128,492,066 174,410,510
1,419,475,078 2,315,858,079

Less: Current portion of long term borrowing (note - 20.1) 598,179,855 740,527,887
821,295,223 1,575,330,192

Current portion of long term borrowings
A) Term loan

Standard Chartered Bank (note - 20.2) 224,501,613 223,312,375
Prime Bank Limited (note - 20.3) 259,452,779 247,665,973
Dhaka Bank Limited (note - 20.4) 52,511,895 191,870,617
Pubali Bank Limited (note - 20.5) 732,000 639,360
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited - 15,952,965

537,198,286 679,441,290B) Hire Purchase loan

Prime Bank Limited (note - 20.6) 14,323,037 21,916,300
Dhaka Bank Limited (note - 20.7) 46,658,531 39,170,297

60,981,568 61,086,597
598,179,855 740,527,887

19.0

20.0

20.1

18.0
This represents share premium of Taka 3,048 million raised by issuing 30 million of ordinary shares @ Taka 
101.60 per share through IPO during the year 2010-2011. The break-up of the balance of share premium is 
given below:

 30.06.2019
 Taka 

 30.06.2020
 Taka 

Share premium 
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20.2 Standard Chartered Bank

Details of long term borrowing is presented below: 

20.3 Prime Bank Limited  

 Nature of facility : Term loan.
 Loan limit : Taka 2,320 million i.e: Equivalent consiting of USD 16,488,500 and Taka 

1,000,256,000;
 Purpose : Capital Expenditure;
 Tenure :  Upto 5 years for USD facility and upto 7 years for Taka facility.

 Securities for the facilities are as follows:
 i) Registered mortgage in favor of the sequrity agent supported by an irrevocable general power of 

attorney;
 ii) The deed of hypothecation (Fixed Assets) in favor of the security agent supported by an irrevocable 

general power of attorney;
 iii) The promissory note in favor of USD facility agent covering USD facility supported by letter of 

continuation;
 iv) The promissory note in favor of BDT facility agent covering USD facility supported by letter of 

continuation;
 v) Guarantee from guarantors covering the facilities; 
 vi) Any other document evidencing or creating or expressed to evidence or create sequrity over any 

asset to secure any obligation of any obligor to a secured party under the finance documents;
 vii) Any other document designated as such by the intercredited agent and the Company; and
 viii) Schedule of the property to be mortgaged total land measuring 296.43. 

(a) Nature of facility : Term loan.
 Loan limit : USD 5 million equivalent to Taka 400 million;
 Purpose :  For retirement of L/C related shipping documents relating to import of capital 

machinery for the new project;
 Tenure :  Upto 5 years including 1 year grace period;
 Repayment : By equal quarterly installment from sale proceds and / cash flows from your own 

sources.

 Securities for the facilities are as follows:
 i) Post dated cheque covering the limit; and
 ii)  Other usual charge documents.
 
(b) Nature of facility : Term loan.
 Loan limit : Taka 600 million or upto 75% of total civil construction, whichever is lower;
 Purpose : To meet up expenditure for construction of new factory building and other civil 

works;
 Tenure :  Upto 5 years including 1 year grace period;
 Repayment : By equal quarterly installment from sale proceds and / cash flows from your own 

sources.

 Securities for the facilities are as follows:
 i) Post dated cheque covering the limit; and
 ii)  Other usual charge documents.
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(c) Nature of facility : Term loan.
 Loan limit : Taka 200 million only or upto 75% cost of local  machinery, spare parts, accessories, 

whichever is lower;
 Purpose : To procure capital machinery, spare parts, accessories from local sources for the 

new project;
 Tenure :  Upto 5 years including 1 year grace period;
 Repayment : By equal quarterly installment from sale proceds and / cash flows from your own 

sources. 

 Securities for the facilities are as follows:
 i) Post dated cheque covering the limit; and
 ii)  Other usual charge documents.

(d) Nature of facility : Term loan.
 Loan limit : Taka 160 million only;
 Purpose : To meet any advance LC payment required for the capital machinery to be 

imported for this expansion project;
 Tenure :  Upto 5 years including 1 year grace period;
 Repayment : By equal quarterly installment from sale proceds and / cash flows from your own 

sources.

 Securities for the facilities are as follows:
 i) Post dated cheque covering the limit; and
 ii)  Other usual charge documents.

 Nature of facility : Term loan.
 Loan limit : Taka 389.50 million only;
 Purpose : For retirement/settlement of import documents;
 Tenure : 5 years from the date of disbursement including 12 months moratorium period;
 Repayment : TL liability along with interest to be adjusted through 16 nos. equal quarterly 

installments starting from 15th month from the date of disbursement;

 Securities for the facilities are as follows:
 i) Registered mortgage of the imported ocean going vessel "MV OMICRON PRIDE" in favor of Dhaka 

Bank Limited, Gulshan Circle-2 Branch with the registrar of the Mercantile Marine Department (MMD) 
duly insured under the bank mortgage clause;

 ii) Notarized IGPA empowering the bank to sale the assets of the Company's factors only against the 
bank created charge;

 iii) Personal guarantee of all directors of the Company;
 iv) Up-dated cheque covering facility along with letter of authorization to insert date; and
 v) Standard charge documents.

 Nature of facility : Term loan.
 Loan limit :  Taka 50 million only;  
 Purpose :  To procure factory vehicles like pay-loader, dump truck etc. equipments and those 

vehicles will not be registered through BRTA;
 Tenure        :  For a period of 5 years but the concerned term loan limit will have to be utilized 

within one year from the date of sanction in phase out manner or at a time;
 Repayment  :  Monthly installment basis to be started from the following month of respective 

disbursement. Installment size will be fixed up by us.

20.4 Dhaka Bank Limited

20.5 Pubali Bank Limited
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20.6 Prime Bank Limited

20.7 Dhaka Bank Limited

 Securities for the facilities are as follows:   
 i) One post dated cheque of Pubali Bank in favor of Pubali Bank Limited covering the limit plus 

estimated interest;  
 ii) Personal guarantee of Mr. Mohammad Jahangir Alam, Chairman of the Company; 
 iii) Personal guarantee of Mr. Alhaj Md. Khabir Uddin mollah, MD of the Company; and 
 iv) Other necessary charge documents. 

 Nature of facility : Hire Purchase (Revolving).
 Loan limit :  Taka 60 million only;
 Purpose :  To procure vehicles and machinery;
 Tenure :  Individual HP facility shall have validity not exceeding 3 (Three) years from the date 

of disbursement; 
 Repayment  : Each HP facility shall be adjusted by maximum 36 nos. equally monthly installments 

and will be started from the following month of disbursement. However, any 
excess or shortfall amount shall be adjusted with the last installment.

 Securities for the facilities are as follows:
 i) Registration/Ownership of the machinery under higer purchase along with insurance policy covering 

the risk of fire to be retained in the name of Prime Bank Limited, Motijeel Branch till full adjustment 
of the liability;

 ii) Joint ownership of the vehicles to be procured duly insured covering 1st party comprehensive 
insurance;

 iii) Post dated cheque for Taka 60 million;     
 iv) Other usual charge documents.
 

 Nature of facility : Hire Purchase (Revolving). 
 Loan limit : Taka 190 million only;
 Purpose :  To retire or settle import sight LC documents for import/locally procure cover van, 

truck and other vehicles (ownership will be in the name of Dhaka Bank Limited);
 Tenure        :  5 years including 6 months moratorium period;
 Repayment  :  Through 54 EMIs starting from 7th month from the date of disbursement from sales 

procceds or from own sources. 

 Securities for the facilities are as follows:
 i) 1st ranking Pari-Passu charge by way of hypothecation on the fixed and floating assets of the 

Company with other existing lenders;
 ii) Notarized IGPA empowering the bank to sale the assets of the Company's factors only against the 

bank created charge;
 iii) Collateral: nil;
 iv) Personal guarantee of all directors of the Company; 
 v) Undated cheque covering facility limit;
 vi) Standard charge documents.



 30.06.2019
 Taka 

 30.06.2020
 Taka 

Lease obligation
i) Lease liabilities recognized in statement of financial position

Lease obligation - non current portion
Lease obligation - current portion

ii) Amounts recognized in profit or loss

Interest on lease liabilities
Factory overhead
Administrative expenses

iii) Amounts recognized in statement of cash flows

Total cash-outflow for leases

Deferred tax liabilities

Balance as at 1 July 
Deferred tax expenses for the year (note - 22.1)
Deferred tax on revaluation surplus
Opening balance
Less: Transferred to retained earnings

Details of deferred tax calculation

Carrying
amount on

balance sheet 
date

Tax Base

(Taxable)/ 
deductible
temporary
difference

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Property, plant and equipments

Allowance for doubtful debt and impairment allowance
Temporary diferrence arise from business loss

6,927,514,375
-
-
-

51,060,108
289,642,806

340,702,914

11,948,786
40,776,954
26,350,452

-
-
-

79,076,192

40,767,572

(593,554,602)
(9,862,903)

(111,162,543)
7,004,783

(104,157,760)
                 (707,575,264)

4,193,624,915
198,049,350
43,929,927
78,240,165

-
-
-

-

-

(494,009,179)
(99,545,423)

(118,885,640)
7,723,097

(111,162,543)
              (704,717,145)

(2,733,889,460)
198,049,350
43,929,927
78,240,165

(2,413,670,017)

Provision for gratuity

Deferred tax liability has been recognized in accordance with the provision of IAS-12: "Income Taxes" based on 
temporary differences arising due to difference in the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities and their tax 
base and on the carried forward losses (unabsorbed depreciation). 

21.0

22.0

22.1
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Applicable tax rate
Deferred tax liability as on 30 June 2020
Deferred tax liability as on 30 June 2019
Deferred tax expenses for the year ended 30 June 2020

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Property, plant and equipment

Allowance for doubtful debt and impairment allowance

7,434,704,461
-
-

Applicable tax rate
Deferred tax liability as on 30 June 2019
Deferred tax liability as on 30 June 2018
Deferred tax expenses for the year ended 30 June 2019

4,853,961,703
162,593,244
41,931,108

25%
(603,417,504)
(593,554,602)

(9,862,903)

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

(2,580,742,759)
162,593,244
41,931,108

(2,376,218,407)
25%

(593,554,602)
(494,009,179)
(99,545,423)

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

Provision for gratuity

Carrying
amount on

balance sheet 
date

Tax Base

(Taxable)/ 
deductible
temporary
difference

Short term loan
Cash credit - hypothecation (note - 23.1)
Loan against trust receipts (note - 23.2)

Offshore loan (note - 23.4)
Security overdraft (note - 23.5)

Cash credit (hypothecation)
One Bank Limited
Prime Bank Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Eastern Bank Limited
Jamuna Bank Limited
Bank Alfalah Limited
Standard Chartered Bank
United Commercial Bank Limited
Dhaka Bank Limited
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited
Pubali Bank Limited
BRAC Bank Limited
Agrani Bank Limited
Commercial Bank of Ceylon, PLC
The City Bank Limited

1,448,885,002
42,038,536

4,334,014,981
2,895,795,889

73,098,306

8,793,832,714

8,848,140
9,807,408
7,724,067

17,226,037
7,588,511

36,582,673
4,808,533
1,772,528

19,910,904
4,829,680

27,681,244
11,393,301
11,806,161

1,243,952,257
3,232,407

31,721,150
1,448,885,002

1,737,426,933
59,974,554

2,408,645,563
3,279,530,893

182,470,928

7,668,048,872

5,892,452
327,000

30,553,836
21,903,398

126,402,179
860,119

-
11,141,979

-
82,537,171
40,507,143
13,033,122

-
1,355,519,402

48,749,132
-

1,737,426,933

Time loan (note - 23.3)

23

23.1

 30.06.2019
 Taka 

 30.06.2020
 Taka 
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-
4,390,005

33,318,417
4,330,114

42,038,536

583,305,561
852,126,995
637,263,167
86,795,481

161,747,667
389,383,244
320,000,000
32,386,118

358,677,083
887,274,188
25,055,478

4,334,014,981

932,029,350
-

250,835,552
-

478,388,419
443,765,772
214,601,115

-
409,955,958
32,518,860

133,700,864
2,895,795,889

-
29,576,333
43,516,050

5,923
73,098,306

42,210,294
17,764,260

-
-

59,974,554

18,458,000
73,588,618

833,936,447
293,828,898
200,000,000
728,833,601
170,000,000
90,000,000

-
-
-

2,408,645,563

559,152,688
1,209,907,950

-
54,346,279

812,656,855
154,416,793
56,071,206
38,375,508

249,841,052
144,762,563

-
3,279,530,893

53,560,739
29,095,543
99,814,646

-
182,470,928

23.2

23.3

23.4

23.5

 30.06.2019
 Taka 

 30.06.2020
 Taka 

Loan against trust receipts
One Bank Limited
Dhaka Bank Limited
BRAC Bank Limited
Commercial Bank of Ceylon, PLC

Prime Bank Limited
Eastern Bank Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Dhaka Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited
Standard Chartered Bank
Bank Alfalah Limited
BRAC Bank Limited
IDLC Finance Limited
The City Bank Limited
Commercial Bank of Ceylon, PLC

Offshore loan
Prime Bank Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited
One Bank Limited
Standard Chartered Bank
BRAC Bank Limited
Dhaka Bank Limited
Jamuna Bank Limited
City Bank Limited
United Commercial Bank Limited
Commercial Bank of Ceylon, PLC

Security overdraft
IPDC Finance Limited
Bank Alfalah Limited
Habib Bank Limited
Eastern Bank Limited

Time loan
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Limit of loan

                        300,000,000 

                           50,000,000 

                        300,000,000 

                        250,000,000 

                           50,000,000 
                        450,000,000 

Sl.
No. Type of loan

                         150,000,000 

                        750,000,000 

                    1,200,000,000 

                           26,000,000 

                            10,000,000 

                           50,000,000 
                           50,000,000 

                        550,000,000 

                         180,000,000 

                           60,000,000 

                   2,440,000,000 

                        400,000,000 

                         100,000,000 

                        280,000,000 

                     1,150,000,000 

                        600,000,000 

                         100,000,000 

                        600,000,000 

                        500,000,000 

                           50,000,000 

Purpose of loan

Working Capital

Working Capital

To issue guarantee for 
tender and utilities 

facilities
To issue guarantee for 

tender and utilities 
facilities

To issue guarantee for 
tender and utilities 

facilities

To issue guarantee for 
tender and utilities 

facilities

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Nature

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 One off 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

22

19

26

7

2

3

1

8

5

6

4

11

12

10

14

15

13

17

18

16

20

21

24

23

25

9

Name of the bank

Eastern Bank Limited

Jamuna Bank Limited

United Commercial
Bank Limited

Prime Bank Limited

One Bank Limited

One Bank Limited

One Bank Limited

Prime Bank Limited

One Bank Limited

Prime Bank Limited

One Bank Limited

Commercial Bank of Ceylon, PLC

Commercial Bank of Ceylon, PLC

Commercial Bank of Ceylon, PLC

The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited

Commercial Bank of Ceylon, PLC

Jamuna Bank Limited

Jamuna Bank Limited

Jamuna Bank Limited

Eastern Bank Limited

Eastern Bank Limited

Shahjalal Islami
Bank Limited

Shahjalal Islami
Bank Limited

United Commercial
Bank Limited

Prime Bank Limited

Secured Overdraft

Cash Credit
(Hypothecation)

Loan against
Trust Receipts

Revolving
Time Loan

Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Revolving Time loan

Cash credit
Hypothecation

Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Bank Guarantee

Bank Overdraft

Bank Guarantee

Overdraft- 2
Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Overdraft- 1

Bank Overdraft

Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Revolving Time Loan

Loan against
Trust Receipts

Time Loan

Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Overdraft

Bank Guarantee

Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Bank Guarantee

Tenure

One year

180 days

One year

120 days

120 days

120 days

One year

180 days

One year

One year

One year

180 days

One year

One year

180 days

180 days

120 days

120 days

180 days

180 days

One year

One year

One year

180 days

180 days

One year

23.6 The Company has been enjoying the following short term facilities from various
bank under the terms and conditions given below:
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Limit of loan

                           30,000,000 

                         100,000,000 

                           50,000,000 
                         100,000,000 
                           50,000,000 
                         100,000,000 

                         100,000,000 

                        300,000,000 

                         100,000,000 

                    1,800,000,000 

                           50,000,000 

                        500,000,000 
                           50,000,000 

                        350,000,000 

Sl.
No. Type of loan

                   2,000,000,000 

                    1,000,000,000 

                        450,000,000 

                        350,000,000 

                        250,000,000 

                         100,000,000 

                    1,400,000,000 

                    1,500,000,000 

                         100,000,000 

                         144,480,000 

                    1,500,000,000 

                        786,000,000 

                    1,000,000,000 

                         100,000,000 

Purpose of loan

To issue Guarantee for 
Tender and Utilities 

Facilities

To issue Guarantee for 
Tender and Utilities 

Facilities

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital
Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital
Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Working Capital

Nature

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 One off Limit 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving 

 Revolving                         200,000,000 

32

29

30

36

34

35

28

31

33

33
34

37

38

39
40

42

41

45

43

44

46

50

51

49

48

47

54

52

53

Name of the bank

Habib Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank

Bank Alfalah Limited

Dhaka Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

Dhaka Bank Limited

Standard Chartered
Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

Habib Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited

Dhaka BankLimited

Dhaka Bank Limited

Dhaka Bank Limited
Pubali Bank Limited

Agrani Bank Limited

Agrani Bank Limited

BRAC Bank Limited

Agrani Bank Limited

Agrani Bank Limited

BRAC Bank Limited

The City Bank Limited

Dutch Bangla Bank Limited

The City Bank Limited

The City Bank Limited

BRAC Bank Limited

IDLC Finance Limited

Dutch Bangla Bank Limited

Dutch Bangla Bank Limited

Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Overdraft
Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Overdraft

Secured Overdraft
Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Secured Overdraft

Overdraft

Overdraft
Secured Overdraft

Short Term Loan

Bank Guarantee

Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Overdraft

Post Import
Finance

Cash Credit
Hypothecation

Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Bank Guarantee

Overdraft

Overdraft

Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Short Term Loan

Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Letter of Credit
(non funded)

Short Term Loan

Cash Credit

Short Term Loan

Tenure

180 days

180 days

One year

One year

One year

One year

180 days

180 days

One year

One year

One year

150 days

180 days

One year

One year

One year

One year

180 days

180 days

One year

360 days

One year

One year

One year

180 days

180 days

One year

One year

120 days

                         100,000,000 Working Capital  Revolving 27
United Commercial
Bank Limited

Cash Credit
(Hypothecation) One year
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 30.06.2019
 Taka 

 30.06.2020
 Taka 

24.0 Trade and other payables
Trade payables (note - 24.1)
Other payables (note - 24.2)

24.1 Ageing of the above trade payables is as follows:
Payable due up to (1) one  month
Payable due above (1) one  month up to (3) three months
Payable due above (3) three  months up to (6) six months
Payable due above (6) six months

24.2 Other payables

24.3

24.4

25.0 Intercompany payables
Crown Cement Concrete and Building Products Limited
Crown Transportation and Logistic Limited

181,511,026
346,484,964
527,995,990

127,295,569
29,586,325
11,731,496
12,897,635

181,511,026

168,564,644
177,920,320
346,484,964

105,665,315
9,106,101

13,212,934
31,229,484
9,350,811

168,564,644

46,225,368
1,747,500

61,065,990
156,308

2,064,285
20,160,045
45,909,069

591,754
177,920,320

5,944,839
56,734,804

62,679,643

159,397,469
318,969,528
478,366,997

100,991,340
38,347,240
8,996,443

11,062,446
159,397,469

159,610,660
159,358,868
318,969,528

101,353,178
5,046,312

25,516,191
24,498,613
3,196,366

159,610,660

38,772,338
805,000

54,269,701
4,786

8,577,849
1,963,475

54,905,319
60,400

159,358,868

-
7,230,607

7,230,607

Others

Payable against advertisement expenses
Payable against revenue expenses
Payable against financial expenses

Utility bill

Salaries, wages and overtime payable

Employee tax payable
Advance against motor car and motor cycle

Creditor for revenue expenses

Creditor for other finance 

Audit and professional fees
Electricity bill

Creditors for other finance (note- 24.3)
Creditors for revenue expenses (note- 24.4)

VAT deduction at source
Tax deduction at source
Payable to employees provident fund

*Intercompany payables balance are "Zero" for the year ended 30 June 2020 and subsequently till 30 
September 2020.

*All the intercomapny transactions are purely for business purposes only and no material amount of 
intercompany loans have been exchanged.
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26.0 Provision for tax liabilities

Opening balance
Add: Provision made during the year (note - 26.1)

Less: Adjustments made during the year (note - 26.3)

26.1 Calculation of tax

Cash received from customers
Cash received from other operating income
Cash received from non operating income
Cash received from financial activities

Total Received
Tax @ 0.60% from total received

As per ITO-1984 section 30B (Company rate @ 25%)

26.2 Calculation of taxable business income

(Loss)/Profit before tax
Less: Profit from associates company

Less : Non business income
(to be considered separately under appropriate head)

Interest income 
Bank interrest
Non operating income
Income from mother vessels operation

Shown business loss

Add: Inadmissible expenses (under section - 29)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipments-for consideration as per 3rd schedule
Amortization on intangible assets
Provision for workers' profit participation fund
Provision for gratuity

722,216,731
94,370,185

816,586,916
707,887,563

108,699,353

13,541,320,928
221,913,983
48,089,694
99,273,701

13,910,598,306
83,463,590

10,906,596

94,370,185

(28,220,185)
17,114,045

(45,334,230)

110,913,521
11,948,786
48,095,439

164,378,250

335,335,996

(380,670,226)

752,721,208
5,082,748

-
44,534,662

802,338,618

421,668,392

637,499,865
84,716,866

722,216,731
-

722,216,731

13,620,913,776
188,116,500
46,432,118

264,015,289

14,119,477,683
84,716,866

-

84,716,866

435,412,444
24,187,271

411,225,173

213,753,067
-

50,684,644
163,507,500

427,945,211

(16,720,037)

658,419,827
5,082,748

20,561,259
31,349,919

715,413,752

698,693,715

 30.06.2019
 Taka 

 30.06.2020
 Taka 
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Less: Admissible expenses (for separate consideration)
Tax depreciation as per ITO rules (3rd Schedule) 878,870,936 1,056,043,028

(457,202,544) (357,349,313)
Add: Inadmissible expenses (under section - 30)

i) Entertainment (as per Rule -65)

16,487,524 21,273,305
ii)

- -

27,138,859 -
43,626,383 21,273,305

Assessed business loss (413,576,161) (336,076,008)
Add : Non business income 335,335,996 16,720,037
Total loss (78,240,165) (319,355,970)

iii)

 30.06.2019
 Taka 

 30.06.2020
 Taka 

As there no taxable profit before entertainment allowance, 
no entertainment will be allowed (Rule 65)

Expenses through cash  payment above Tk. 50,000 other 
than crossed cheque or bank transfer except [Sec. 30(m)]

Promotional Expenses with in allowable limit 0.50% of 
disclosed turnover

26.3 Adjustments made during the year
Provision for tax liabilities has been  adjusted against final assesment amount as per section 83 (2)/156/159 
under the Income Tax Ordinance, 1984.

The Company qualifies as a “Publicly Traded Company” as defined in income tax laws. The applicable tax rate 
for the Company is 25% and hence provision for taxation has been made on this basis which is in compliant 
with the Finance Act, 2019.

As per 82(C), sub section 2(ii) of the Income Tax Ordinance 1984,  tax deducted  under section 53 from import 
of raw materials by an industrial undertaking engaged in producing cement, iron or iron products shall be 
treated as minimum tax. 

To comply with the above mentioned rule we have to consider total income tax deducted in import stage 
during the year as our current income tax. But we have not considered this amount as our current tax as we 
have filed a writ petition numbering 7591/2020 and 7592/2020.

Financial
year

Assesment
year

 Adjusted
as at date 

Year of
adjustment

 Balance 

2006-2007 2007-2008
2007-2008 2008-2009
2008-2009 2009-2010
2009-2010 2010-2011
2010-2011 2011-2012
2011-2012 2012-2013
2012-2013 2013-2014
2013-2014 2014-2015
2014-2015 2015-2016
2015-2016 2016-2017
2016-2017 2017-2018

2011-2012
2012-2013
2012-2013
2012-2013
2012-2013
2014-2015
2014-2015

-
-
-
-

25,838,661
56,117,467
95,390,047

179,703,497
226,650,449
121,820,733
124,007,810

-
-
-
-

829,528,664

-
(7,830,145)

2,870,437
5,084,390
6,268,754

-
-

164,522,612
159,537,293
214,942,520
162,491,702

707,887,563

Final assessment
amount by DCT

25,838,661
48,287,322
98,260,484

184,787,887
232,919,203
121,820,733
124,007,810
164,522,612
159,537,293
214,942,520
162,491,702

1,537,416,227
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 30.06.2019
 Taka 

 30.06.2020
 Taka 

27.0 Provision for  workers' profit participation fund (WPPF):

Opening balance
Less: Payments made during the year
Add: Provision made during the year

20,561,259
20,561,259

-

-

20,511,243
20,511,243
20,561,259

20,561,259

2018-2019
 Taka 

2019-2020
 Taka 

In the year 2019-2020 revenue of the Company has been decreased by 5.14% amounting to Taka 752,221,161 
as compared to the year 2018-2019. Domestic sales decreased by 5.63%  amounting to Taka 796,283,640. On 
the contrary, the export sales increased by 9.13 %  amounting to Taka 44,062,479 during the year comparing 
to the previous year.

During the year, we have contributed to national exchequer amounting to Taka 2,002,453,656 as 
Value Added Tax (VAT).

28.0 Revenue
Domestic sales (note - 28.1)
Export sales (note - 28.2)

28.1 Domestic sales net of VAT 
Cement sales
Domestic sales
Domestic sales net of VAT 

13,349,691,043
526,520,387

13,876,211,430

             13,349,691,043 
             13,349,691,043 
             13,349,691,043 

14,145,974,683
482,457,908

14,628,432,591

14,145,974,683
             14,145,974,683 
             14,145,974,683 

2020
USD

2019
USD

2020
Taka

2019
Taka28.2 Export sales

28.3 Quantity wise sales UOM

                  2,295,776                       2,411,152              13,876,211,430              14,628,432,591 

2020
Quantity

2019
Quantity 28.4 Category wise quantity sold UOM

Bulk cement MT 317,911 469,349
                      2,295,776                       2,411,153 

Cement sales 6,207,763 5,709,561 526,520,387 482,457,908

Domestic sales MT 2,214,829 2,327,007 13,349,691,043 14,145,974,683
Export sales MT 80,948 84,145 526,520,387 482,457,908

2020
Quantity 

2019
Quantity

2020
Taka

2019
Taka

Bag cement MT 1,977,865 1,941,804



M. I. CEMENT FACTORY LTD. I ANNUAL REPORT I 2019-20 149

NOTES

29.0 Cost of sales
949,720,281 749,748,391

10,939,263,794 11,220,182,758
(1,150,240,988) (949,720,281)

10,738,743,086 11,020,210,868
1,813,078,298 1,719,094,036

12,551,821,385 12,739,304,903
2,445 1,994

12,551,823,830 12,739,306,897
(57,706,027) (2,445)

12,494,117,802 12,739,304,453
(39,756,993) (40,695,838)

12,454,360,809 12,698,608,615

Add: Purchased during the year

Clinker MT 7,437,941,275 7,372,572,935
Gypsum MT 216,714,887 194,736,234
Slag MT 1,570,419,058 1,892,589,336
Fly ash MT 589,165,065 578,642,817
Lime stone MT 445,253,384 480,170,468
Cement grinding aid MT - -
Izonil MT - 25,359,198
Bulk cement MT 1,418,361 16,480,410
Bags PCS

1,388,597
68,500

513,670
224,124
185,948

-
-
243

40,013,223

1,463,511
70,590

604,801
239,343
188,079

-
174

2,850
39,403,340 678,351,764 659,631,359

10,939,263,794 11,220,182,758

Less: Duty draw back for export

Opening stock of raw materials
Add: Purchase of raw materials during the year

Cost of sales

Cost of goods available for sale
Less: Closing finished goods

Factory overhead (note - 30)

Less: Closing stock of raw materials
Raw material consumed (note - 29.1)

Cost of production
Add: Opening finished goods

2018-2019
 Taka 

2019-2020
 Taka 

29.1 Raw material consumed UOM

Opening stock of raw materials

Clinker MT 96,619,498 119,812,765
Gypsum MT 16,822,850 102,945,781
Slag MT 336,252,543 277,889,819
Fly ash MT 105,419,915 40,800,288
Lime stone MT 295,177,029 104,284,693
Cement grinding aid MT 84,271,644 84,271,644
Izonil MT 10,644,502 18,653,210
Bulk cement purchase MT - -
Bags PCS 4,512,300 1,090,191

949,720,281 749,748,391

19,204
6,061

108,166
43,918

116,723
877
110

-
269,544

25,683
36,663
93,398
18,716
43,035

877
282

-
67,910

2020
Taka

2019
Taka

2020
Quantity

2019
Quantity
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As per nature of the Company's manufacturing process and packing system, the scope of  having packed 
finished cement in the stock is limited. Cement is only packed at the time of delivery by trucks i.e. the cement 
is packed in the bag when trucks arrive at the factory for taking delivery. 

29.2

Less: Closing stock of raw materials

Clinker MT 96,619,498
Gypsum MT 16,822,850
Slag MT 336,252,543
Fly ash MT 105,419,915
Lime stone MT 295,177,029
Cement grinding aid MT 84,271,644
Izonil MT 10,644,502
Bags PCS 4,512,300

949,720,281
Raw material consumed 

Clinker MT 7,395,766,202
Gypsum MT 280,859,166
Slag MT 1,834,226,611
Fly ash MT 514,023,190
Lime stone MT 289,278,132
Izonil MT 33,367,906
Bulk cement MT 16,480,410
Bags PCS

115,474
26,056
91,923
4,589

25,343
877
90

115,374

1,292,328
48,506

529,913
263,452
277,328

21
243

40,167,393

19,204
6,061

108,166
43,918

116,723
877
110

269,544

1,469,990
101,192
590,034
214,141
114,390

345
2,850

39,201,706 656,209,250
11,020,210,868

618,016,133
81,610,354

281,852,687
11,892,454
61,996,887
84,271,644
8,645,036
1,955,793

1,150,240,988

6,916,544,640
151,927,382

1,624,818,914
682,692,526
678,433,527

1,999,466
1,418,361

680,908,271
10,738,743,086

UOM 2020
Quantity

2019
Quantity

Particulars in respect of opening stock, sales and closing stock of finished goods

Quantity (MT) Taka Quantity (MT) Taka

0.40 2,445 10,620.40 57,706,027
0.40 1,994 0.40 2,4452018-2019

ClosingOpeningYear  

2019-2020

2019
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 

29.3 Finished goods movement in Taka and quantities

Opening stock - 2,445 1,994

Add: Production/Outsource during the period 2,306,260 12,551,821,385 12,739,304,903
Goods available for sale 2,306,260 12,551,823,830 12,739,306,897
Less: Cost of goods sold 2,295,640 12,494,117,802 12,739,304,453

10,620 57,706,027 2,445

-
2,411,152
2,411,153
2,411,152

-

As per Company's policy any cement remaining undelivered in the stock is considered as finished product. The 
above amount represents the cost of 10,620 MT of cement that remained undelivered on 30 June 2020.
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Break up of raw materials purchase as per requirement of Para 8, Schedule
XI, Part II of the Companies Act, 1994

29.4

1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020

Import Local Total In Taka
% of
 Tota

purchase

Clinker
Gypsum 
Slag
Fly ash 
Lime stone
Izonil
Bulk cement
Bags

MT
MT
MT
MT
MT
MT
MT
PCS

7,437,941,275
216,714,887

1,570,419,058
589,165,065
445,253,384

-
-
-

10,259,493,669

-
-
-
-
-
-

1,418,361
678,351,764

679,770,125

7,437,941,275
216,714,887

1,570,419,058
589,165,065
445,253,384

-
1,418,361

678,351,764
10,939,263,794

6,916,544,640
151,927,382

1,624,818,914
682,692,526
678,433,527

1,999,466
1,418,361

680,908,271
10,738,743,086

93%
70%

103%
116%
152%
-

100%
100%
98%

Items
Consumption Purchase in Taka

UOM

1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019

Clinker MT 7,372,572,935 - 7,372,572,935 7,395,766,202 101%
Gypsum MT 194,736,234 - 194,736,234 280,859,166 133%
Slag MT 1,892,589,336 - 1,892,589,336 1,834,226,611 95%
Fly ash MT 578,642,817 - 578,642,817 514,023,190 100%
Lime stone MT 480,170,468 - 480,170,468 289,278,132 49%
Izonil MT 25,359,198 - 25,359,198 33,367,906 131%
Bulk cement MT - 16,480,410 16,480,410 16,480,410 100%
Bags PCS - 659,631,359 659,631,359 656,209,250 100%

10,544,070,989 676,111,769 11,220,182,758 11,020,210,868 98%

Import Local Total In Taka
% of
 Tota

purchase

Items
Consumption Purchase in Taka

UOM

The value of imported raw material is calculated on CIF basis.
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30.0 Factory overhead
Wages, salaries and allowances 162,587,977 167,659,134
Bedding and uniform 79,516 1,831,757
BIWTA expense 7,265,209 9,866,429
Computer accessories 338,655 92,461
Contribution to provident fund 5,916,566 5,671,874
Conveyance 97,436 199,352
Depreciation 678,253,386 541,148,771
Directors' remuneration 7,373,879 7,467,240
Donation and subscription 21,460 16,000
Electricity and power 824,117,556 837,073,486
Entertainment 3,173,682 4,794,338
Festival bonus 16,488,553 17,003,641
Fuel for motor vehicle and motor cycle 2,120,010 2,986,057
Gratuity 16,718,167 17,468,332
Insurance premium 3,945,593 4,050,414
Group insurance premium 772,332 846,631
Labour charges 7,666,838 15,753,012
Leave encashment 2,208,011 2,193,416
Lubricants, diesel oil, gear oil and fuel etc. 16,928,635 17,280,534
Medical expenses 129,273 122,461
Gift and presentation 4,020,123 5,684,600
Mobile phone bill 727,156 923,728
Office maintenance 1,134,747 1,015,784
Rent and rates 5,250,934 6,159,950
Overtime 3,601,075 7,310,456
Printing, stationeries, schedule and forms 703,573 1,300,194
Quality testing expenses 326,852 616,268
Registration, license and renewals 1,841,825 1,130,125
Repair and maintenance, vehicle and motor cycle 1,827,972 1,613,756
Spare parts and store expenses 36,735,146 37,543,630
Telephone/ fax expenses - 1,764
Training and education 12,749 290,117
Travelling expenses 313,412 1,334,124
Professional fees 380,000 644,200

1,813,078,298 1,719,094,036

31.0 Other operating income
164,378,250 163,507,500

164,378,250 163,507,500
Income from mother vessel operation

2018-2019
 Taka 

2019-2020
 Taka 
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32.0 Administrative expenses
Salaries and allowances 112,998,122 140,940,987
Advertisement and publicity 778,193 1,003,811
Annual general meeting expenses 915,888 1,035,116
Annual picnic 557,621 -
Audit fees 747,500 682,500
Professional fees 1,727,263 5,631,602
Amortization of intangible asset 5,082,748 5,082,748
Bedding and uniform 167,936 217,344
Board meeting attendance fees 1,005,000 1,354,445
Computer accessories 74,026 215,183
Contribution to provident fund 3,984,614 4,612,987
Conveyance 1,165,931 1,220,941
Corporate social responsibility (CSR) 248,000 564,087
Depreciation 63,276,387 35,351,950
Directors' remuneration (note - 32.1) - 6,800,000
Donation and subscription 615,000 540,000
DSE/ CSE/ CDBL expenses 1,300,000 1,300,000
Entertainment 2,131,059 6,450,734
Festival Bonus 12,135,188 13,073,833
Fuel for motor vehicle and motor cycle 3,443,076 2,831,155
Gratuity 9,003,118 11,323,346
Insurance premium 143,434 21,489
Group insurance premium 261,952 366,278
Internet 1,129,576 1,247,066
Labour charges - 670
Leave encashment 1,614,462 2,199,693
Gift and presentation 638,199 1,577,534
Mobile phone bill 1,283,064 1,744,362
Office maintenance 3,968,272 3,840,677
Rent and rates 8,374,384 35,765,783
Overtime 209,014 310,157
Printing, stationeries, schedule and forms 1,850,231 3,097,744
Registration, license and renewals 1,776,274 1,426,567
Repair and maintenance, vehicle 2,249,880 3,791,452
Bad debt expense - 2,000,000
Software maintenance fees 3,414,665 4,905,552
Telephone/ fax expenses 32,543 60,445
Training and education 117,736 1,238,807
Travelling expenses 1,088,249 2,808,870
Utility expenses 2,529,772 3,400,828

252,038,375 310,036,744

2018-2019
 Taka 

2019-2020
 Taka 
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32.1
33.0 Selling and distribution expenses

179,916,677 177,282,743
82,709,610 151,305,260

57,788 94,587
651,426 -
641,905 305,564

1,699,896 1,615,434
2,498,600 2,588,350

167,326 168,790
6,500,637 5,848,433

11,512,787 17,177,588
5,110,465 2,645,960
9,835,650 10,333,525

78,318,841 81,919,106
7,373,879 7,467,240

90,000 446,630
11,182,783 10,028,234

- 30,600
17,963,477 17,216,176
7,924,197 6,614,151

18,813,377 18,412,786
696,011 642,728

4,361,826 10,049,620
370,211 1,441,113

39,571,260 37,810,781
2,685,061 2,399,585

31,055 984
6,028,991 6,773,880
3,344,075 3,318,020
6,250,615 1,739,774
4,592,308 4,135,101

400,176 503,246
3,110,578 2,682,163
3,873,410 4,519,285

606,369 2,636,389
9,004,847 6,660,249
2,005,212 1,463,723
1,195,370 46,000
3,512,004 7,557,540

534,608,700 605,881,338

Entertainment
Donation and subscription

Outstation allowance/ house rent/ TA-DA
Overtime

Medical expenses

Group insurance premium

Quality testing expenses
Registration, license and renewals

Printing stationeries, schedule and forms
Promotional expenses

Office maintenance

Repair and maintenance, vehicle and motor cycle

Rent and rates

Fuel for motor vehicle and motor cycle

Leave encashment

Travelling expenses 
Training and education

Insurance premium
Labour charges

Gift and presentation

Advertisement and publicity
Audit and professional/ consultancy/ legal fees

Salaries and allowances

C&F expenses for export

Corporate social responsibility (CSR)
Carriage expense

Conveyance

Annual picnic

Gratuity

Directors' remuneration

Mobile phone bill

BIS expense

Computer accessories
Contribution to provident fund

Festival bonus

Depreciation

Fair and exhibition

BSTI fees

Chairman and Director have decided not to take any remuneration during the year. 

2018-2019
 Taka 

2019-2020
 Taka 

Selling and distribution expenses have decreased by Taka 7.12 Crore (11.76% decrease) mainly due to decrease 
expense in the last four months of the financial year with the onset of Covid-19 pandemic.
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34.0 Non operating income and expenses
Non operating income (note - 34.1) 48,095,439 50,684,644
Non operating expenses (note - 34.2) (11,517,336) (5,861,001)

36,578,103 44,823,643

34.1 Non operating income
10,492,933 9,719,086
37,495,074 39,047,909

107,432 1,917,649
48,095,439 50,684,644

34.2 Non operating expenses
Realized loss on sale of share (5,746) (22,991)
Unrealized loss on investment on share (10,224,119) (1,585,484)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipments (1,287,471) (4,252,526)

(11,517,336) (5,861,001)

35.0 Financial cost and income

35.1 Finance cost
Net foreign exchange loss (44,618,078) (51,383,148)
Bank charge and commission (12,049,018) (27,616,139)
Bank interest (935,740,554) (925,204,385)

(992,407,650) (1,004,203,672)

35.2 Finance income
Interest income from FDRs and others 110,913,521 213,753,067

110,913,521 213,753,067

36.0 Income tax
Major components of tax expenses

Current tax expenses (note - 26) 94,370,185 84,716,866
Deferred tax expenses (note - 22) 9,862,903 99,545,423

104,233,088 184,262,289

Other income
Dividend on share

Sales of scrap

Finance cost has increased by  Taka 7.97 Crore Interest income has dropped by Taka 10.08 Crore mainly due to 
FDR encashment and reduction in deposit rates in the last quarter.

In compliance with the requirements of para -79 of IAS-12 : Income tax, the major components of tax expenses 
are given below:

2018-2019
 Taka 

2019-2020
 Taka 

36.1 Current Tax Expenses
Current Tax expenses has been computed in accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 by considering 
applicable rate for the Income year 2019-2020.
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36.2 Deferred Tax Expenses

37.0 Share of profit from associates
                             941,201 8,162,729
                        10,956,614 16,024,542

Crown Cement Concrete and Building Products Limited (CCCBPL)                          5,216,230                                       -   
17,114,045 24,187,271

Crown Power Generation Limited (CPGL)
Crown Mariners Limited (CML)

The tax effects of temporary differences arise from tax base and accounting base of relevant assets and 
liabilities. Tax base amount has been taken from the Assessment order of Income year 2016-2017 issued by the 
Deputy Commissioner of Taxes.

Share of profit or loss from investment in associates are not considered in computation of current tax expense 
since, these are separate entities having separate Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) and being taxed 
separately. Income from investment in associates will be taken into account upon receipt of the dividend from 
respective entities.

No diluted earnings per share is required to be calculated for the year as there was no convertible secutities for 
diliuting during the year.

Calculation of weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period from 1 July 2019 
to 30 June 2020 is given below:

38.0 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share :
Earning attributable to ordinary shareholders 251,150,155
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (note - 38.1) 148,500,000

1.69

38.1

148,500,000 365 days 148,500,000
148,500,000 148,500,000

39.0 Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
Net assets (total assets - total liabilities) 7,160,477,708
Number of ordinary shares 148,500,000
NAV per share 48.22

Ordinary shares

(132,453,273)
148,500,000

(0.89)

148,500,000
148,500,000

6,887,115,713
148,500,000

46.38

2020 2019
Days of

shareholding
No. of shares outstandingNumber of

shares 
Nature of

shareholdings

2018-2019
 Taka 

2019-2020
 Taka 
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40.0 Cash flows from operating activities under indirect method

Reconciliation of net operating Cash flows 

Net profit before tax (28,220,185) 435,412,444
Add:  Items not involving movement of cash
Depreciation on property, plant and equipments 752,721,208 658,419,827
Depreciation on property, plant and equipments 67,127,406 -
Amortization on intangible assets 5,082,748 5,082,748
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipments 1,287,471 4,252,526
Finance cost 992,407,650 1,004,203,672
Interest income (110,913,521) (213,753,067)
Loss on sale of share 10,224,119 1,585,484
Income from associate company (17,114,045) (24,187,271)
Provision for WPPF - 20,561,259
Provision for Gratuity 44,534,662 47,204,464

1,745,357,699 1,503,369,642
Cash generated from operations before changes in working capital 1,717,137,514 1,938,782,086
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) in inventories (470,189,535) (245,085,524)
(Increase) in trade receivables (334,890,502) (1,007,518,816)
Decrease in other receivables 17,778,739 9,490,775
Decrease in advances, deposits and prepayments 10,548,950 229,292,404
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 22,113,557 (33,901,029)
Increase in  other payables 18,519,186 79,942,285

(736,119,605) (967,779,904)
981,017,910 971,002,182

Tax paid (403,220,632) (667,837,443)
WPPF paid (20,561,259) (20,461,227)
Gratuity paid (9,078,555) (15,854,545)

(432,860,446) (704,153,215)
Net cash inflows from operating activities 548,157,464 266,848,967

41.0 Commitments and Contingent liabilities
Commitments (note - 41.1) 1,989,512,273 2,902,524,968
Contingent liabilities (note - 41.3) 146,491,259 215,552,585

2,136,003,532 3,118,077,553

41.1 Commitments
Outstanding letters of credit (note - 41.2) 800,758,390 1,036,986,930
Capital expenditure commitments 1,188,753,883 1,865,538,038

1,989,512,273 2,902,524,968

Cash generated from operationg activities

2018-2019
 Taka 

2019-2020
 Taka 
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41.2 Outstanding letters of credit
- 21,146,125
- 572,963,319

20,961,413 63,855,307
9,939,150 73,610,771

115,124,240 48,370,420
130,683,852 -
19,203,084 -

213,455,495 -
6,583,625 38,379,916

190,288,000 198,575,000
94,519,532 20,086,072

800,758,390 1,036,986,930

41.3 Contingent liabilities:

42.0 Financial risk management

(i) Bank guarantee:

1,533,106 27,533,106
42,540,716 47,062,016
3,133,318 7,633,318

33,464,088 -
80,671,228 82,228,440

(ii) Tax and VAT claim:

65,820,031 133,324,145
146,491,259 215,552,585

                  65,820,031 

Prime Bank Limited
Standard Chartered Bank
City Bank Limited
Commercial Bank of Ceylon, PLC
BRAC Bank Limited
Dhaka Bank Limited

Jamuna Bank Limited
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited

Prime Bank Limited
Dhaka Bank Limited

Eastern Bank Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
One Bank Limited

One Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

                  65,820,031 

                  67,504,114                                  -   

i) Claim of VAT Authority for declared wastage percentage 
relating to the different financial years against which various 
writ petitions have been filed by the Company before the 
Hon'ble High Court Dhaka.

ii) Excess claim of tax authority regarding interest and tax 
liability over income tax liability provided for by the company 
as per the return submitted for the respective years which 
remains sub Judicial up to reporting date.

All tax assesement has been finalized from the financial year 2006-2007 to 2016-2017. For that reason excess 
claim of tax authority regarding interest and tax liability has been resolved.

(a) Credit risk         
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument would cause a financial loss for the other party by 
failing to discharge an obligation. It mainly comprises of receivables from customer, trade  and investment 
securities. To alleviate the credit risk against trade receivable the Company has a policy to obtain security 
instruments from customers.

2018-2019
 Taka 

2019-2020
 Taka 
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(b) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company might encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with 
its financial liabilities that have to be settled by delivering cash or another financial assets or liabilities. The 
Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquid assets to meet 
its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or 
risking damage to Company's reputations.

(c) Market risk         

Market risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters while optimizing the return. Market risk comprises three types of risks: 
Currency risk, Interest rate risk and Commodity risk.     

i) Foreign currency risk        

The risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument might fluctuate because of changes in 
foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to currency risk on its certain short and long term debts and 
purchases that are denominated in foreign currencies.      

Exposure to currency risk of the Company at reporting date are as follows:

 From 6 to
12 months

(Taka) 

More than
one year and

less than
5 years (Taka) 

Trade payables (note - 24) 181,511,026 -
Other payables (note - 24.2) 346,484,964 -
Provision for tax liabilities (note - 26) 108,699,353 -
Current account with sister concerns (note - 25) 62,679,643 -
Payable to IPO applicants - 12,836,987
Unclaimed dividend 814,331 12,022,656
Bank overdraft (note - 23) 1,448,885,002 -
Short term loan (note - 23) 7,344,947,712 -
Long term borrowing (note - 20.1 : current portion and note - 20) 598,179,855 821,295,223

10,092,201,886 846,154,866As at 30 June 2020

Particulars

Balance at 30 June 2020

Particulars USD BDT

 3,305,126 
 58,874 
 19,919 

 655 
 16,474 

 -   
 3,964,125 
 1,209,779 

 32,887,346 

 280,770,460 
 5,001,358 
 1,692,099 

 55,675 
 1,399,464 

 -   
 336,752,419 
 102,770,753 

 2,792,443,884 

Assets
Prime Bank Limited (ERQ)
The State Bank of India (ERQ)
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (ERQ)
Standard Chartered Bank
BRAC Bank Limited
Liability
Term Loan- The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Term Loan- Standard Chartered Bank
Term Loan- Prime Bank Limited
Short Term Loan (note- 24)
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EURO BDT

 Balance at 30 June 2020

Commitment & contingencies
 808,223 
 63,693 

 78,211,740 
 6,163,599 

BRAC Bank Limited
Commercial Bank of Ceylon, PLC

Particulars

EURO BDT

Balance at 30 June 2020

 1,068,017  103,352,005 Short Term Loan (note - 23)

Particulars

GBP BDT

 Balance at 30 June 2020

1,024 109,467
Assets
BRAC Bank Limited

Particulars

EURO BDT

 Balance at 30 June 2020

 247  23,935 
Assets
BRAC Bank Limited

Particulars

USD BDT

 Balance at 30 June 2020

Commitment & contingencies
One Bank Limited
Standard Chartered Bank
Prime Bank Limited
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited
Dhaka Bank Limited
Jamuna Bank Limited
Commercial Bank of Ceylon
City Bank Limited
BRAC Bank Limited

 246,750 
 1,355,200 

 117,000 
 2,240,000 

 77,500 
 1,112,649 

 153,496 
 1,538,362 
 1,592,040 

  20,961,413 
 115,124,240 

 9,939,150 
 190,288,000 

 6,583,625 
 94,519,532 
 13,039,485 

 130,683,852 
 135,243,756 

Particulars

GBPCurrency BDT

 Balance at 30 June 2020

Commitment & contingencies
 84.95 
 96.77 

 106.92 

Conversion rate USD 1
1
1

Conversion rate EURO
Conversion rate GBP

Particulars
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ii) Interest rate risk        

Interest rate risk arises from the fluctuation of interest rate assigned with certain financial asset or liabilities. 
Exposure to interest risk of the Company at the reporting dates is only related with outstanding offshore 
loan/commitment having LIBOR plus interest rate.   

iii) Commodity risk

Commodity risk arises from fluctuation of value of commodity in terms of price, quantity, cost and political 
condition of the market from or to which the Company procure or sell product respectively. Exposure to 
commodity risk of the Company at the reporting date may not be significant.

During the year, the Company carried out a number of transactions with related parties  within the normal 
course of business. The name of the related parties and nature of these transactions have been set out in 
accordance with the provisions of IAS-24 : Related party disclosure.      
      

43.0 Related parties transactions

Name of parties Nature of  transactions  
 Transactions value (Taka)

Cash dividend, board meeting
attendance fees & remuneration
Cash  dividend,  board  meeting
attendance fees & remuneration

Cash  dividend,  board  meeting
attendance fees & remuneration

Cash  dividend,  board  meeting
attendance fees & remuneration

Cash  dividend,  board  meeting
attendance fees & remuneration

Cash  dividend,  board  meeting
attendance fees & remuneration

Cash dividend 

Cash dividend 

Cash dividend 

Individual:

Mohammed Jahangir Alam

Late Alhaj Md. Khabir Uddin Mollah
(Died on 25 May 2019)

Md. Alamgir Kabir

Molla Mohammad Majnu

Md. Mizanur Rahman Mollah

Md. Almas Shimul

Alhaj Md. Abdur Rouf

Md. Asrafuzzaman

Md. Abdul Ahad

 23,189,925 

 - 

 21,935,954

 31,360,754 

 24,023,538 

 7,441,500

 2,598,750 

 2,598,750 

 2,079,000 

2020 2019
Relationship

Chairman

Former Managing
Director

Vice Chairman

Managing
Director
Additional
Managing
Director

Director 

Shareholder
of the entity
Shareholder
of the entity
Shareholder
of the entity

                  38,296,593 

                  26,086,337 

                  38,671,519 

                  29,519,424 

                    3,898,125 

                  18,547,287 

                  11,232,453 

                    3,118,500 

                    3,898,125 

For providing related service

For providing related service

For providing related service

For providing related service

For providing related service

For MS rod purchased

Crown Power Generation Ltd.

Crown Polymer Bagging Ltd.

Crown Mariners Ltd.

Crown Cement Concrete and
Building Products Ltd.

Crown Transportation and
Logistics Ltd.

GPH Ispat Limited

Institution:

Associate
Company
Associate
Company
Associate
Company
Associate
Company

Associate
Company
Common
Directors

63,250,587

733,936,242

736,729,088

820,549,773

9,835,650

49,173,000

65,733,767

1,090,113,815

988,179,196

1,062,961,618

10,333,525

56,510,890

Name of parties Nature of  transactions  
 Transactions value (Taka)

2020 2019
Relationship
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2018-2019
Number

2019-2020
Number

44.0 Number of employees engaged for drawing remuneration
Disclosure as per requirement of schedule XI Part II of Para 3 is as follows:
(a)  Above Taka 3,000 per month 1,382
(b)  Below Taka 3,000 per month -

1,382

1,245
-
1,245

2018-2019
 Taka 

2019-2020
 Taka 

47.0

47.1

Events after the reporting period

46.0 Number of Board Meetings held during the year 2020 and 2019

2020 2019 2020 2019

Date of meeting  No. of directors attended 

3rd Quarter

4th Quarter

2nd Quarter

1st Quarter

Quarter 

5
5
6
6
6
7
7

6

7

7
7
7
7
8

8

6
8
7
6
5
5

6-Jul-19
26-Aug-19

7-Sep-19
1-Oct-19

27-Oct-19
12-Nov-19
19-Dec-19

28-Jan-20

20-Jun-20

19-Aug-18
9-Sep-18

22-Sep-18
20-Oct-18
12-Nov-18

6-Dec-18

17-Jan-19
28-Jan-19
17-Feb-19
7-Mar-19

30-Apr-19
20-Jun-19

During the year the Company paid as salaries, wages and benefits (note-30, 32 & 33) 485,882,864
Directors emolument
Salary and benefits 21,734,480

45.0 Capacity and production
Installed capacity in metric tons (300 days basis) 3,324,000
Actual production in metric tons-during the year 2,408,302
% of capacity utilization

455,502,776

14,747,758

3,324,000
2,306,260

69.38% 72.45%

Approved cancellation of the transfer of the 3 (three) mother vessels of M. I. Cement Factory Limited (MICFL) 
to the 3 (three) separate fully owned subsidiary companies, which was decided in MICFL's board meeting held 
on 8 October 2020. The approval process of the transfer of the mother vessels requires approval of various 
overseas offices. With the outbreak of world wide Covid-19 pandemic, all the international offices stopped 
working, with the result that the transfer formalities could not be completed. Also, it now appears that the 
transfer will subject the Companies to unforeseen onerous tax burden, both internationally and nationally 
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that does not justify the earlier benefit envisaged for transferring the mother vessels. Therefore, the 3 (three) 
mother vessels will remain the asset of MICFL. This will be approved in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) on 
29 December 2020. In this regard, the 3 (three) subsidiary companies which were formed to transfer the mother 
vessels will be wound up.

Approved postponement of setting up of the 6th Unit of the M. I. Cement Factory Limited (MICFL) board meeting 
held on 8 October 2020. Both the technical and commercial negotiations with the international contractors got 
suspended with the outbreak of Covid-19 as well as the financing arrangement. With the outbreak of Covid-19, 
cement industry has seen a sharp decline in demand with the entire industry operating at substantially lower 
capacity levels. The demand is expected to remain tepid in the next two to three years until the economy makes 
a rebound. The Board is therefore of the opinion that the existing capacity will be able to fulfill the cement 
demand over this period. As such the decision for this unit can be considered at a later stage.

47.2

Board of directors approved taking on lease of the entire business operations of Crown Polymer Bagging 
Limited by M. I. Cement Factory Limited by which M. I. Cement Factory Limited will be able to increase 
efficiencey and reduce raw materials cost and cost of goods sold.

47.3

Late Alhaj Md. Khabir Uddin Mollah, the former Managing Director of M. I. Cement Factory Limited died on 25 
May 2019. The succession certificate has been issued by the honorable Court on 1 October 2020, which we 
received after the year ended 30 June 2020.

47.4

Fine of Taka 10 (Ten) Lac has been imposed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) to 
each of the five Directors personally vide its letter dated 2 July 2020 that was received by the Company on              
9 July 2020, on the ground that the advance given to the associate companies violates the BSEC guidelines. 
These Companies have been formed with the express purpose of backward and forward linkage to the mother 
Company, MICFL. The Company has filed an appeal to BSEC on 15 July 2020 to waive the fines. We did not 
receive any reply against our waiver application from BSEC.

47.5

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 14 November 2020 have recommended cash dividend 10% i.e. 
Taka 1.00 (One) per share of Taka 10 (Ten) each aggregating to Taka 148,500,000 for the year ended 30 June 
2020 subject to approval of the shareholders' in the Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 29 
December 2020. The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 do not include the effect of the cash 
dividend which will be accounted for in the period when shareholders' right to receive payment is established.

There are no other events identified after the reporting date which require adjustments or disclosure in these 
accompanying financial statements.

47.6

Late in 2019, news first emerged from China about the Covid-19 (Coronavirus). The situation at year end was 
that a limited number of cases of an unknown virus had been reported to the World Health Organization (WHO). 
On 11 March 2020, World Health Organization (WHO) declared a global pandemic due to Covid-19, the 
Government of the Peoples Republic of Bangladesh declared general holiday (lock down to minimize spread of 
virus) on 25 March 2020 and continued till 30 May 2020. In the first few months of 2020, the virus spread 
globally. Containment of this virus is vital for business contunity as well as economy in general. At this juncture, 
management is unable to reliably estimate the financial impact on the Company's results for the financial period. 
The Company will continue to monitor the situation, take appropriate and timely actions to minimize any 
adverse financial impact arising from this situation.

48.0 Implications of Covid-19 on the Company

Md. Alamgir Kabir
Director

Molla Mohammad Majnu
Managing Director

Md. Abdul Kayum, FCMA
Chief Financial Officer (CC)

Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS
Sr. GM & Company Secretary
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M. I. CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED
Registered Office: West Mukterpur, Munshiganj

Head Office: Delta Life Tower (3rd & 6th floor), Plot No. 37
Road No. 45 (South) & 90 (North), Gulshan- 2, Dhaka- 1212.

Signature Verified

Authorized Signature
M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. 

Note: The proxy form duly completed must be sent through e-mail at cs@crowncement.com not later than 48 hours before 
the time fixed for the meeting, otherwise the proxy form will not be accepted.

PROXY FORM

Revenue
Stamp of
Tk. 20.00(Signature of the Proxy) 

BO Account No.
(Signature of the Shareholder)

Shareholders BO A/C No. No. of Shares held

I/We …………………………………………………………………………..............................................................................................................................…...
of (Address) …………….............................………………………………………………………….......................……………..........................……………… 
being shareholder(s) of M. I. Cement Factory Limited hereby appoint Mr./Ms. …………………………...............................………….. 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 26th Annual General Meeting to be held on 
Tuesday, the 29th December 2020 at 11:00 A.M. using Digital Platform through the link 
https://26agm.crowncement.com and at any adjournment thereof and the poll may be taken in consequence 
thereof. 
As witness my/our hand this ……….....................................................................................…….. day of ………............................……….2020

M. I. CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED
SHAREHOLDERS’ ATTENDANCE SLIP

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 26th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 11:00 A.M. on  
Tuesday, the 29th December 2020 using Digital Platform through the link https://26agm.crowncement.com 
Name of Shareholder/Proxy ...............................................................................................…………………………….……................………………….
BO Account No.  ……………....................………...........……......................…….. holding of …………………...........................….........................….
Ordinary shares of M. I. Cement Factory Limited.

N.B:
1. Please note that AGM can only be attended by the honorable Shareholder or properly constituted proxy.
2. For logging into the link https://26agm.crowncement.com, the Shareholders/Proxyholders need to put their 

Name, 16-digit Beneficial Owner (BO) Number and Number of Shares held on the Record Date as proof of their 
identity. 

Signature of Shareholder(s)/Proxy





M. I. CEMENT FACTORY LTD.
Corporate Office:
Delta Life Tower (3rd & 6th floor)
Plot No. 37, Road No. 45 (South) & 90 (North), Gulshan- 2, Dhaka- 1212.
Tel: +88-02-222263631, 222261633, 222262634, 222284636, 222290641
Fax: +88-02-222263643, E-mail: info@crowncement.com
Web: www.crowncement.com

Registered Office: 
West Mukterpur, Munshiganj 
Tel: +88-02-7648077, Fax: +88-02-7648070
E-mail: factory@crowncement.com


	F_00_u copy
	F_01-u copy
	F_03-u copy
	F_05-u copy
	F_06-u copy
	F_07-u copy
	F_08-u copy
	F_09-u copy
	F_10-u copy
	F_11-u copy
	F_12-u copy
	F_13-u copy
	F_14-u copy
	F_15-u copy
	F_16-u copy
	F_17-u copy
	F_18-u copy
	F_19-u copy
	F_20-u copy
	F_21-u- copy
	F_22-u- copy

